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21™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF . S. STEEL LIMITED

AGM INVITATION FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS

WILL BE HELD AT DIGITAL PLATFORM
DHAKA, BANGLADESH
Thursday, 30t March 2023, at time 11:00AM
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VISIT BELLOW LINK TO JOIN 21™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF S. S. STEEL LIMITED

https:/[sssteel.bdvirtualagm.com
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NOTICE OF 21ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2022

Motice is hereby given that the 215 Annual General Mee.tin.g; (AGM) of 8. 8. Steel Limited will be held on
Thursday, 30 March 2023, at time 11:00AM at Digital Platform to transact the following business:

1. Report and Accounts:

To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the Auditors’ Report thereon;

2. Dividends:

To declare a Dividend for the year ended June 30,2022 as recommended by the Board of
Directors;

3. Election/Re-election of Directors:

To Elect/Re-elect Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company;

4. Appointment of External Auditor:

To appoint External Auditors for the FY-2022-2023 and fix their remuneration;

5. Appointment of Compliance Auditor:

To appoint Compliance Auditor for the FY-2022-2023 and fix their remuneration;

6. Others:

To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.
Date: 16%March, 2023 By the Order of the Board
Place: Dhaka A
Md. Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary
Note:

a} The Shareholders whose names appear on the Members/Depasitory Register on the Record Date,
ie. 22 February shall be eligible to attend the 21# Annual General Meeting (virtual meeting
through digital platform/online live portal] of the Company and to receive the Dividend;

b} In view of the Order (SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated 08t July 202(1) of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission [BSEC), the ensuring 215 Annual General Meeting of the Company would be
conducted through a digital platfarm (virtual meeting). Therefore, the shareholders are requested
to attend the 21 Annual General Meeting through the online live portal. The detailed procedures
and link of the online, live portal to attend the meeting will be https:/ssssteel bdvirtualagm.com :

¢} The soft copy of the Annual Report 2021-20220f the Company will be sent to the shareholders’
respective e-mail addresses. However, interested shareholders may collect the hard copy of the
Annual Report-2021-2022 from the Company's registered office by submilting a wrilten request.
The Annual Report-2021-2022 is available on the investor Relations Section af the Company's
wehsite; www.sssteelhiz ;

d] The Shareholder can log into the link bups/ssstvelbivirtualagmenm by using their BO A/C number and
will be able to submit their queries or comments and vote electrically 24 hours before the meeting.
For any, [T-related guidance in this regard, Shareholders may contact cell number
+BB02222299562.

e) The concerned Merchant Bank and all Depository Participants [DPs) are reguested to provide
copies of the list of margin clients along with the bank details for entitlement of dividend on ar
befare 300 March, 2023 as per following: Deliver at the share office of the company by registered
email or courier.

f1 In compliance with the Circular No: SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated 24% Qctaber, 2013 issued

by BSEC, no benefit in cash or kind shall be offered to the member during the Annual General
Meeting.




ANNUAL REPORT

To

All Shareholders of 5. 5. Steel Limited

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC)
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE)

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)

Mational Board of Revenue (NBR)

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2022,
Dear Sir(s),

It is our immense pleasure to present before you the Annual Report of 5. 5. Steel Limited along with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year which ended on June 30, 2022, Financial Statements along
with notes to the Accounts of the Company comprise the statements of Financial Positions, statements
of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and statements
of Cash Flow for the period which ended on June 30, 2022,

Yours sincerely,

@W

Md. Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Date: 16™March, 2023
Place: Dhaka,
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S. 8. Steel Limited started its journey in 2001, The company is producing MS Billet and MS Rod from
raw material scrap to finished goods and its own brand name 55 TIGER. 5. 5. Steel Limited (555TEEL)
is one of the leading steel manufacturing companies and one of the prominent corporate houses in
Bangladesh. 5. S. Steel Limited is a fully automatic re-rolling mill built in the country. Over the years
5. S, Steel Limited products have been chosen solely for building major National landmarks and
infrastructures.

5. S. Steel Limited was established in 2001. After commissioned with fully automatic machinery the
plant production capacity increased with annual preduction capacity of 108,000 MT introducing high
guality B500/CWR & B400/DWR re-enforcing steel to facilitate heavy construction in Bangladesh. In
the Steel Melting Works unit, M5 Eillet is produced from scraps and sponge iron and then rolling this
M35 billet the Re-rolling Mills unit produces B500/CWR & B400/DWE MS bars etc.

Nearly 22 years ago, Mr. Kazi Shakil started the business that was dedicated solely to producing
reinforcement-bars from small rolling mills, At the time rolling mills were fed with sheered and cut
plates derived out of abandoned ships. Rods were produced to meet the needs for affordable steel
and iron for the growing territories and basic infrastructure in the newly formed Bangladesh then.
Since the inception of the company SS5TEEL continued to expand its capability in every aspect of the
production spectrum. At present 555TEEL narrowed its product line to focus and become a Specialty
Production Mill seeking to serve a much more selective group of demanding, quality-conscious
Customers.

SSSTEEL is not only involved in MS Billet and M5 Rod production but also MS BEillet and MS Rod
distribution and supply right up to their customer doorstep. The company has market capitalization
of 2% and MS Billet and MS Rod related venture in the country, 3SSTEEL total installed capacity stood
at 108,000 MT per annum of which 59,872.30 MT is in operation right now, turnover is Tk.5,040.80
million. Also noted that SSSTEEL, Saleh Steel and Al-Falah Steel total combined capacity 256,800 MT

per annuin.
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Particulars

Description

Mame of the lssuer

| 5.5. Steel Limited

Logo

Legal Position

"

5. 5 Steel Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the
Company" ) was incorporated as private company
limited by shares on 22 December 2001 under the
Companies Act, 1994. Subsequently, S. §. Steel Limited
company was converted from private limited company
to public limited company on 15 December 2016. Also
the company changed his name S. 5. Steel Limited from
5.5. Steel (Pvt) Limited dated on 10th May 2018. The
Company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange on 9
October 2018 as a publicly traded company. Trading of
the shares of the company started from 17 January 2019,

Date of Incorporation

| December 22, 2001 vide Registration No.C-44670

Converted into a public
company

limited

December 15, 2016.

Authorized Capital

TkS5,000,000,000 divided into 500,000,000 Ordinary
Shares of Tk.10 each

Paid up Capital

| Shares of Tk.10 each

Tk 3,286,332,000 divided into 328,633,2000 rdinary

Board of Director

| 05 Directors

Statutory Auditor

Ashraf Uddin & Co.

Chartered Accountants

142 /B, Green Road (3rd Floor), Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Tel. +88 02 9116183. +B8 02 9554301

Fax. +88 02 9124650, +88 02 9565767

Corperate Governance Auditor

Atik Khaled Chowdhury & Co.

Tax Consultants

| Hasan Court (1st Floor) 23 /1 Motijheel CA, Dhaka 100

Miranjan Ghosh, M. Com, LLE, TP

AK & Associates

#1/1 Kakrail, 1% Floor, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Tel: +88028317231, 9356295

Legal Advisor

Advocate Md. Imran Hussain Parvez

Compliance Officer

Mr. Sazed Ahmed
Assistant Manager Accounts & Corporate Affairs

Banker of IPO

| Brac Bank Limited

Bankers of the Company

| Bank Asia Limited

Mational Banlk Limited
Trust Bank limited

Registered Office

| Badda, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

The Pearl Trade Center, Cha-90/3, Pragati Sarani, North

Factory Address Plot-04, Block-B, Tongi Industrial Area, Gazipur,
Bangladesh

Website www.sssteel.biz

E-mail address ur. sst i
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fficial Name of the Company :5. 5. Stee] Limited
Legal Status : Public Limited Company
Trade Code : SSSTEEL
MNature of Business : Enﬁ‘neerini
Mr. Javed Opgenhaffen : Chairman
Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen : Managing Director
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad : Director {Representative of N] Holdings Limited]
Mr. Sadad Rahman : Independent Director
Mr. Md. Abu Zafer : Independent Director

Mr. Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hogue

Mr, Md. Mostafizur Rahman

Mr. Sadad Raliman, Independent Director : Chairman

Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director : Member

Mr, Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director : Member
(Representative of N] Holdings Limited)

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman : Member Secreta ri

Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director : Chairman

Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director : Member

Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director : Member
[Representative of N] Holdings Limited)

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman : Member Secretary
BOARD CSRCOMMITTEE
Mr, Sadad Rahman, Independent Director : Chairman

Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen, Managing Director  : Member

Mr. Sayveed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director : Member
[Representative of N] Holdings Limited)

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman : Member Sec retai

Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen : Managing Director
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad : Director

Mr. Engr. Md. Delwar Hossain, : Executive Director
BUET (MME), MBA

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman : Company Secretary
Mr. Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hoque : Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Mohammed Shahjahan Chowdhury : Chief Marketing Officer
Mr, Poritos Chandra Rﬂi : Head of Internal Audit
Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen : Managing Director
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad : Director

Mr. Engr. Md. Delwar Hossain, : Executive Director

BUET (MME), MBA
Mr. Md, Mostafizur Rahman : Company Secretary
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Mr. Poritos Chandra Ro

Ashraf Uddin & Co.

Atik Khaled Chowdhury

Bank Asia Limited
MNational Bank Limited
Trust Bank Limited

IDLC Finance Limited
Hajj Finance Limited

The Pearl Trade Center Plot-04, Block-B, Tongi Industrial Area, Gazipur,
Cha-90/3, Pragati Sarani, North Badda, Bangladesh.
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh.
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ETHOS & VALUES

A winning industrial leader creating superior values for business and community beyond the boundary.

We achieve our vision through honesty integrity, business ethics, global reach, technological expertise,
quality building long term relationships with all our associates, customers, partners and employees.

The foundations upon which our strategy is built have been in place for many years but we continue to
focus our activities in the following areas and consistently review our ways of operating business. The
details are:

Customer Delight: A promise to fulfill customer expectations.

Customer Delight: Developing brands, innovations and new products to meet consumers evolving
needs.

Pursuit of Excellence: A promise to continuous improvement of our teams, services and products as
well to become the best.

Understand: We seek to understand the needs of stakeholders and the Company to make the best
decisions,

Productivity: Effectively deploying resources to increase profits and generate funds for investment.
Integrity and Transparency: A promise to be ethical, sincere, honest and trans- parent. Ensuring a
sustainable business that meets stakeholder' expectations.

Leadership by Example: Ensuring we have great people, great teams and great place to work. A
promise to create standards in our business and transactions through mutual trust,
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The products, 5. 5. Steel Ltd. follow the zero tolerance rules, We at S, 5. Steel Ltd. constantly strive to
meet and exceed customer expectations in our ongoing quest for excellence. 5. 5. Steel Ltd. has an
enriched quality control system where the quality of the products checked in every steps of the
production.

Accordingly, we are committed to:

* Complying with the requirements of the quality management system implemented;
» Effectively utilizing the available resources;

« Constant striving for improving the level of customer satisfaction; and

» Continually improving the effectiveness of the quality management system.

We at S. 5. Steel Ltd. recognize that Environmental Issues have become critical challenge globally. We
are committed to contributing towards "Leaving a beautiful planet as a legacy to future generations”.

For achieving this, we believe that we need to work in harmony with the nature; recognize the
environmental impact related to our business activities & products and undertake protection of
environment through technologically and economically feasible goals within our scope.

We are using ecofriendly production system to be as an
environment friendly steel in Bangladesh.

We are committed towards conservation of natral resources
by their responsible and efficient use in our operations. We are
also committed to continual improvement in environmental
performance and complying with environmental legislations
and requirements

We are providing appropriate training to employees to
enhance their awareness and commitment to environmental

protection. Qur environmental policy is communicated to all
our employees, business associates and made available to the
public.
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The issuer's business environment is conducive to the business as good
supply of raw materials, The company has skilled and competent labors as
well, The facilities and wages are reasonable. The policy of the Government
is favorable to this sector. 5. 5. Steel Ltd.

MAJOR TYPES OFPRODUCTS

The Company produces various types of products, details of which have been laid down as below:

SL.NO. | Product Name Size SL.No. | Product Name | Size
1. S5 TIGER BA0ODWR/60G oMM | 9. S5 TIGER BS00CWR/TMT | 0BMM
2 SSTIGER B4ADODWR/600G 10MM | 10, 55 TIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 10MM
3. S5 TIGER B40DDWR /600G 12MM | 11, SS TIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 12MM
4, S8 TIGER B40DDWR /600G 1eMM | 12, SS TIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 16MM
5, S5 TIGER B40DDWR /600G 20MM | 13, SS TIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 20MM
6. | SSTIGER B4OODWR/60G | 25MM | 14. | SSTIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 25MM_
7. 55 TIGER B4DODWR/60G 28MM | 15, S8 TIGER BSODCWR,/TMT f ZBMM
=3 55 TIGER BADODWR/60G 3ZMM | 16 S5 TIGER BSOOCWR/TMT | 32MM
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf the Board of Directors, | would like to welcome you to
the 21=Annual General Meeting of your company and continue
to take pride in your association with us. It is my pleasure to
place the Annual Report of §, §. Steel Ltd. for the year ended
June 30, 2022. [ would also like to take the opportunity to share
and exchange our thoughts and views on the performance of
the company in the past years and the potentials and
possibilities going forward, Our Company continued to deliver
excellent underlying performance in this year, despite
challenging conditions, The Board of Directors and
Management ensured the sustainable growth in business and
committed to delivering long term value to the shareholders
and other stakeholders.

Every year we see new technologies and innovative ideas evolving which enhances the safety and
quality of the products. For us, sustainable growth is not a choice or something that is nice to have, it is
critical to securing the future of our business by creating value for consumers, our customers and our
sharcholders. | believe 5. 5. Steel Ltd. looks for new ways, makes the effort and takes the initiatives to
adopl those into business processes and deliver the best products at consumers' door in the shortest
time possible and moving forward aggressively against every aspect of our plan.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

It is well known that steel plays a vital role in construction, sustained economic growth, infrastructure
development and security of any country. Bangladesh will need to address the barriers to higher
growth posed by low access to reliable and affordable raw material of producing steel. The Government
of Bangladesh has not given any special attention to it, despite being the sector most attractive to the
investors for large local market, favorable export opportunity, intelligent labor force, availability of
manpower at reasonable cost etc. Again, rapid industrialization and urbanization made the industry
maore prospective.

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Company has achieved expected growth in all aspects. Volume growth achieved through a focused
business strategy that was supported by our dedicated people across all business functions. Our brand
portfolio is strengthened through consumer relevant initiatives and excellent retail level executions.
The overall Company performance in 2021-2022 was driven by revenue growth, increased market
shares, effective cost management and productivity initiatives across the Company. This result was
achieved due to hard work of our people, guidance of our Board of Directors, dedication of our
Executive Committee members and leadership of our Managing Director who led the business to
deliver the results, The key highlights for the year were as follows:

« Record Consolidated revenue during the year of BDT 763.99 Crore;
* Consolidated Operating Profit during the year of BDT 139.02 Crore;
« Consolidated Net Profit After Tax during the year of BD'l' 61.33 Crore;

ETE BT TR ETRRNGTH
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DELIBERATE INVESTMENTS

55 Steel Limited has a composite steel production mill which very few companies have in Bangladesh.
In order to meet the commitment of delivering long term value to our shareholders, the Company
invested in the capacity enhancement of our production, safety of our people, and machineries as per
the need of the business which will facilitate justifiable future growth. We are working for continuous
improvement in our business that will release funds to invest in our brands, helping us to grow our
business and deliver higher returns for shareholders.

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

Sustainable growth is the realistically attainable growth that a company could maintain without
running into problems. Sustainability is not a choice or something for us that is nice to have, it is ¢ritical
to securing the future of cur business by creating shared value for consumers, our customers and our
shareholders. The overall Company performance in 2021-2022 was driven by revenue growth,
increased market shares, elective cost management and productivity initiatives across the Company. If
we look in our business performance, the sustainable growth is going throughout the year. This great
result was achieved due to hard work of our people, guidance of our Board of Directors, dedication of
our Executive Committee members and leadership of our Managing Director. We can assure you that
the Company will run the business with sustainable growth and add value for the shareholders as well.

COMPLIANCE OF AUDIT

“Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. Chartered Accountants, have been appointed in the 21 AGM by the
Shareholders for the year 2022-2023. The Board of Directors has also been approved the
appointment for the year of 2022-2023 in the Annual Board Meeting subject to the approval in next
AGM. Apart from that "Atik Khaled Chowdhury & Co”, Chartered Accountants, carried out the
Corporate Governance Compliance Audit to certify the fulfillment of the requirements of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Board of Directors of the Company recommended
to re-appoint "Atik Khaled Chowdhury & Co", Chartered Accountants” as compliance auditor for
2022-2023 subject to the approval by shareholders in the 213 AGM.
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The Board of Directors of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. is the bold and strong team in our country. The Board of
Directors of the Company consists of five Directors. Throughout different Board meetings during the
year, your Board has considered and approved different important business proposals to ensure
sustainable business growth and played a catalytic role in protecting vour interests. The Board
assessment of the key risks and uncertainty, facing the Company broadly remains unchanged. |
gratefully thank all of our Board Members for their support and contributions which enable the
Management to achieve sustainable business performance throughout the year of 2021-2022.

RETURN OF THE SHAREHOLDERS

In this continuous growing business performance, the Board of Directors of 5. S. Steel Ltd.
recommended 2% Cash Dividend for general shareholders (except Sponsor and Director) and 8%
Stock Dividend in the form of Bonus for all shareholders which is being placed in the 21# Annual
General Meeting for approval of the honorable shareholders.

CONCLUSION

| would like to extend my sincere appreciation to my fellow Directors on the Board for their continued
support, guidance and valuable insights through the years. Reflecting on the success of 2021-2022, let
me express my sincere thanks and appreciations to you all, our valued customers, suppliers,
distributors, shareholders, bankers, Members of the Board, Members ol the Executive Commiltee,
Employees of the Company for their confidence in us and valuable contribution to the Company
throughout the year 2021-2022.

| would also like to thank the Government bodies, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
(BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) and other statutory
bodies for their suppart for the various activities of the Company.

Like in the past, we will stay on a path that takes inte cognizance the best interests of our stakeholders,
while safeguarding the long-term value creation platform for our shareholders.

Thank you once again for being with S, S. Steel Ltd.

v

Javed Opgenhaffen
Chairperson
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Dear Shareholders,

The Company delivered strong business results amidst a
very competitive environment and challenging operating
landscape. As one ol the leading corporates in Bangladesh,
5. 5. Steel Ltd. always believes in staying ahead of the curve
and establishing progressive standards for others to follow,
The Company Management is pleased to report another
outstanding year of revenue, profit and earnings growth,
driven by a successful strategy and winning culture despite
very challenging external environment in 2021-2022, On
behalf of the Board Members and everyone from 5. S, Steel
Ltd. | welcome you all to the 21st Annual General Meeting of
2022 held in 2023. The Company passionately believes that
success and responsibility go together. We are committed
to the social and economic development of Bangladesh. 5. 5.
Steel Ltd. is also very proud to contribute towards the
economic development journey of the country through its
support in the development of skilled human resources,
globally integrated work practices, environmentally sustainable business operations and other
sustainable development goals for the overarching purpose of building a better economy of the
Country.

BUSINESS RESULTS FOR 2021-2022

The management is pleased to report another successful year of revenue growth, supported by profit
and earnings growth. In the Worldwide economic crisis situation, the business performance of 5. 5
Steel Ltd.Was overall good comparing to the last year but not significantly. The consolidated gross
margin of the Company for the year 2021-2022 was BDT 164.71 Crore. On the other hand, the
consolidated net profit margin of the company for the year 2021-2022 was BDT 61.33 Crore. [t is very
much promising that the steel industry of Bangladesh has become one of the leading players in our
country due to the digitization of the country. Apart from sustainable business performance, we are
proud of the external recognition for versatile excellences on Corporate Governance and Corporate
Social Responsibilities.
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NET PROFIT

800,00

FO00L00

Mlens

60000

00500

AQ00.00

300.00

20000

106,00

2021-2023 2020-2021 2019-2020 2F1R-20113 2017-2018

With the successful 22 years' experience in operation, we believe in the strategy of delivering business
growth with integrity to invest for a sustainable future, Qur strategy is to ensure sustainable growth. A
core part of being sustainable business is operating with integrity and responsibility while maximizing
value for the consumers, The Company enthusiastically believes that success and responsibility go
together. We work together to fight the odds and could overcome all kinds of challenges. The
Company’s business is primarily focused on the sale of M5 Rod in our country.

In FY 2021-2022, we expect the trading environment will remain challenging, but our strong business
maodel has shown that the Company is well placed to face future challenges. As such, | am confident that
we have our strong brands portfolio, excellent management, market-leading innovations and an
outstanding range of high-quality products people and focus on efficiency to enable the continued
delivery of value to the shareholders. Combined with the strong support of our employees, business
partners and relevant stakeholders, we will direct the business towards excellence and will present
another successful year for our shareholders. We are committed to continuing our activities focused in
the areas of growth, productivity, winning organization and sustainability.

We always like to work together to fight the probabilities and could overcome all kinds of difficulties
that arise while operating the business. Apart from the support of our respected Board Members,
shareholders and stakeholders, our continued success would not have been possible without our
talented people and great leaders who worked efficiently and effectively in delivering remarkable
results. This makes us one of the most preferred employers in the country. We have used latest
SEKORA technology for producing quality steels and have modern laboratories for testing Rods in
every step of the production. We are operating business in the engineering sector. We, the management
of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. are four Engineers who are graduated from BUET and handling the operations of the
business effectively and efficiently. | am very much confident that we have the strength that will help to
deliver continuous growth in the coming years.
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5. 5. Steel Ltd. tries to make a positive change within and around its business operations. 5. 5. Steel Ltd.
achieved position in the steel market in terms of turnover in our country. The Company achieve this
position due to strong commitment regarding the quality products, after sales service, quality
management and others. We really believe that success and responsibility go together for success, We
are committed to the social and economic development of the country. As one of the leading steel
manufacturers in the country, we are proud to play our part in shaping the future of corporate best
practices in Bangladesh with the idea of delivering value for sharecholders today while investing for
tomorrow,

The Company believes, corporate governance coupled with strong ethics and integrity is very vital for
sustainability of the Business, Good Governance has long been a key priority for the Company. We meet
all cur obligations under the various framewaorks by which we are bound to comply with the law, while
also ensuing that the Company is delivering results with integrity.

As we wrote in the last vear to increase our production capacity as well as our market share, it has
already been in the shape of our success. Considering the growing demand of the industry in recent
vears, the Company has taken decision to expand the business capacity. We are always working for
continuous improvement in our business that will release funds to invest in our brands, helping us to
grow our business and deliver higher returns for shareholders. With the economic progress, we have
shown a consistent ability to improve shareholders' return and to increase our market share, We will
navigate the business towards excellence and will present another successlul vear for our shareholders
with the strong support of our Employees, Board Members, Excellent Executive Committee, and
relevant stakeholders. We will continue to focus on meeting customers’ expectations. We confident that
we are able to overcome the challenges of upcoming years through our strong strategic management,
quality products, good brand portfolio, market-leading innovations and continuous support the
customers demand as well.

COMPLIANCE OF REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to ensure regulatory compliance and environment friendly responsible
operations in this sector. We have always been clear that we support and abide by all the laws and
regulations of the country. The Company is carrying out all of its activities by following the Companies
Act, 1994, Rules and Regulations of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission {BSEC), DSE
Listing Regulations, Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Bangladesh Labor Act 2006 [Amended 2013) and
other related rules and regulations.

OUR GRATITUDE

I would like to express my sincere thanks to all the stakeholders of the company for their support and
contributions. 1 acknowledge my gratitude and appreciation to you all our valued customers,
distributors, suppliers, Board Members, Members of Executive Committee, Employees of the Company
and other relevant authorities of the Government. The Board of Directors guidance and support has
always been instrumental in shaping the success of the Company. We are really very much grateful to
all of our customers who have been with us along with their believe and dedication towards us and our
brands as well. We are committed to passionately continue building value for our consumers and
shareholders in the future.

@paprt—

Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen
Managing Director
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Dear Shareholders,

It is my great pleasure to welcome you all to the 21st Annual
General Meeting of Steel Limited. The steel industry is the
backbone of the modern economy. A healthy economy needs
a healthy steel industry. But Bangladesh's steel industry has
significant forward and backward linkages in terms of raw
materials, employment and income growth. Despite the
pressure of running the business in a shrinking environment,
it is good to see that an expected business performance
during the year has been possible due to the tireless efforts
of our management team. This gives us confidence that no
matter what, we will remain steadfast in our commitment to
our valued shareholders. Our objective is to create a
sustainable value for our stakeholders and society and
combine the spirit of innovation with extensive experience in
the steel industry.

The steel market will become more competitive and the
industry will become export-oriented. The outlook for the steel industry in Bangladesh is very bright
due to mega infrastructure developments like Padma Rail Link, Dhaka Metro Rail, Dhaka Elevated
Expressway, Karnaphuli Tunnel, Chittagong-Cox’s Bazar Railway Link, Hazrat Shahjalal International
Airport Terminal-3, Rooppur Nuclear power plant, Matarbari deep sea port, Matarbari coal-red power
plant and Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Railway Bridge in the Jamuna steel consumption will be at the
highest level. With best management practices and every effort to outdo ourselves, 5.5. Steel promises
to be the first runner in his domain and achieve new levels of success. S. 5. Steel has continuously
strived to be the best and our investment in product innovation and R&D has yielded fruitful results.
Our skilled technicians and rigorous quality tests have produced steel to meet all international
standards.

The company's directors have proposed a 10% dividend (2% cash and 8% stock) to the company's
shareholders for the yvear ending June 30, 2022,

Finally, | would like to express my sincere thanks and appreciation to our valued shareholders,
customers, distributors, suppliers, government and semi-government authorities, bankers, consultants
and other stakeholders who have shown and hope for their dedication and continuous support. Same in
future,

Sincerely,

@w

Md. Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary
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Mr. Javed Opgenhaffen, Chairman

Mr, Javed Opgenhaffen, a shareholder and a director, graduated in management from Queen Mary,
University of London and in Employment relations from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. He holds the post of Chairman and acts to enhance the sales & profitability of the Company. In
addition, his vision forward-thinking will certainly contribute to rapid growth and expansion. He is also
a Chairman of Saleh Steel Industries Limited, Al-Falah Steel and Re-Rolling Mills Limited, Managing
Director of Fu-Wang Ceramic Industry Limited and Director of A.] Corporation Limited. Prior to joining
Generation Next Fashions Limited, Mr. Opgenhaffen worked as a Management Trainee at Deutsche
Bank GMEBH, London. He has dual citizenship in Bangladesh and Belgium.

Mrs. Hasna Opgenhaffen, Managing Director

Mrs. Hasna Opgenhaffen, daughter of Mr. Herman OpgenHaffen appointed as Nominee Director of Al
Dewan Technical Services LLC as well as Managing Director. She is also a Managing Director of Saleh
Steel Industries Limited, Al-Falah Steel and Re-Rolling Mills Limited. She is Commerce Graduate having
more than 20 (twenty) vears of experience in difficult field of business.

Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Nominee Director

Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, a Director (Representing NJ Holdings Ltd.) has completed M. Com from
Rajshahi University. He was born in Rajshahi District. After completion his academic career he started
business as different sectors. He received training on "Efficient Business Operation Management”,
“Supply Chain Management” and also completed ICMAB (Intermediate). Then he was nominated as a
director of 5.5, Steel Limited in 2016 representing N] Holdings Ltd. He is also nominated asdirector of
Saleh Steel Industries Limited, Al-Falah Steel and Re-Rolling Mills Limited representing N] Holding
Limited, Mr. Sayeed RezarajAhmmad appointed as Nominee Director of N] Holdings Limited as well as
Managing Director of Oimex Electrode Limited and Independent Director of Fu-Wang Ceramic Industry
Limited.

Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director

Mr. Sadad Rahman, an Independent Director, he has completed MBA from City College University of
London, UK. After Completion his academic career he started serving different types of sectors. Also, he
received various types training from different institutions. He is an Independent Director of 5.5, Steel
Limited. Also Managing Director of Rangpur Distilleries & Chemicals Limited, Director of Saleh Steel
Industries Limited, Al-Falah Steel and Re-Rolling Mills Limited&Nominee Director of Fu-Wang Ceramic
Industry Limited.

Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director

Mr, Md. Abu Zafer, son of Late Md. Abdul Aziz appeinted as Independent Director in the Board meeting
held on 23 March 2019. Not only he is the Independent Director of 5.5. Steel Limited but he is also
Independent Director of Fu-Wang Ceramic Industry Limited. He is a member of Advocate of the
Supreme Court of Bangladesh and the Honorable Society of Gray's Inn. London.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, we welcome you all at the 21*Annual General
Meeting 2021-2022 of S. 5. Steel Ltd. in compliance with the provisions of section 184-186 of the
Companies Act 1994 and Notification No. SEC/CMMR- RCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80 dated 03 June
20118 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), it is a pleasure and privilege on
the part of the Board of Directors to present the Director’s Report together with Audited Financial
Statements of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. for the year ended 30 June 2022.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK & FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Steel Industry started its journey before Bangladesh came into being in 1971. At that time there
were very few industries in this sector to serve the whole nation. As time went on the industry
expanded significantly realizing the emerging demand of steels hoth in locally and globally, Now the
industry has reached a reasonable size, still unable to meet the total demand of the country.

5. S. Steel Ltd. is looking forward to managing expertise and obtaining technology to provide better
engineering solutions by supplying quality Steels,Conductors and better Customer Service. Now at the
eve of the 21st century globalization, good quality steel has become an integral part for infrastructural
development. With the rapid urbanization from corner to corner worldwide, the necessity of structural
development assumes significant for sustainable industrial growth. So, our objective is to manufacture
Steels,and Conductors of the highest quality to contribute to our national economic growth, Which is
equipped with state-of-the-art technology machineries to manufacture and test all types of quality
Steels, and Conductors and meet up the specific requirements of the customer.

Again, rapid industrialization and urbanization made the industry more prospective. We will continue
to focus on meeting customers' expectations. We confident that we are able to overcome the challenges
of upcoming years through our strong strategic management, guality products, good brand portfolio,
market leading innovations and continuous support the customers demand as well.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global economic activity is experiencing a broad-based and sharper-than-expected slowdown, with
inflation higher than seen in several decades, The cost-of-living crisis, tightening financial conditions in
most regions, Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, and the lingering COVID-19 pandemic all weigh heavily on
the outlook. Global growth is forecast to slow from 6.0 percent in 2021 to 3.2 percent in 2022 and 2.7
percent in 2023, This is the weakest growth profile since 2001 except for the global financial crisis and
the acute phase of the COVID-19 pandemic. Global inflation is forecast to rise from 4.7 percent in 2021
to 8.8 percent in 2022 but to decline to 6.5 percent in 2023 and to 4.1 percent by 2024. Monetary policy
should stay the course to restore price stability, and fiscal policy should aim to alleviate the cost-of-
living pressures while maintaining a sufficiently tight stance aligned with monetary policy. Structural
reforms can further support the fight against inflation by improving productivity and easing supply
constraints, while multilateral cooperation is necessary for fast-tracking the green energy transition
and preventing fragmentation,
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GROWTH PROJECTIONS BY REGION

EL/EOY AREA
MIBOLE FAST AP

Waorld zguls 5.2 CRNTkAT A3l

5.7 21

&Iﬂ 0.5 4.5 Is-ﬂ 3.4 1.2
3-2 z..? I i 1.0 =T I I 4.4 4.9

) T
THE CARINBEAN CLIR-TAMARAN ATRICA

Vol G g et LR EE AT -] 6.9 4.7 3.8 a7

BANGLADESH ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Bangladesh has a strong track record of growth and development, even in times of elevated global
uncertainty. A robust demographic dividend, strong ready-made garment (RMG) exports, resilient
remittance inflows, and stable macroeconomic conditions have supported rapid economic growth over
the past two decades. A strong recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic continued in FY22, although a
recent surge in commodity prices has presented new headwinds.

Bangladesh is also a remarkable story of poverty reduction and development. From being one of the
poorest nations at birth in 1971, Bangladesh reached lower-middle income status in 2015, [t is on track
to graduate from the UN's Least Developed Countries (LDC) list in 2026. Poverty declined from 43.5
percent in 1991 to 14.3 percent in 2016, based on the international poverty line of $1.90 a day (using
2011 Purchasing Power Parity exchange rate). Moreover, human development outcomes improved
along many dimensions.

CHALLENGES

Bangladesh, like many other countries, faces global economic challenges. Rising commodity prices and
a surge in imports in the second half of FY22 resulted in a widening Balance of Payments (BoP) deficit
and accelerating inflation. Foreign exchange reserves declined as a result, reaching US$ 38.9 billion by
the end of August 2022. Real GDP growth is expected to slow in FY23 as import suppression measures
disrupt economic activity,

Over the medium term, the balance of payments is projected to return to surplus as import growth
moderates.

To achieve its vision of attaining upper middle-income status by 2031, Bangladesh needs to create jobs
and employment opportunities through a competitive business environment, increase human capital
and build a skilled labor force, build efficient infrastructure, and establish a pelicy environment that
attracts private investiment,

Development priorities include diversifying exports beyond the RMG sector; deepening the financial
sector; making urbanization more sustainable and strengthening public institutions, including fiscal
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reforms to generate more domestic revenue for development, Addressing infrastructure gaps would
accelerate growth. Addressing vulnerability to climate change and natural disasters will help
Bangladesh to continue to build resilience to future shocks, Pivoting towards green growth would
support the sustainability of development cutcomes for the next generation.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

As there is single business and geographic segment within the company operates as such no segment
reporting is felt necessary. But we can represent the performance in sector wise for your kind
understanding which are shown in below:

Major Consumers

W Private Housing

® Real Estate
Gov'l. Sector
Induistrial Sector

m Others

RISK AND CONCERNS

Risks an integral part of 2 business and contributes to the loss of the company as well as for the
shareholders. The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of sound risk management practices
and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company's assets. The main
responsibility of risk management is to establish and oversee the Company's risk management
framework. Company risk management policy is established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Company, set the appropriate risk limits and to control and monitor risks and adhere to limits.
Risks management policy and system is monitored regularly to comply with the changing market
conditions and company activities.

Risk management is certainly embedded in the Company's management system as the Company firmly
believe that risk management is critical for the company's sustainability and the enhancement of its
shareholders’ value. The objective of the risk management of the company may as follows:

» Protect its assets and reputation.

» Protect the interests of all other stakeholders.

* Preserve the safety, security and health of its employees.

+ Ensure the community of its supply of products to consumers and customers at all times,

* Promote an effective risk awareness culture where risk management is an integral aspect of the
Company’s management systems.

RETIENT Mden (TRENETH




ANNUAL REPORT

=Ensure that the company's operations do not impact negatively on the community in which it operates
and the environment.

Rislks are defined as uncertainties resulting in adverse variations of profitability or in losses, financial
or otherwise. The core risk areas of the business are Industry risk, sourcing cost risk, financial risk,
technological risk and environmental risk.

The company undertook and is continuing with the Corporate Social Responsibility programs to create
positive impact in the communities and environment at large. The Company believes that the business
has a key role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic
growth, environmental protection and social progress in ways that will build value for all our
stakeholders.

COST OF GOODS SOLD AND PROFIT MARGINS

In FY 2021-2022Consolidated Cost of Goods Sold is 78.44% of net revenue where as it was 77.25% of
last year's net revenue, It has increased slightly comparing to the last year, which is not favorable for
the company. The COGS formula is particularly important for management because it helps them
analyze how well purchasing and payroll costs are being controlled. Creditors and investors also use
cost of goods sold to caleulate the gross margin of the business and analyze what percentage of
revenues is available to cover operating expenses. When a business is growing, an increase in COGS is
normal. However, larger inventory expenditures can make it difficult to assess the effectiveness of cost
control efforts. The last four years scenario of Cost of Goods Sald are as follows:

COST OF GOODS SOLD
. 7.000.00
=
=
E {5, 06060, 00
5, (430,00
4,000,00
3,000.00 i
2 000,00
{, 000,00 I
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has carried no transactions with related parties in during the year.

UTILIZATION IPO FUND

5. 5. Steel Limited got approval for increasing capital through Initial Public Offering (IPQ) on 17th July,
2018 from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The allotment of IPO has been
made on 29th November, 2018, The IPO fund had been tully utilized.

SIGNIFICANT VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
There were no significant variations between the Quarterly Financial Statements and Annual Financial
Performance of the Company during the yvear under report. The Company able to maintain a
remarkable performance both in operational and financial prospective throughout the period.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

During the period of 2021-2022, the Directors not taken any remuneration from the Company which
has disclosed in the note 32.06 of the Audited Financial Statements.

FAIRNESS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act 1994 and Securities and Exchange Commission rules 1987. These statements fairly
present the company's state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

In compliance with the requirement of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
notification, Chief Financial Officer have given the declaration about the fairness of the financial
statements

BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS

Proper books of accounts of the Company were maintained.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Appropriate accounts policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements
and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement,

APPLICATION OF IAS & IFRS

International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have
been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and any deviation there-from has been
sufficiently disclosed,

INTERNAL CONTROL & AUDIT COMMITTEE

Internal controls are to be an integral part of any organizations financial and business policies and
procedures. The company's internal control system is designed at board management levels to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the Company's objectives in respect of
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability and completeness

Protecting its resources against waste, fraud, and inefficiency;

Ensuring accuracy and reliability in accounting and operating data;

Securing compliance with the policies of the organization; and

Evaluating the level of performance in all organizational units of the organization.

¥ Y ww

The board has formed an Audit Committee as per BSEC directives which consist of the following
directors:

| Name Designation
| Mr. Sadad Rahman, Chairman.

Mr. Md. Abu Zafer Member

Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad Member

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman Member Secretary
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MINORITY (NON-CONTROLLING) INTEREST
The Board of Directors ensures that the Company operates within the limit of its charter supported by

the laws and codes of corporate governance with regard to the rights of its minority shareholders are
protected from any direct or indirect abusive actions by, or in the interest of the controlling
shareholders. However, for contingency, there has been effective means of redress.

GOING CONCERN

Going concern is one the fundamental assumptions in accounting based on which financial statements
are prepared. Financial statements are prepared assuming that a business entity will continue to
operate in the foreseeable future without the need or intention on the part of management to liquidate
the entity or to significantly curtail its operational activities. The Board of the Company is explicitly
stated that the financial statements (verified through an audit committee and independent audit) are
prepared on a going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT DEVIATION LAST YEAR'S OPERATING RESULTS AND REASONS BEHIND
DEVIATIONS

During the year under review the revenue has increased by Tk.125.42 crore comparing to the last year.
For this reason, there were increasing pattern of revenue the Gross Profit Margin, Operating Profit

Margin as well as Net Profit Margin also comparing to the last year of 2021-2022,

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS
ardcars | DOLEL_|BOMMRL_ | gid e,
_Consolidated | Consolidated The Company | The Company |
Revenue 7,639,970,498 6,385,707,338 19.64 5,040,798,732 4196859974 | 20.11
GrossProfit L647,107,265 | 1452866753 | 1337 | 1380828403 | 1,136343021 | 2145
NMet Profit After Tax 613,388,234 TO4421.216 | -1292 R77.238.046 583271225 | -1.03
Mon-Current Liabilities 3,086,038,803 L678,521,166 H3.85 2,336972,485 Lo45,072234 | 42,06
Current Liabilities 7739236718 3,657.906,026 111.30 5100601068 | 2813683026 | 8128
Total Liability & Equity IB 718319939 | 12512918243 49.59 13964337960 | 10,337,732,626 | 35.08
_Non-Current Asset 6,235,191955 | 4381743600 | 4230 | 3350850708 | 3223544182 | 3.95
Total Asset 18.718,31%.939 | 12512918243 49,549 13,964,337 960 10,337, 732626 | 3508
Net Asset Value per Share 2405 23.58 1.99 149.86 1932 | 2.79
Earnings Per Share 1.87 7231 | -19.05 176 192 | -8.18

SRl ENT Gl W TRAETH
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Particulars 2019-2020 | 2018-2019 | 2018-2017
| Revenue 7539570498 | 5040,798,732 385707338 | 4196855574 | 369704638 | 150,567,726 | 3,583,579.941 |
| Gross Profit 1647.107.265 1.3B0,A28,403 1,452, 866,759 1136343021 | 1025 71LE33 | LOB7425.204 G18,738,144
I Other Income 35,328,358 34,525,324 | A0 112 667 39645450 38,778,351 21,277,588 | B.OZ6HTS
| Administrative Expenses 159 646,714 106,407 601 | 117,734 663 #47 383.825 85,531,986 102,601,342 L30,747 895
ﬁﬁjﬁu'm“““ 97,187,217 | 76655002 | 113273111 HOUBTIE | 99020772 | 10B3137E4 | B5104086
| Financial Expenses G16857. 714 4TB108,26% 334,696,108 2099 9495,825 261 013537 235,574,704 216,713,483 |
E Contribution to WPPF 37467715 35,913,469 44,155 978 32,87 1385 25472566 TT24446 | 23533312 ]
| Profic Before Tax FTL2T6,063 TIH,269.386 BB3,119,565 657 427,707 589451323 554,488,916 470,606,245
| Met Profit After Tax i1 3.388.234 STT.E30,046 | 04421216 583,271,225 436,285,898 519 163,389 305,933,064
|-- : E TPy T 0 : = ; T
| Mon-Current Lizhilities J0ER038R03 | AITEO7Z485 | 167H521166 | 1645072214 T42ERI0RL | AREITY.AST | THZ407,071 |
| Current Lighitities TAETATIE | A100.601.068 | 3657966086 | 2H136E3I0I0 | 264LB907T16 | LSEOFRL020 | Z16F0052E |
| Shareholder's Equity Taa5 444406 | 5069164407 | 67734048 | S4ATSOTTIRS | 49255962271 | 446676373 | 3720512985 |
| Total Liakdliry & Equity 18718319930 | 13,964,337 960 | 12512918243 | 10337732626 | 8311516048 | TATBITS050 | &,720,620579 |
- Non-Carrent Asset 6,235,191,955 | 3,350,850,708 | 4,381,743601 | 3,223,544,162 | 3,094, 242301 | 2,921, 086,855 | 2,021,078,428 |
Tatal Asset 18718319392 | 13964 337,060 | 12512 118241 | 10337732626 | 8311516048 | T6TR.275,050 | 6,720,620574 |
| Authorized Capital SOOO00,000 | 5000,000,000 | 500000008 | 5000000000 | 3000000000 | 2SH0000,000 | 500,000,000 |
| Paid up Capital 3286332000 3.286,332,004 3,042 904,00 3042 300,000 | 2A17.500,000 | 2450,000,000 | ZZ00,00H004
| No. of Shares Outstanding 328.633,200 328,633,200 304,290 (M4 304,290,000 281,750,800 245,000,000 | 220,000,000
| Net Asset Value per Share 2141 19,84 2095 19232 17.48 18.33 | 1679 |
| Earnings Per Share 187 L78 131 ER 158 221 | 134 |
PATTERNS OF SHAREHOLDERS
The pattern of shareholding in the company as of 30 June 2022 is duly stated in the following below,
SL.ND.| Name of the Shareholders Description iNuthl‘ of Shares | Amount I Percentage(%:)
A, Present or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related Parties (name-wise details)
Saleh Steel Industries Limited, B5 /R & 86/R, Nasirahad, Industrial Area, Chittagong, Bangladesh
B. Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited, 84, Shahid Nazrul Islam Sarani, Zamal Iron Building, Dhaka, Bangladesh.
. Directors, CEQ, S, CFO, HIAC and thelr spouses and minor children (rame wise details)
1 | Mr. Javed Opgenhatien Chalrman 74.736,000 747 3R0.000) 22.74%,
Ms. Hasma Opgenhalfen 16,317,469 163,174,690 4.097%
Z [Representative of Al-Dewan Technical Managing Director
Services LLC)
3 Me. Saveed Rexara) Ahmmad Neitsistad Di 6,7 800 67,068,000 2.0:4%,
(Representitive of K] Heldings Ltd, ) pminated Hirectns
4 | Mr. Sadad Rahman Independent Director Hil il il
S | Mr. Md. Abu Zaler lipdependent Director M Mil Hil
§ | Mr. Md. Mastafizur Raliman Company Secretary Mil il Mil
7 Mr, Poritos Chandra Rov HIAC il Mil Mil
C Executives [Top Salaricd Employees)
A | Mr. Mohammed Shahjahan Chowdhury| Chief Marketing Officer il Hil il
Engr. Md. Delwar Hossain,
g BUET {MME], MEA Executive Director il il Mil
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

The Board of Directors holds meeting on a regular basis. The management provides information,
references and details working papers for each item of agenda to all the Directors well ahead of time
fixed for the Board of Directors Meeting for Consideration, The Chairman of the Board of Directors
allocates sufficient time for the Directors to consider each time of interest of the agenda and allow them
to discuss, inquire and express opinions freely on the items of interest so that they can fulfill their
duties to the best of their abilities.

The composition of the Board Committees as of 30 June, 2022 and the attendance of Directors at the
Board

meetings held in 2021-2022 are as follows:

Names Designation Board Participation
Mr. Javed Opgenhaffen Chairman 7 AT
Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen Managing Director 7 7/7
Mr. Sayeed Rezaral Ahmmad Nominee Director 7 77
Mr. Sadad Rahman Independent Director 7 7T
Mr. Md. Abu Zafer Independent Director 7 707

DEFERRED TAX

We have calculated the deferred tax as per IAS-12 on the basis of difference of respective year's
carrying value between the Tax base and the accounting base of "Property, Plant and Equipment’s",
Similarly, we have also calculated the deferred tax liahility which has shown in the note no, 16 of
audited financial statements for the vear ended 30 June, 2022,

PROVISION FOR WORKERS PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND (WPPF) AND WELFARE FUND
The management is aware about the inconvenience in payment of Bangladesh Workers' Welfare
Foundation Fund and it's assured that it will be paid within due time in future,

[AS PER SECTION 99 OF THE BANGLADESH LABOUR ACT 2006 AND AS AMENDED, THE FOLLOWING
IS REQUIRED "IN THE ESTABILISHMENTS WHERIN MINIMUM OF 100 PERMANENT WORKERS ARE
EMPLOYMENT, MUST INTRODUCE GROUP INSURANCE MANNAR PRESCRIBED BY RULES.” HOWEVER,
DURING THE YEAR, THE COMPANY RENEW THE GROUP INSURANCE FOR ITS PERMANENT
EMPLOYEE'S DESPITE OF EMPLOYING MORE THAN 100 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES. THIS INDICATES
COMPLIANCE OF THE AFOREMENTIONED SECTION OF THE BANGLADESH LABOUR ACT 2006 AS
AMENDED.]

COMPANYS PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL RESULT

The company has posted a consolidated net profit after tax amount to Tk. 613,388,234 | sixty-one crore
thirty-three lakh eighty-eight thousand two hundred thirty-four Taka] in the yvear ended 30 June 2022
which has increased than the last yvear, Last vear it was Tk 577,238,046 | fifty-seven crores seventy-two
lakh thirty-eight thousand forty-six taka]

Particulars 2022 2021 I 2020 I 2019

Met profit for the vear before TAX & WPPF a4 182 B56 680,200 092 | 618,923,889 HB2 213,362

Add: Retained eamings upto last yvear 1,735,604.577 1,401.961.,746 | 1,323.624,611 794 355847
: 2,489,787,433 | 2,092,260,638 |  1,942,548,500 |  1,376,569,209_

Less: Contribution o WPPF 35.913.469 32.871,385 | 20,472 566 27,714,448
| Profit available for appropriation taka 2,453,873,964 | 2,059,389,453 | 1,913,075934 | 1,348,854,763

Proposed Appropriation
| Provision for income TAX. 141,031,340 74,156,482 | 153165425 | 35305 528
| Stock Dividend 243,432,000 225,400,000 | 367,500,000 245,000,000
| Retained Earnings 2,013,882 787 1,735,604 577 1,401.961,748 1,323,624 611

2,398,356,127 2,035161,059 | 1,922,627,171 1,603,950,139

| Cash Dividend 44 B831,885.00 41,511,004 33.256.131 122,500,000

As mentioned in the earlier paragraph the company has posted a consolidated net profit after tax
amount to Tk 613,388,234 | sixty-one crore thirty-three lakh elghty-eight thousand two hundred
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thirty-four Taka] in the year ended 30 June 2022 which has increased than the last year. Last year it
was Tk 577,238,046 [ fifty-seven crores seventy-two lakh thirty-cight thousand forty-six taka].
considering the above factors, the board has opted recommending @8% stock dividend (one bonus
share for every ten share held) and 2% cash dividend for the year 2021-2022 to the general
shareholders only to be distributed subject to approval of the 215t Annual General Meeting,

DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT

As per the Articles of Association of the Company Independent Director, Sadad Rahman and
Independent Director, Md. Abu Zafer shall retire in the 21 Annual General Meeting by rotation and
being eligible for re- election. The Board of Directors has recommended to re-appoint them as Directors
of the Company on January 31, 2023.

ENVIRONMENTY HELTH AND SAFETY

We at §. 5. Steel Limited recognize that Environmental Issues have become critical challenge globally.
We are committed to contributing towards “Leaving a beautiful planet as a legacy to future
generations”. For achieving this, we believe that we need to work in harmony with the nature;
recognize the environmental impact related to our business activities & products and undertake
protection of environment through technologically and ecanomically feasible goals within our scope.
We are committed towards conservation of natural resources by their responsible and efficient use in
our operations. We are also committed to continual improvement in environmental performance and
complying with environmental legislations and requirements.

We are providing appropriate training to employees to enhance their awareness and commitment to
environmental protection. Our environmental policy is communicated to all our employees, business
associates and made available to the public.

Ensuring healthy and safe working environment for employees and contractors is one of the most
important issues for the Electrical Cables industry. 5. 5. Stee! Limited takes all possible measures to
ensure that all its employees as well as communities within which it operates remain safe at all times,
Moreover, we follow zero tolerance in sacrificing our community's health issues as well as are part of
the society.

CEO & CFOS DECLARATION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chief Executive Office and Chief Financial Officer are of the opinion that Financial Statements given
on page. 57 of this report present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs.

HUMAN RESOURCES

A dynamic business environment requires having a well-trained work force; therefore, the company
develops the appropriate management skills to suit the business environment. Various training
programs and workshops were carried out during the year. The management and employee
relationship in the company was excellent throughout the year,

WHISTLEBLOWING

Whistleblowing is the term used when a worker passes on information concerning wrongdoing.
Whistle- blowing is the act of telling the authorities or the public that the organization you are working
for is deing something immaoral or illegal.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

Corporate governance is a system by which companies are directed and controlled. To ensure thy spirit
of the corporate governance with accountahility, for inspiring conlidence of investors, regulators and
other stakeholders, 5. 5. Steel Limited is committed to comply with all the requirements of corporate
governance as required by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). S. 5. Steel
Limited believes that enriched corporate povernance contributes to the long-term success of a
company and creates trust and engagement between the company and its stakeholder's.

It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary, being the highest governance official in the Company,
to ensure elective compliance of rules and regulations in this respect. 5. S, Steel Ltd. always strives for
maximizing its shareholders value and benefit as a part of corporate policy. For this reason, the
Company is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance, The Company's
Corporate Governance Framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner
that is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honest, reliability, transparency and
accountahility.

It is our pleasure to conlirm that the Company has complied with all the necessary guidelines under
BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/B0dated 3 June 2018. The Compliance
Report along with the necessary remarks and disclosures is appended in this Annual Report for the
vear 2020-2021., The Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines as provided by "Atik
Khaled Chowdhury”, Chartered Secretaries is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

Ashral Uddin & Co. Chartered Accountants is the statutory auditor of the Company for the year of
2021-22. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co, Chartered Accountants appointed by the Board of Directors for
the yvear of 2022-2023 with the remuneration of Tk, 700,000 (Seven Lac only} and request the
shareholders to approve the appointment. However, they have expressed their willingness to be
appointed for the vear 2022-2023.

AKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The performance of 5. 5. Steel Limited in 2021-202Z, ever with many challenges confronted
demonstrates the determination of the Board, Management and the people in the Company. The
outstanding achievement of the year is more than a tribute to the countless brand users of the
Company and its numerous stakeholders, It is a very promising sign that the Steel industry has become
one of the leading industries in the country. The outstanding performance and achievement of the year
is more than a tribute to the countless brand users of the Company and its numerous shareholders. The
Members of the Board would like to place on record their high appreciation to the valued shareholders
and all other stakeholders of the Company for their persistent support and guidance. The Board of the
Company would like to thank each and every customer for their continued support and for making
Company brands their preferred choices.

The Board also recognizes that its journey and accomplishments during the year was possible because
of the cooperation, positive support and guidance that it received from the Government of Bangladesh,
particularly the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Commerce, Ministry of Labor and Employment,
Mational Board of Revenue, Board of Investment, Bangladesh Investment Development Authority,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Stock Exchanges and other numerous stakeholders.
The Board would also like to appreciate the support from 5. 5. Steel Limited ‘s bankers, Bangladesh
Bank insurers and financial institutions, vendeors, the press and media, business partners and all our
employees. The Board offers its utmost gratefulness to them.

We are proud of you all and look forward to your continued support as we walk topether to take 5. 5,
Steel Limited forward as a leading player in Bangladesh's business community.

Ean \

-ﬁ{ / ty/
Md. Mostafizur Rahman Javed Opgenhaffen
Company Secretary
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The economy of Bangladesh is a developing market economy. It's the 35" largest in the world in
nominal terms, and 30" largest by purchasing power parity; it is classified among the Next Eleven
emerging market middle income economies and a frontier market. In the first guarter of 2021,
Bangladesh's was the world's seventh fastest growing economy with a rate of 7.3' real GDP annual
growth. Dhaka and Chittagong are the principal financial centers of the country, being home to the
Dhaka Stock Exchange and the Chittagong Stock Exchange, The financial sector of Bangladesh is the
second largest in the Indian subcontinent. Bangladesh is one of the world's fastest growing economies.

In the decade since 2004, Bangladesh averaged a GDP growth of 6.5%, that has been largely driven by
its exports of readymade garments, remittances and the domestic agricultural sector. The country has
pursued export-oriented industrialization, with its key export sectors include textiles, shipbuilding, fish
and seafood, jute and leather goods, It has also developed self-sufficient industries in pharmaceuticals,
steel and food processing. Bangladesh's telecommunication industry has witnessed rapid growth over
the years, receiving high investment from foreign companies. Bangladesh also has substantial reserves
of natural gas and is Asia's seventh largest gas producer. Offshore exploration activities are increasing
in its maritime territory in the Bay of Bengal. It also has large deposits of limestone. The government
promotes the Digital Bangladesh scheme as part of its efforts to develop the country's growing
information technology sector.

Global growth is expected to moderate from 59 in 2021 to 4.4 percent in 2022—half a percentage
paint lower for 2022 than in the October World Economic Outlook (WEQ), largely reflecting forecast
markdowns in the twao largest economies. A revised assumption removing the Build Back Better fiscal
policy package from the baseline, earlier withdrawal of monetary accommodation, and continued
supply shortages produced a downward 1.2 percentage-points revision for the United States. In China,
pandemic-induced disruptions related to the zero-tolerance COVID-19 policy and protracted financial
stress among property developers have induced a 0.8 percentage-point downgrade, Global growth is
expected to slow to 3.8 percent in 2023.

The global economy is projected to grow 6.0 percent in 2021 and 4.9 percent in 2022.The 2021 global
forecast is unchanged from the April 2021 WEO, but with offsetting revisions. Prospects for emerging
market and developing economies have been marked down for 2021, especially for Emerging Asia. By
contrast, the forecast for advanced economies is revised up. These revisions reflect pandemic
developments and changes in policy support. The 0.5 percentage-point upgrade for 2022 derives
largely from the forecast upgrade for advanced economies, particularly the United States, reflecting the
anticipated legislation of additional fiscal support in the second half of 2021 and improved health
metrics more broadly across the group.

Global economic activity is experiencing a broad-based and sharper-than-expected slowdown, with
inflation higher than seen in several decades. The cost-of-living crisis, tightening financial conditions in
most regions, Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, and the lingering COVID-19 pandemic all weigh heavily on
the outlook. Global growth is forecast to slow from 6.0 percent in 2021 to 3.2 percent in 2022 and 2.7
percent in 2023, This is the weakest growth profile since 2001 except for the global financial crisis and
the acute phase of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Global inflation is forecast to rise from 4.7 percent in 2021 to 8.8 percent in 2022 but to decline to 6.5
percent in 2023 and to 4.1 percent by 2024. Monetary policy should stay the course to restore price
stability, and fiscal policy should aim to alleviate the cost-of-living pressures while maintaining a
sufficiently tight stance aligned with monetary policy. Structural reforms can further support the fight
against inflation by improving productivity and easing supply constraints, while multilateral
cooperation is necessary for fast-tracking the green energy transition and preventing fragmentation.
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How ADB sees South Asian economies' growth @
feal GDP growth rate
= 2022 w2023
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Note: Yeors represent fiscal years of respective countries

RISK AND CONCERNS ISSUES RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has exposure to the Credit Risk, Liguidity Risk and Market Risk arising from the financial
statements. The detail explanation of risk and concerns along with the Risk Management Framework
are explained in the Page no. 89 in this annual report. The Company has taken sufficient steps and
controls effectively consistently round the year to mitigate the risk and concerns.

FUTURE FOR COMPANY'S OPERATION, PERFORMANCES AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Company has taken all sorts viable plans, strategy and vision to continue the operations of the
company for probable future including Inflation and uncertainty. This is relevant to share that company
maintains a periodic action plans along with mid-term and long-term strategies to maintain the
sustainability in its performances and financial position.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The company has carried no transactions with related parties in during the year,

\ Gpapr-L—

Javed Opgenhaffen Hasna Opgenhaffen
Chairman Managing Director
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and financial statements in accordance
with the Companies Act 1994, Securities and Exchange Commission Rules 1987, International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and other applicable laws and regulations. In addition to the directors’
report, the Directors are declaring following additional statements to the best of their knowledge as
complied and maintained for the international financial year under review:

«The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present a true and fair view of
the Company state of affairs, result of its operation, cashflows and changes in equity;

«Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

sAppropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial Statements and
Accountingestimates are reasonable and prudent.

«The Financial Statements were prepared and presented in accordance with International Accounting
Standards (IAS] and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

*The Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company present a true and fair views
of the Company.

«The whole business operation is being conducted in accordance with the rules, regulations, laws,
agreements, standards and guidelines governing in the country.

#There are no doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern and the annual
accounts have been prepared as a going concern basis.

=All the judgements and decisions taken by management are rational and prudent.

Gpapr-l—

Hasna Opgenhaffen

Chairperson 2 g E 1 A Managing Director

Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad

Q‘Q‘R Nominated Director /M;‘H

Sadad Rahman Md. Abu Zafer
Independent Director Independent Director

laved Opgenhaffen
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2021-2022

The Board Directors are collectively responsible to shareholders of the Company for its performance
and for the organization’s governance frameworks, its value system and its strategies. The Company
believes in adopting the best practices in the area of Corporate Governance and follows the principles
of transparency and accountability, thereby protecting the interests of its shareholders, Corporate
Governance is a system by which companies are directed and controlled. S. §. Steel Ltd. being a
renowned Company, believes that its strategic desires and the country’s social objectives are mutually
inclusive and accordingly follows a governing policy that recognizes communal responsibility over its
marketable interest. The principal characteristics of corporate governance are transparency,
independence, responsibility, fairness, and responsibility for the society.

S. 5. Steel Ltd. is always conscious about the corporate governance which ultimately helps to win
stakeholders' confidence. The good governance process provides transparency of corporate policies,
strategies and the decision-making process. It is also strengthening internal control systems and helps
in building relationships with all stakeholders. The Board ensures the integrity and commitment of its
employees, supported by a comprehensive framework of policies, guidelines and internal controls. In
this Statement of Corporate Governance, we believe to provide insights to the shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders on the corporate governance initiatives in the Company. We also believe in
transparency and commit ourselves to adhere to good corporate governance practices in all times.

The Company is managed and operated under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors of 5. S. Steel Ltd., being the supreme authority in the Company, believes in ensuring the
highest standards of Corporate Governance as it will serve to reinforce the Company’s sustainability,
organizational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the organization. As we
know that the Board of 5 S, Steel Ltd. is the most prominent board in the country because it is
constituted by a galaxy of very resourceful persons, combined with Engineers and Professional
Accountants and also includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of the Company.
To further ensure a balanced representation, the Board also includes Independent Directors, who are
enlightened members of the society. The Board of Directors of the Company remains committed to high
standards of governance in cultivating a responsible organization, that adopts and practices in
accordance with the principles and recommendations of the Corporate Governance Guidelines of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and the Company’s own governing Principles.
The Board recoghizes that maintaining good corporate ethics is critical to business integrity and
performance, and key to delivering shareholders’ value. The corporate governance is essential for the
long-term performance and sustainability of our Company, and to protect and enhance the interests of
our shareholders and other stakeholders.

Our governance framework plays an integral role in supporting our businesses and helping us to
deliver on our strategy. It provides the structure through which our strategy and business objectives
are set, our performance in monitored, and the risks we face are managed. It includes a clear
framework for decision making and accountability across our business and provides guidance on the
standards of behavior we expect from our people, The Company is dedicated and committed to
managing its business responsibly amongst a challenging environment for the steels industry and the
awards and achievements that the Company has received are testimony of such dedication and
commitment. We always try to review regularly or governance arrangements as well as developments
in market practice, expectations and regulation to establish good governance in our organization. We
can consider good governance in the following ways:
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5. 8. Steel Lrd. Corporate Governance Frameworks has been developed and enhanced based on the
basic principles and best practices outlined in the following:

e Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) MNotification on Corporate

Governance;

* The Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws & regulations of Bangladesh;

* Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;

e Laws of the land:

» Standards of Business Conduct, Policies and Guidelines of the Company;

¢ Statement of Risk Management Internal Control of the Company;

s Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company; and

s Local and global best practices.

The Board also continuously reviews its corporate governance frameworks to ensure its relevance,
effectiveness and sustain- ability in addressing future business challenges.

The corporate governance framewaork of 5. 8. Steel Ltd. is directed towards achieving the Company’s
business objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with the laws, rules,
regulations, corporate governance codes, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company
constantly exercises good Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-
defined shareholders "rights and Board commitments.

The Board of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. believes that good governance is essential in pursuing its business
objectives. The fundamentals of good governance are corporate compliance to the various laws, rules
and regulations. Compliance helps build trust among the Board Members, Shareholders, Customers and
other stakeholders including the regulators. As leaders of a compliant company, the Management Team
of 5. 5. Steel Ltd, adopted strategies that assure compliance with all relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. This ensures that good governance cascades right throughout the company. 5. 5. Steel
Ltd. is subject to close monitoring process of regulatory bodies that focus on transparency and require
that 8. 5. Steel Ltd. provides accurate and periodic reporting of issues/events and certification where
necessary, In this context, the Company regularly provides a complete set of financial statements and
relevant documents to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock
Exchange Ltd, Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd., National Board of Revenue (NBR), Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies & Firms (RJSC) and all other relevant bodies and authorities. The Company also takes
various initiatives to conduct awareness sessions on existing and proposed laws to ensure compliance
throughout the company. Overall, 5. 8, Steel Ltd. has always tried to remain-a fully compliant company
accommodating every possible way and strategy to ensure the same.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 5 (Five) Directors. Namely JavedOpgenhaffen
(Chairman), HasnaOpgenhaffen (Managing Director), Sayeed RezarajAhmmad (Nominated Director),
Sadad Rahman (Independent Director), Md. Abu Zatar {Independent Director).
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PRACTICESOF THEBOARD
The responsibilities of the Board of Directors are mainly related to evaluation and development of
strategy. The Board is Responsible to the shareholders for overall success of the Company for its
strategic directlons, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the
Company to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also
discharging the Company’s obligations to its shareholders, The Board shall determine the vision,
mission of the Company and also determine the strategy and work planning for enhancement of
effectiveness and efficiency. The composition of the Board complies with the requirements outlined in

the BSEC Guidelines on Corporate Governance, the Listing Regulations and those of the generally
applied codes of best practices.

The Company always complies with the regulations of the regulatory authorities regarding
appointment of directors. BSEC notifications and Companies Act are strictly followed in this regard. 5. 5.
Steel Ltd. does not have its own and separate policy on appointment of Directors, except for the very
first Board. As per the Companies Act, 1994, Directors are subject to retirement. At least one-third of
the Directors shall retire by rotation in every AGM. As per the Companies Act 1994, a Director may be
appointed for a period of three years and the term may be extended for another three years. The
Company shall follow all relevant rules and regulations of the respective regulatory bodies in case of
nomination, removal and casual vacancy of the directors,

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director of 5. 5.
Steel Ltd. were filled by different individuals, The Chairman was elected from among the directors of
the Company. The Managing Director and CEO was also appointed by the Board which was done at the
time of formation of the Company. The Board of Directors has clearly defined respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer as per Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Chairman of the company shall be elected by the Board of Directors from among the directors of
the company and the Board considers the Chairman being independent.

«The Chairman’s responsibility is defined by the Board as directed by BSEC's notification on Corporate
Governance Guidelines,

*The Chairman presides over meetings of the Board and Company (AGM) and ensures good Corporate
Governance in the conducts of the Board and Company.

«As Chairman of the Board of Directors [or Chairman of any Committee formed by the Board), does nat
persomally possess the jurisdiction to apply policy making or executive authority, he does not
participate in or interfere into the administration or operational and routine affairs of the Company.
oThe Chairman ensures that the Board is functioning in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company as well as other applicable laws,

*The Chairman maintains relations with the relevant stakeholders in consultation with the Board as
well as the Managing Director, representing the Company as a good/responsible corporate citizen,
#The Chairman may assume any responsibility if the Board assigns within the purview of the relevant
Rules, Regulations, Acts and Articles.
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The position of a Managing Director in a company is crucial as this position will involve the most senior
level responsibilities of the organization. Managing directors are the head of the business group and
they are the decision-making body of the company. He has the responsibility of running the entire
organization and also taking all important decisions for the company. Hence the managing director of a
company should be experienced, confident and skilled professional who has good leader- ship qualities.
»A managing director strives to chart blueprint policies for the company and implements them for the
betterment of the employees and the company.

«The Managing Director is responsible for driving business operations, leading the development and
execution of the Company’s long-term strategies with a view to creating shareholder value,

*The Managing Director's leadership role also entails being ultimately responsible for all day-te-day
management decisions and for implementing the Company’s long and short-term plans.

«The Managing Director acts as a direct liaison between the Board and Management of the Company
and communicates to the Board on behalf of the Management.

»The Managing Director also communicates on behalf of the Company to the shareholders, employees,
Government authorities, other stakeholders and the public,

«Develop strategies to boost sales and profits of the company and plan the future prospects of the
company.

Mr. Sadad Rahman and Md. Abu Zafar has appointed by the Board of Directors as Independent
Directors. The re-appointment of Mr. sadad Rahman and Md. Abu Zafar, Independent Director
approved by the shareholders in the 215 Annual General Meeting 2021-2022.

Mr. Sadad Rahman has completed MBA, from City College University of London, UK. After he
completion his academic career he started services different types of sectors, Also, he received various
types training from different institutions. Mot only he is the Independent Director of 5. . Steel Limited
but he is also Managing Director of Rangpur Distilleries & Chemicals Limited &Nominee Director of Fu-
Wang Ceramic Industry Limited and Director of the Saleh Steel Industries Limited and Al-Falah Steel
and Re-Rolling Mills Limited.

Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, son of Late Md. Abdul Aziz appointed as Independent Director in the Board
meeting held on 23 March 2019. Not only he is the Independent Director of 5. S, Steel limited but he is
also Independent Director of Fu-Wang Ceramic Industry Limited. He is a member of Advocate of the
Supreme Court of Bangladesh and the Honorable Society of Gray’s Inn. London.

Both the independent directors have significant experience in finance and accounting. All the
Independent Directors are” financially literate” as defined by the corporate governance guidelines.

The Board of Directors is appointed to act on behalf of the shareholders to run the day-to-day affairs of
the business. The board are directly accountable to the shareholders and each year the company will
hold an annual general meeting (AGM]) at which the directors must provide a report to shareholders on
the performance of the company, what its future plans and strategies are and also submit themselves
for re-election to the board.

«Determine the company's vision and mission to guide and set the pace for its current operations and
future development,
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s*Formulating the long-term strategics of the Company and setting the goals and direction for the
Company.

sReview and evaluate present and future opportunities, threats and risks in the external environment
and current and future strengths, weaknesses and risks relating to the company.

sReviewing and approving the un-audited quarterly financial statements.

sReviewing Company's risk assessment and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage
those risks.

«Overseeing the conduct and performance of the Company.

«Providing the leadership necessary to ensure that the husiness objectives set out by the Board are met
within the frame- work of internal controls, as described in this Statement,

»Other key duties for the Board includes approving financial statements, appropriation of profit,
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company's internal control systems and ensuring
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, directives and guidelines of various regulators.
sEnsure that communications both to and from shareholders and relevant stakeholders are effective.
sUnderstand and take into account the interests of shareholders and relevant stakeholders,

s«Monitor relations with shareholders and relevant stakeholders by gathering and evaluation of
appropriate information.

sPromote the goodwill and support of shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board is guided by the regulations contained in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Companies Act, 1994; relevant
applicable regulations, BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance, Listing Regulations, Company's Standards
of Business Conduct, Business Principles, Statement of Delegated Authorities, and other pgenerally
accepted corporate best practices,
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also constituted a few Committees for quicker and efficient flow of information and
thereby exercising effective governance and has delegated certain responsibilities to the Committees to
assist the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. There are four such Committees, to which the
Board has delegated certain responsibilities, These are:

1. Board Audit Committee

2. Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

4, Executive Committee

Each of the above-mentioned committee strictly adheres to a set of Terms of Reference (TOR)
approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities are clearly defined in the
TOR which is regularly reviewed by the Board. There is an evaluation process regarding performance
of Audit and CSR committees which facilitates in achieving certain governance objectives. The key
functions of these committees are as follows:

1. BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors to effectively carry on its
responsibilities relating to financial and other relevant affairs of the Company. The Committee is
empowered to monitor, review and examine the followings:

=(versee the financial reporting process;

sMonitor implementation/following the accounting policies and principles;

sMonitor Internal Control Risk Management Process;

sOversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

=Review zlong with the management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

*Review along with the management, the Quarterly and Half Yearly Financial Statements (if any) before
submission to the Board for approval;

sReview the adequacy of Internal Audit team performance in terms of internal audit report;

sReview statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management;

sReview Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors;

«When money is raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO)/Repeat Public Offering (RPO)/Rights
Issue, the company shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses/applications of funds by major
category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly
basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results. Further on an annual basis, the
company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the
offer document,/prospectus,

The members of the Board Audit Committee are as follows:

Name Designation
Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director Chairman
- Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director Member
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director Member
Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary Member Secretary
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The Remuneration Committee has been established to assist the Board in developing and
administering a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy on the remuneration of directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages and to review
and oversee the Company’s overall human resources strategy.

The Committee is empowered to perform, monitor, review and examine the followings:

*Determine the remuneration of the Company's Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, the
Chairman, the Manager, HRM, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary;

*Review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy;

sApprove the design of, and determine targets for any performance related schemes and annual
payments made under such schemes;

*Review the design of all new long-term schemes and significant changes to such schemes for approval,
in each case, by the Board and shareholders,

sDetermine the total individual remuneration package of each Executive Director, the Company
Secretary and the Chairman including bonuses, incentive payments and any compensation payments;
«Monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior management;

s(versee any major changes in emplovee benefits structures throughout the Company;

sReview the policy for authorizing claims for expenses from the Managing Director, Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman;

»Ensure that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration;

«Review of the Remuneration Committee's performance;

sreview of and proposed amendment to the terms of reference;

sapproval of the Directors' remuneration report

+Be responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing and setting the terms of
reference for any remuneration consultants who advise the Remuneration Committee; and

*Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in other companies, with a view to
judging where to position the Company relative to other companies. The Remuneration Committee
shall have full authority to commission any reports or surveys which it deems necessary to help it fulfill

its obligations.
The members of the board nomination & remuneration committee are as follows:

Name | Designation |
Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director Chairman |
Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director Member
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director Member

Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary Member Secretary
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The Board of 5. §. Steel Ltd. has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as a sub-
committee of the Board. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is crore to the Responsibility strategy of
the Company. It is an essential to the business sustainability and enhancement of leng-term
shareholders value. The Company identifies that it has a role to play in helping society to achieve the
necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social progress as
well. The purpose of the formation of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure management of the
Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability, and create positive impact on
image and reputation of the Company amongst the society and the stakeholders.

The members of the Board Remuneration Committee are as follows:

] Name Designation [
| Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director Chairman |
| Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen, Managing Director Member |
| Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director Member |
| Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director Member

| Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary Member Secretary

4. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board is duly assisted by the functional heads of the Company, namely the Executive Committee,
The Managing Director leads the Executive Committee which comprises of the following heads of
organizational functions:

The Executive Committee is devolved with the responsibility of executing the policies and decisions of
the Board, control the operations as well as developing, organizing and implementing business and
corporate strategies. Usually, the Executive Committee meets monthly to implement the Company's
strategy and ensure effective day-to-day operations in line with the Company plan.

The members of the Board Executive Committee are as follows:

| Name Designation
' Ms. Hasna Opgenhalfen Managing Director
| Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad | Director
_Mr Engr. Md. DelwarIIuss:_am EUET [MME] MBA Executive Director
[ Mr. Md, Mostafizur Rahman I Céh’lp‘aﬂ}; Sgélheﬁrry
| | Mr. :-?yed Muhammad Rezaul Hnt'.ljje i .Fhlef Financial Officer
| Mr, Mohammed Shahjahan Chowdhury Chief Marketing Officer
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The Board of Directors holds meeting on a regular basis. The management provides information,
references and details working papers for each item onthe agenda to all the Directors well ahead of
time fixed for the Board of Directors Meeting for Consideration. The Chairman of the Board of Directors
allocates sufficient time for the Directors to consider each time of interest of the agenda and allow them
to discuss, inquire and express opinions freely on the items of interest so that they can fulfill their
duties to the best of their abilities.

The composition of the Board Committees as of 30 June, 2020 and the attendance of Directors at the
Board meetings held in 2021-2022 are as follows:

Names Designation Board Participation
Mr.Javed Opgenhaffen Chairman 7 7/7
Ms.Hasna Opgenhaffen Managing Director 7 7/7
Mr.SayeedRezaraj Ahmmad Nominee Director 7 7/7
MrSadad Rahman Independent Director 7 7/7
Mr.Md.Abu Zafer Independent Director 7 7/7
EXTERNAL / STATUTORY AUDIT

Appointment of the Statutory Auditor is regulated by the Companies Act 1994 and by the Securities &
Exchange Rules 1987, On the basis of suggestion of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends
appointment of an auditor, which is approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
Along with the appointment, the Shareholders also fix the remuneration of the auditors. Under the
BSEC order, a Statutory Auditor can continue in office for maximum three consecutive years. From a
corporate governance perspective, 5. 5. Steel Ltd. maintains complete and thorough independence of
the Statutery Auditors. The Audit Committee meets with the statutory auditors to ensure that the
auditors are acting independently and reviews the financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.

Ashraf Uddin & Co. Chartered Accountants was the External/Statutory Auditor of the Company for the
year of 2021-2022. They carry out systematic examination of books and records of the Company and
ascertain, verify and report upon the facts regarding the financial operation and the results of the
Company. To comply with the corporate governance properly, the company did not engage its statutory
auditors to perform the following services: -

eAppraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions.

sFinancial information systems design and implementation.

sBook-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements,
sBroker-dealer services.

*Actuarial services.

sInternal audit services.

«Any other service that the Audit Committee determines.

«No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the company they audit
at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company.

Apart from the statutory audit, in order to ensure full and complete regulatory discharge, Compliance
Audit is also done by the firm of "Atik Khaled Chowdhury, Chartered Accountants"This is a licensed
practicing professional who certifies, on the basis of his audit, that the Company has duly complied
with all the regulatory requirements as stipulated by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC).
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The Company prepares financial statements with adeguate disclosures in accordance with the
International Accounting Standards (IAS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the
Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and
regulations. In order to prepare the financial statements, the management is responsible for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. Once prepared, the financial statements are reviewed by CEQ and Finance Director and
then by the Audit Committee on regular basis. The external auditors are also attended in the Audit
Committee meetings to review the quarterly financial statements as prepared in accordance with
International Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Company policies,

After that the Board reviews the [inancial statements of the Company at the end ol every quarter. The
quarterly financial statements along with the notes are published on the two daily newspapers as well
as the Company's website. On an annual basis, the Directors prepared the Directors’ Report as a part of
the Annual Report which discloses the financial performance as well as nonfinancial information
regarding company growth, productivity, responsibilities and other information in compliance with
BSEC Notification.

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited:

"Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited [AFSRML), a subsidiary company of 5 5. Steel Limited was
incorporated on 4th April 2005, {incorporation no. C-56521{3204),/05) by the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies and Firms under the Companies Act, 1994, The registered office of the company is located
at 84, Shahid Nazrul Islam Sarani, Zamal Iron Building, Dhaka-1100. In an extraordinary general
mecting held on 20th February 2022 the board of directors decided to make an equity investment in
AFSRML with a view to subscribe 99% of its existing equity shares amounting Tk, 87,46 crore, AFSRML
was acquired by 5. 5. Steel Limited on 5th March 2022, Consequently, the new management took the
control over the company on the same date. Objective of the acquisition was to accelerate consolidated
production of the company. AFSEML is a reputed steel industry in Bangladesh, engaged in the
production of and selling of steel by its brand name and has capacity of around 64,800 metric ton per
annum",

Saleh Steel Industries Limited:

"Saleh Steel Industries Ltd. also subsidiary company of 5. 5. 5teel Limited was incorporated as a private
limited company vide certificate of incorporation no. C-5953(511)/1978 dated 11th March 1978, by
the Registrar of Joint Stoclk Companies and Firms under the Companies Act, 1994, The registered office
of the company is located at 85/R and 86/R, Nasirabad, Industrial Area, Chittagong. Saleh Steel is
acquired by 5. 5. Steel in 2020 with an objective to enhance its total production capacity, Saleh Steel is
engaged in manufacture and sales of M.5. Deformed Bar of various grades (300w /40 Grade, 400w /60
Grade and 500w/ TMT] from M.5. Billet, Ingot, Angles, Channels, Tees and all kinds of M5, Structures
under are-rolling mills. The Company produce M.5. Billets from scrap. The company has an annual
production capacity of 86,000 metric ton.”

@it
Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hoque
Chief Financial Officer

Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hoque - He has got B.Sc. (Hons) and M.Sc. Certificate from Chemistry
Discipline under the National University of Bangladesh. After that, he enrolled in ICMAB and had
2 hundred marks remaining from getting a certificate. He is responsible for the Accounts and
Financial activities of the company. The Board of Directors clearly defined the respective rules,
responsibilities, and duties of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO).
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Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman is the Company Secretary of S. S, Steel Ltd, He did his Masters of Finance
and Banking from the National University of Bangladesh and now he has been studying in the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). He started his career in the year 2012 in the Innovo
Design and Construction Limited as an Executive Accounts before joining S. S. Steel Limited. At present
he is the company secretary of 5, 5. Steel Limited, He is directly involved with capital market
operations. He has vast experience to work with BSEC, NBR, DSE, CSE, RJSC and other stakeholders
related with capital market. He is responsible for the necessary link and liaison with the internal
organs, as well as external agencies, and also to ensure effective collection, compilation and timely flow
of information to and from the Board.

"Secretary” means any individual possessing the prescribed gualifications appointed to perform the
duties which may be performed by a secretary under this Act and any other ministerial or
administrative duties. The Company Act. 1994 has accorded statutory recognition to the function of
Company Secretary. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) has brought into force through their
notification that all the listed company should appoint Company Secretary and the Board of Director of
the Company should clearly define the role, responsibilities and duties of the Company Secretary.

This is a perfect appreciation of the position and has been necessitated by the fact that a well-managed
corporate secretary at under the charge and control of Company Secretary helps in ensuringproper
management of the board affairs and well-being of the company's shareholders and compliance with
the statutes as well. However, appointment of the Company Secretary taking place under the
appointment policy of the Company, which is finally gets approval of the Board of Directors of the
company. So, removal is also required the consent and approval of the Board.

The Board has appointed a Company Secretary in order to maintain the necessary link and liaison with
the internal organs, as well as external agencies, and also to ensure effective collection, compilation and
timely flow of information to and from the Board. The Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by
BSEC also require a listed company to appoint a Company Secretary. Being a governance official, the
Company Secretary drives for corporate compliance and provides support to the Chairman and other
members of the Board to ensure effective functioning of the Board. The Company Secretary organizes
and attends all Board and Committee meetings {Audit Committee and CSR Committee), and ensures
that deliberations onall issues are properly minute, decisions recorded and are duly communicated
across the respective authorities for necessary information/actionsThe Company Secretary is also
responsible for agreement signing, policies formulation, protection of the Company's land, Records
Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, administration of seven trust funds and its
portfolio investment management. The brief roles and responsibilities of the Company Secretary are as
under:

=Maintaining linkage between the Board, Management, Shareholders and other stakeholders on
matters of corporate interests in a transparent way.

 Driving policy compliance awareness among the Company employees.

«Performing the duties as per Power of Attorney and Board level stakeholders’ management facilitating
Legal and External Affairs (LEX) function especially for company secretarial matters.

«Compliance of the Acts, rules, regulations, notifications, guidelines, orders/directives, etc. as issued by
BSEC or Stock Exchange(s) applicable to the conduct of business activities of the Company so as to
protect the interests of the investors and other stakeholders.

sDisclosure of the Company's Price Sensitive Information (PS1) and other capital market related issues.

«Ensuring that appropriate Board procedures are followed as per given guidelines and best practices,
and advises the Board on matters as such.
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Mr. Poritos Roy is the Head of Internal Audit of 5. 5, Steel Ltd. he is responsible for internal control and
comphiance af the Company. The Board of Directars clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities
and duties of Head of Internal Audit.

EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES

The Board of Directors of S. 5. Steel Ltd. is ensuring effective control processes in the organization
through the Executive Committees of the Company. Executive Committee at the top management level
which plays a significant role in managing the business as per the norms of corporate governance and
ensures that adequate internal controls are in place and supported through a wvigorous risk
management,

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board is duly assisted by the functional heads of the Company, namely the Executive Committee,
The Managing Director leads the Executive Committee which comprises of the following heads of
prganizational functions:

! Name Designation |
Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen Managing Director _
| Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad _| Director r
_Mr_ Engr. .@E_.?_E]‘L"'i” E_I_n;.s_.'a_m BUET (MME), MBA | Executive Director :
[ !'ﬁr _h;ld iInst__aﬁzur R?ihman I_’__:_g;_npa_r_w ;Sec]éf:;r}r
Mr S}-'ecl Muhammad Rezaul anue Chief Financial Officer |
| Mr. Mohammed Shahjahan Chowdhury Chief Marketing Officer

The Executive Committee is devolved with the responsibility of executing the policies and decisions of
the Board, control the operations as well as developing, organizing and implementing business and
corporate strategies. Usually, the Executive Committee meets monthly to implement the Company's
strategy and ensure effective day-to-day operations in line with the Company plan.

INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS

The internal control system of the Company is considered at Board and Management levels to provide
reasonahle assurance regarding the achievement of the Company's objectives in respect of
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and management
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company's policies. The Company
has its own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee. The policies and guidelines
of internal control process of the Company are as follows:

s Establish Standards of Business Conduct

s Make accounts and finance policy.

s Provide policy for procurement.

+|T Security Policy

s5ales and Marketing policy

sRecords Management Policy

*Human resource management policy.

«Other policies and guidelines as required by the board.
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RISK CONTROL

The risk identification and mitigation of the risk is the main task of the risk management committee,
The Risk Management Committee at management level is headed by the head of finance and consists of
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk
management framework in the Company. The risk management committee reviews the business risk
and ensures that adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company
are then endorsed by the Executive Committee and then ratified by the Audit Committee as far as
effective risk management is concerned.

CRITICISMS AND COUNSELING

Criticism is the mainstream management control system with a view to highlighting its gaps and to
suggesting a direction for its future development. Since employee’s behavior affects work discipline, if
an employee is aggrieved about their personal employment position, they are encouraged to use the
Grievance procedure to raise the matter. From time-to-time human resources function also counsel's
employees. On the other hand, Business counseling, also known as business mentoring, is a highly
effective process that enables business owners and senior managers to work through, and explore
possibilities on the issues affecting their business.

ENSURE GOOD WORK ENVIRONMENT

Good work environment plays a large role in the ahility to provide quality work. By work environment,
we mean everything that forms part of employees’ involvement with the work itself, such as the
relationship with co-workers and supervisors, organizational culture, room for personal development,
etc. A positive work environment makes employees feel good about coming to work, and this provides
the motivation to sustain them throughout the day, The five characteristics which the Company ensures
for good work environment. These are:

*Transparent and open communication.

*Work-life balance.

*Training and Development focused.

=Recognition of Hard Work.

*Strong Team Spirit.

COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS & OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Company encourages communicating with the Shareholders throughout the vear and welcome
their participation in the Annual General Meeting ([AGM). The Directors appreciate the importance of
general shareholders of the Company and use the Company's AGM as further opportunities to
communicate with them. 5. S, Steel Ltd. ensures that all shareholders are informed at least 2 weelks
before the AGM so that all shareholders may attend on the day. Also, all other types of accounts
(Quarterly and Half-yearly) or information are updated on the website and notified to all stakeholders
on a duly and diligent basis. The Company tries to maintain liaison with all shareholders as much as
possible and ensures that all stakeholders are informed about the company's activities on a routine
basis.
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The share department of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. plays an instrumental role to make effective communication
with its Shareholders and Stakeholders. Shareholders and other Stakeholders of the Company may
contact to this department during office hour for any sort of information and queries. To effective and
efficient participation of shareholders in AGM, 5. S. Steel Ltd. publish notice of AGM in daily
newspapers with necessary details within reasonable time-frame. Annual report of the Company is
circulated as per the provision of Companies Act 1994, So, Shareholders get sufficient time to go
through the report and freely provide valuable comments and suggestions in the AGM.

5. 5. Steel Ltd. provides copies of the annual report in arder to ensure that these are made available to
them well in advance for detail and constructive discussion. It is the Company's policy to give the
shareholders the opportunity to ask questions about its activities and prospects at the AGM. The Board
also structures these meetings so that shareholders can vote separately on each matter, by proposing
separate resolutions for each item to be considered.

ENSURE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board of the Company ensures through the Company Secretary that all the shareholders of the
Company are treated equitably and ensures that the rights of all shareholders are equally protected.
Shareholders also generally enjoy the following types of rights:

sVoting rights on issues that affect the corporation as a whole

«Rights related to the assets of the corporation

«Rights related to the transfer of stock

=Rights to receive dividends as declared by the board of directors of the corporation

=Rights to inspect the records and books of the corporation

eHights to bring suit against the corporation for wrongful acts by the directors and officers of the
corporation.

«Rights to share in the proceeds recovered when the corporation liquidates its assets,

Although the Securities and Exchange Commission and other regulatory bodies attempt to enforce a
certain degree of shareholder rights, a well-informed investor who fully understands his or her rights is
much less susceptible to additional risks. In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary
acts as a bridge between the Sharehaolders and the Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the
standard services to its valued Shareholders ensuring the well-defined Shareholders'rights in
accordance with applicable laws and the Articles of Association of the Company.

-1 |
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors of 5. 5. Steels Ltd. also established a separate Code of Conduct for its Directors in
compliance with the reguirement of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission [BSEC)
notification.

CODE OF CONDUCT

(As per Condition no. | (7) of the Notification on Corporate Governance Code issued by the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission vide BSEC/CMRRCD/2006- ISB/207 /Admin/80 Dated: 3 June 20
181.

1.00 OVERVIEW
PREFACE

This Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer
(hereinafter referred to as "the Code") has been framed and adopted by S. 5. Steel Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company or 8. 5. Steel”) in compliance with the requirements of the Condition 1 (7)
of Corporate Governance Code Notification BSEC/CMRRC- D/2006-158/207 /Admin/80 Dated: 3 June
2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

This Code is intended to provide guidance to the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer to manage the affairs of the Company in an ethical manner. The purpose of this code
is to recognize and emphasize upon the ethical behavior and to develop a culture of honesty and
accountability.

This Code of Conduct attempts to set forth the guiding principles on which the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall operate and conduct themselves with the
stakeholders, government and regulatory agencies, employees, customers and suppliers and anyone
else with whom it is connected.

APPLICABILITY

This Code shall be applicable and binding on the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer
shall continue to comply with other applicable /to be applicable policies, rules and procedures of the
Company.

2.00DEFINITIONS & INTERPRETATION

Unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions, wherever used in this
Code, shall have the meaning assigned to them below:

“Board “shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company. "Directors "shall mean directers on the
Board.

"Company” shall mean 5. S. Steel Limited.

3.00 PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive officer of the Company shall act within the
authority conferred upon them, in the best interests of the Company and observe the [ollowing:
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*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall act honestly, ethically, in
good faith and inthe best interest of the Company,

=Whilst carrying out the duties, the Chairperson, other Beard members and Chief Executive Officer
shall ensure that it is executed in terms of the authorizations granted and within the limits prescribed
under the relevant policies, codes, guidelines and other directives issued by the Board of Directors of
the Company from tlme to time,

#The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall refrain from indulging in any
discriminatory practice or behavior based on race, color, sex, age, religion, ethnic or national origin,
disability or any other unlawful basis. The ethical conduct, performance and skills shall be the
qualifying indicatlves for an employee's performance.

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall conduct themselves in a
professional,courteous and respectful manner and shall not take any improper advantage of their
position.

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall use the Company’s assets,
property, proprietary information and intellectual rights for business purposes of the Company and not
for any personal benefits or gains.

CONFIDENTIALITY

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should conduct themselves so as
to meet the expectations of operational transparency of the stakeholders while at the same time
maintaining confidentiality of information in order to foster a culture conducive to good decision
making. "Confidential information” includes, amongst others, all information of the Company not
authorized by the management of the Company for public dissemination.

«All confidential information must be held in confidence, unless authorized by the Board or otherwise
permissible in accordance with this Code; or the same is part of the public domain at the time of
disclosure; or is required to be disclosed in accordance with applicable laws.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

* The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall not enter into any
transaction which is or may likely to have a conflict with the interest of the Company.

* The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should disclose to the board
whether they directly, indirectly or on behalf of third parties have a material interest in any
transaction or matter directly affecting the Company.

= All transactions having conflict of interest should be carried out in accordance with law and be
fully disclosed to the Board of Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chiel Executive Officer shall ensure compliance with the
various legal/- regulatory requirements as applicable to the business of the Company and endeavor
that before any directions are given or decisions taken, relevant legal/regulatory requirements are
taken inte account.
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PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

#The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall comply with all laws, rules,
and regulations governing trading in the shares of the Company and the Company's Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider Trading in dealing with the securities of the Company which, inter-alia, prohibits
buying or selling of the Company’s securities on the basis of any unpublished price sensitive
information and prohibits disclosure of such information to any other person (including relatives)
where such information may be used by such person for his or her personal benefit or gain,

+The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should comply with the provision
of the Companies Act, 1994 and applicable rules and regulations issued by the Bangladesh Securities
Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange, insofar as they relate to
prohibitions on insider trading.

RELATIONSHIP WITH ENVIRONMENT

sThe Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should cause the Company to
strive to provide a safe and healthy working environment and comply, in the conduct of the business
affairs of the Company, with all regulations regarding the preservation of the environment of the
industry it operates in.

sThe Company should be committed to prevent the wasteful use of natural resources and minimizing
any hazardous impact of the development, production, use and disposal of any of its products and
services on the ecological environment in accordance with the applicable laws.

RELATIONSHIP MTH EMPLOYEES

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should strive for causing the
Company to maintain cordial employee relations.

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should cause the Company to
build competency based human resource systems and maintain human resource policies that have
been directed at managing the growth of the organization efficiently.

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should assist the Company in
further aligning its human resource policies, processes and initiatives to meet its business needs.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should ensure that the Company is
committed to supply products and services of the highest quality standards backed by efficient after-
sales service consistent with the requirements of the customers to ensure their total satisfaction.

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should ensure that Company will
properly engage in product advertising, publicity, and sales promotion activities to avoid misleading
the customers.

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should ensure that the Company
will engage in free and open competition with competitors to maintain its stance as a company trusted
by customers and society.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

*This Code contains general requirements applicable to all suppliers to Company. Particular supplier
contracts may contain more specific provisions addressing some of these same issues. Nothing in this
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Code is meant to supersede any specific provision in a particular contract, and to the extent there is any
inconsistency between this Code and any other provision of a particular contract, the other provision
will prevail.

*The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should act in the best interest of
the Company. Accordingly, the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should
have no relationship, financial or otherwise, with any supplier that might conflict, or appear to conflict,
with the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer’s obligation to act in the best
interest of Company.

INDEPENDENCY

#The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should remain independent in all
material respects.

«The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer should act impartial to the
Employees, Customers, Suppliers, Shareholders and other Stakeholders.

4.00COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

This Code has not specifically addressed every potential form of unacceptable conduct and it is
expected that the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer will exercise good
judgment in compliance with the principles set out in this Code. The Chairperson, other Board
members and Chief Executive Officer have a duty to aveid any circumstances that would violate the
letter or spirit of the Code.

5.00 AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The provisions of this Code can be amended/ modified by the Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of the Nomi- nation and Remuneration Committee (NRC), from time to time and all
such amendments/ modifications shall take effect from the date stated therein. The Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall be duly informed of such amendments and
modifications.

6.00 PUBLICATION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to Condition 01(7) {b) of Corporate Governance Code Notification BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207 /Admin/80 Dated: 3 June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, this Code
of Conduct and any amendments thereto shall be published/posted on the website of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

Ethical business conduct and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are fundamental aspects
of 5. 5 Steel Ltd. To this end, the company established procedures to ensure compliance with all
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. The secretariat department is responsible for
ensuring proper compliance with applicable laws and regulations and this process is being followed by
the Company. "Atik Khaled Chowdhury, Chartered Accountants”, independent Corporate Governance
Compliance Auditor was appoeinted by the Board to conduct Corporate Compliance Certification as per
requirement of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (B5SEC),
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CONCLUSION

5. 5. Steel Ltd. ensured highest standards in corporate good governance and strict adherence to the
requirements of ethical code of conduct, through close monitoring. The Company recognizes that
corporate governance is a continuous process which is to be established, nurtured and excelled by
means of concerted efforts of all. And that is why the Company engages all its team in the process
because good governance entails managing the business professionally, effectively and responsibly and
in a way which is transparent, ethical, law abiding and ensures accountability. The Board is committed
to ensure the good corporate governance in the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
2021-2022
Dear Shareholders,

As a Chairman of the Audit Committee, | am delighted to place its report for the year ended 30 June,
2020 in front of vou all. The Audit Committee Report presented under condition # 3.5 of the BSEC
Guidelines provides an insight on the functions of the Audit Committee during 2021-2022. As
mentioned in the Compliance statement the Board has formed an Audit Committee, required under the
codes of Corporate Governance of BSEC with some specific assignments under its Term of Reference. In
accordance with the currently accepted Best Practice and Corporate Governance Guidelines adopted by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Board appointed Audit Commitiee
_comprises of the following:

Name | Paosition in the company | Position in the Committee
Mr. Sadad Rahman_ | Independent Director _Chairman
Mr. Md. Abu Zafer Independent Director Member
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad | Director Member
Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman | Company Secretary Member Secretary

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors to effectively carry on its
responsibilities relating to financial and other relevant affairs of the Company. The Committee is
empowered to monitor, review and examine the followings:

«Oversee the financial reporting process;

«Monitor implementation/following the accounting policies and principles;

sMonitor Internal Control Risk Management Process;

sOversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

«Review along with the management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

sReview along with the management, the Quarterly and Half Yearly Financial Statements (if any) before
submission to the Board for approval;

*Review the adequacy of Internal Audit team performance in terms of internal audit report;

sReview statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management;

=Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors;

*When money is raised through Initial Public Offering [IPO)/Repeat Public Offering (RP0O)/Rights
[ssue, the company shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses/applications of funds by major
category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.}, on a gquarterly
basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results. Further, on an annual basis, the
company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/prospectus.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2021-2022. All the members were present in all
meetings of the Commit- tee. The attendance of the Board Audit Committee meetings held in 2021-
2022 are as follows:

Name Designation | Board Participation
Mr. Sadad Rahman Chairman 4 4/4
Mr. Md. Abu Zafer Member 4 4/4
Ir.Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad | Member | 4 4/4
Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman Member Secretary 4 4/4

REPORTING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Reporting to the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors on its activities. The Audit Committee
considered significant issues and judgments in respect of the 2021-2022 financial statements and
auditing procedures were as follows;

sCompliance of [AS and the disclosure of its financial information under IFRS have been maintained
and the interim linancial statements are prudent and credible.

«These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading,

*The recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Company during 2021-2022 are
observed and verified.

sReport on conflict of interests;

*These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs andarein compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

*The scope and extent of internal audit has been checked; and the adequacy of resources to maintain
vigilant internal audit process has confirmed and appropriately placed thereto,

#The critical accounting policies, significant judgments and practices used by the Company are in
compliance with required laws and regulations and recommended by the Board. The audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020 represent fair and authentic view of the
Company's financials,

«The state of compliance with Corporate Governance and other regulations as per the requirements of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange [DSE) and Chittagong
Stock Exchange (CSE) were ensured.

#To the best of their knowledge and belief, the Company has not entered into any transaction during
the yvear which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's codes of conduct.

REPORTING TO THE AUTHORITIES

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors regarding any matter which has material impact
on the financial condition and also results of operation. If any rectification is required, the committee
will discuss with the Board of Directors and the Management If the Audit Committee finds that such
rectification has been unreascnably ignored, the Committee reports such findings to the Bangladesh
Securities & Exchange Commission upon reporting of such matters to the Board of Directors for three
times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the Board of
Directors, whichever is earlier. Ashraf Uddin & Co. Chartered Accountants may be appointed for the year
2022-2023.
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REEPORTING TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL INVESTORS

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board of
Directors under condition

3.4.1(ii) of the BSEC Corporate Governance Notification above during the vear, shall be signed by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company,

The Board of the Company authorized to the Audit Committee to review or examine any activity within
the business as per its Terms of Reference. All employees are expected to cooperate with any request
made by the Committee. The Committee is also authorized to have information and advice from the
Company Legal Advisor, Tax Consultant and Statutory Auditor if required. The terms of reference of
Audit Committee may be amended from time to time as required for the business in line with BSEC
notifications subject to approval by the Board of the Company.

On behalf of the Committee

&V ke

Md. Mostafizur Rahman Md. Abu Zafer
Company Secretary Independent Director
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2021-2022

The Remuneration Committee has been established to assist the Board in developing and
administering a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy on the remuneration of directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages and to review
and oversee the Company's overall human resources strategy.

The attendance of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting held in 2021-2022 are
as follow:

] Name of members Designation [ Meeting Held | Attendance
| Mr. Md. Abu Zafer, Independent Director | Chairman | 4 4/4
| Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director | Member | 4 4./4
Mr. Saveed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director Member 4 4/4
| [Representative of N] Holdings Limited)
| Mr. ]'g-j_d. M_a_:j;__l._::ﬁ:f.ur Rahman _ ng}her Secretary | 4 4 {fd;

The Committee is empowered to perform, monitor, review and examine the followings:

sPDetermine the remuneration of the Company's Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, the
Chairman, the Manager, HEM, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary;

» Review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy;

sApprove the design of, and determine targets for any performance related schemes and annual
payments made under such schemes;

»Review the design of all new long-term schemes and significant changes to such schemes for approval,
in each case, by the Board and shareholders.

sDetermine the total individual remuneration package of each Executive Director, the Company
Secretary and the Chairman including bonuses, incentive payments and any compensation payments;
=Monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior management;

«Oversee any major changes in employee benefits structures throughout the Company;

s Review the policy for authorizing claims for expenses from the Managing Director, Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman;

*Ensure that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration;

*Review of the Remuneration Committee's performance,

sReview of and proposed amendment to the terms of reference;

«Approval of the Directors' remuneration report

*Be responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing and setting the terms of
reference for any remuneration consultants who advise the Remuneration Committee; and

«Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in other companies, with a view to
judging where to position the Company relative to other companies. The Remuneration Committee
shall have full authority to commission any reports or surveys which it deems necessary to help it fulfill
its obligations.

The Board Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of
the Executive Committee, managers, and employees. This committee met once in 2021-2022, All
members of the Committee were present in the committee meeting. Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman acted
as the Secretary to the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Board Compensation
Committee carries out independent survey of the market position and accordingly adjust the
remuneration.

Report Authorization

This NRC Committee Report is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of
Directors on 31 January 2023.

,@_V & e

Md. Abu Zafer

Md. Mostafizur Rahman Independent Director
Company Secretary :
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Corporate social responsibility ({CSR) is a corporation’s initiatives to assess and take responsibility for
the company's effects on environmental and social wellbeing. The term generally applies to efforts that
po bevond what may be required by regulators or environmental protection groups. C5R may also be
referred to as "corporate citizenship” and can involve incurring short-term costs that do not provide an
immediate financial benefit to the company, but instead promote positive social and environmental
change.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is central to the 'Responsibility’ strategy of 8. 8. Steel Ltd. CSR is
essential for the business sustainability and enhancement of long-term stakeholder value, S. §. Steel
Ltd. is a contributor and provider to the society through its CSR initiatives, sustainable practices and
regulated operations.

The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure better management of the Company's CSR
initiatives in a way that secures business sustainability as well as to create and maintain a positive
impact for the reputation of the Company.

The Committee usually meets seven times in a year ensuring the presence of all members in the
meeting, The attendance of the Board C5R Committee Meeting held in 2021-2022 are as follows:

Name of members Designation Meeting held | Attendance
Mr. Sadad Rahman, Independent Director | Chairman 4 4/4
Ms. Hasna Opgenhaffen, Managing Director | Member 4 4/4
Mr. Sayeed Rezaraj Ahmmad, Director Member 4 4/4
{Representative of N] Holdings Limited)
Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman Member Secretary 4 4/4

The purpose of the Board CS5R Committee is to ensure better management of the Company’s CSR
initlatlves in a way that secure business sustainability as well as to create and maintain a positive
impact for the reputation of the Company, The CSR Committee is authorized by the Board of Directors
to evaluate activities within the business with respect to CSR. The activities of the CSR have been
presented in the CSR Actlvitles part of this report in the page no. 114 to 117.

g 20.

Md. Mostafizur Rahman Sadad Rahman
Company Secretary Independent Director
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CEO AND CFO’S
DECLARATION
The Board of directors S. S. Steel Ltd.

Subject: CEOQ and CFQ's Declaration to the Board.
Dear Sir (5],

In Compliance with the condition no. 6 imposed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's
Notification no, SEC/C- MRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 issued under section
2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we the undersigned Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) respectively of 8. 5. Steel Ltd. do hereby certify that we have
thoroughly reviewed the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2022 and
state that:

1.The Financial Statements of 5. 5. Steel Ltd. for the year ended on June 30, 2022 have been prepared in
compliance with International Accounting Standards (lAS) or International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed;

2.The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3.The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its financial statements:

4.To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

5.0ur internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6.The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -

We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2022 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

a.these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b.These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

ii. There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

G~ @il

Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hogue

Hasna Opgenhaffen Chief Financial Officer
Managing Director
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Certificate of Compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance Code
by
S. S. STEEL LIMITED
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Chartered A countants Tel: 95533407, 9564572

E ATIK KHALED CHOWDHURY — DR —

Fa +E3-03:71 24040
e-mail abk khaled@gmail.com
vrebsite: wern abklihalad. com

Report to the Shareholders of S. S. STEEL LIMITED
on Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by S.S.
STEEL LIMITED for the year ended on 30 June 2022. This Code relates to the Nofification
No. BSEC/CMRRD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated; 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by

the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance
Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions
of the corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate
Governance Code.

We state that have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required,
and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission.

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code.

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities law and other relevant law, and

(d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

AL wakod Crowdhm,
Dated: Dhaka Atik Khaled Chowdhury
02 February, 2023 Chartered Accountants
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT

Status of Compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,
pursuant to the Nofification No. BSEC/CMRRD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated; 03 June 2018 issued under section
2CC of the Bangladesh Securifies and Exchange Crdinance, 1969

(Report under condition no. 9)

= Compliance Status |
= Tite {Put ¥ in the Remarks
E appropriate column) (if any)

e Complied | Mot Complied
1 Board of Directors
The tofal number of members of the Boand of Directors shall not be less than 3 (five) and mare than
1M %

iwenty)
1(2) | Independent Directors

& least one-fifth (115) of he tofal number of directors in the company's boand shall be

¥

120 /(@) | \dependent irectors,
1 |:2’ {b‘l I:i} Tne independent drector does not hold any share in the company o helds less than
! ane percant (1%} sharas of the tolal paid-up shares of the company.
The: independent director Is not @ sponsor of the company and i not cannected with ths
12 | COMPANy's ANy spansor or disctor or shareholder who holds one percent (15) or mors v
L | shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on (fe basis of family relatiorship,
Histher family members siso should not hold above menlioned shares in the company;
1@ e '.l"ﬁ:g‘o.:l.'tas not been an executive of the company in mmediatsly preceding 2 (fwo) 7
ial years,
12 o) The mdegendent direcior doas not have any other relafionship, whather pecuniary or e
alhenuize, with [he company o (s subsidiary o associated companiag,
12w Who is not & member or TREC (Trading Right Entitement Cerlificate) hoider, director or v
officer of any stock exchangs;
12w | The mdegendant director s nof a shareholder, director or officer of any member or 7
TREC holder of stack exchange or any intermadiary of the capital markel;
The independenl dirgclor i not a partner or an execulive or was not 3 partrer or an
1@ (b i execubve during the praceding 3 (fhees) vears of fhe concermed company's stalutory v
I audil firm ar avdit fiem engaged In intemal audit services or audd firm conducting special
audit or professional certifying compliancs of this Code;
1@ e i The indgpﬂ_ﬂdﬂrrt director shall not be an independent director in more than § (fve) ksted 7
companies;
12 |1 o The indepandent direclor has nol bean comacted by a court of competent jurizdiction as &
f a defaulter in payment of any logn to @ bank or @ Non-Bank Financia! Instiution (NBFI);
12 0m e The independent director has nol been comvicted lor 8 ciming affencs invoiving maral v
turpituda,
102 i) The independent director(s} shall be appointed by the board of directors and approved by the 7
sharehokiers in the Anmual General Meeting (AGK ],
T |id) | The pest of independent director(s} cannol remaln vacand lor more than 90 (ninety) days. v
12 |ie) The lerwre of office of an independent disctor shall be for 2 pencd of 3 (ree) years, which v

may be extended for 1 (ons) tenure only,

113 | Qualification of Independent Diractor

Independent Director shall be & knowledgeable individual wilh infegrity wha is able bo ensurs

13 &) compliiance with financial. regulatory and corporate laws and can make meaningful v

conlnbudion to business,

1(3) |ib) Indepandent Director shall have following qualifications:
""" || Business Leader who is or was a promoter of director of an unlislad company having |

1(3) k) (i} | minimum paid-up capital of Th. 100.00 million or any fisted company or 2 member of any v

naticaal or international chamber of commerce or buziness association; or

.....

(Mficer or Managing Director of Deputy Managing Director of Chief Financial Officer or
103 |(b) (i) | Head of Financa or Accounts or Comgany Secretary or Head of Infernal Audil and v
Compliance or Head of Legal Senice or a candidale with equivalent posiion of an
uniisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Te. 100,00 million or of a ksted
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| Gomipany; or
|
' | Former official of oovemment o slatulory of autonomous o regulatory body in the
1(3) E[bi {iiiy | position mot below 5% Grade of the national pay scale, who has at lesst educational i,
} backeround of bachelor degree in economics or commernze or bisingss or Law, o
| | ! University Teacher who has educationsl background in Ecoromics or commerce or
|
| 13 ;l:h:' W) Business Sudias or Law, or b
Professional wha is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court Dwision of
Bangladesh Supreme Cour or @ Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
1{3 1) |{v) | Accoundant or Chartersd Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accourtant or Cerfified ¥
‘ Pubfic Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant of Charered Secretary or
; | equivalent gualification;
'1 {3}![':] The mdegendent direclor shall have 2l least 10 (ken) years of expenences m any field 7
| Op7 | meelonedimckeseldy |
| l I special cases the above qualfications may be relaxed sulect lo pror approval of the
1(3) | (d) Cornmisss MiA
| | ommission.
114) | Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Execufive Officer
.1 7 1 i The positions of the Chaimpersen of the Beard and the Managing Director (MD) andior Chiaf v
| 4} ;l; ) Executive Officer (CED) of the company shall be filled by diffsrent individuals;
-.1 P lis The Managing Director (WMD) andlor Chisf Execuiive Officer {CEQ) of a listed company shall v
) | E ) ol hold 1he same position in anather listed company;
The Chawperson of the Bosnd shall be eleclad from amang the non-sxeculive dirsclons of the
T {4 © MR v
104 } ) Tha Board shall clearly dafine respective roles and responsibiiies of the Chairperson and the v
{ Al Managing Director 2rafor Chiet Executive Officer,
In the absence of the Cheirperson of the Board, fhe remaining members may elect on of
14} ' ﬁE:} Ihemssives from, non-executive directors s Chairperson for thet partsular Board's mesting M such Incident
 Ina reason ufahsameaﬂl‘mrﬂgda: Chairpesson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.
1 {5} | The Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
1 {5h{1i} Inidustry cotlook and possible future developments in te indusiry, L4
|1{5) [y | Segmentwise or productwise performance; v
115 | i Risks and concarms including intamal and eitamal risk factoss, threat to sustanabaity and v
_ { };‘-: ) negative impact on ervironment, if any;
.1 . i[i\'} A discussion on Cost of Goods sold. Gross Profit Margn and Net Profit Margin, where v
{ ]'l_ apphcabls; _
| 145} 'M Discassion on conlinuity of amy Extra-Ordinzry activities and thesr implications (gain or loss); ¥
‘_MT"_ | A detailed discussion on relted party ransactions aking with & statement showing amaunl,
15} |[vi} | mature of related party, nature of tranzactions and basis of tranzactions of all refated party ¥
| transactions:
:1 5 E|:‘l'1i1.| A stalement of Lilzation of proceeds from public issues, nghts 1ssuss andior througn any NiA
| |oersinswmenss
1 5) H i) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the comspany goes for Initial Pubde NIA
Cfiering {IP0), Repeat Public Offering {RPO). Fights Share Cdfer, Direct Listing, etc;
115 [ i An explanation on any  significant vanance thal occurs between Quartedy Financial "
3} |; ) perlormances and Annual Financial Siatemants;
1' {5} | |:x" A statement of remuneration paid fo the direclors inchuding independent directors, v
1 5 A statement that the finencial statements prepared by the management of the issuer company ¥
| ¥ m} presant fairly ils state of affairs, the resull of its operations, cash flows and changes in equily;
1{5) | (uil) | A statement :hatpmp-er books of sacourt of he issusr mrnpanyr hive been maintained, ¥
[T | A statement that appropriale accourting policies have been consistenlly appiied In |
1 (8} |(xifi) | prepasation of the financial statements and that the accounding estimates are based on ¥
| rezsonable and prudent judgment;
| | A statement that Infemnational Accounting Standards (IA5) or Infernstional Financial Reporling
1 {5} |(xiv} | (IFRS). as applicable in Bangadesh, have been follwed In preparation of the financial v
| siatements and any departure (here from has been edequately disclosed;

DU ENT TR STRENGTH
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1650 |t | & slatement that the systam of ntemal control 15 sound In design and has been efrﬁ-:wah.r &
implemeniad and moniorad,
| A statement that minority sharsholdars have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the
115) |{wvi) | interest of confrolling sharehofderss acting either directly or indirectly and have effaclive v
| means of redress,
A statemant that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s atdity o confinue as
1(8) |{xl} | & gosng concem, if the issuer company & nol considered to be a going concam. the fact along v
wilh reazons thera of shall be disclosed,
| An axplaration that significant daviations from the iast year's operating results of the Esuer

115) vl | company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained; v
i & stetement where key operating and financial data of &l beest preceding 5 {five) years shall
18 |1 | e sommaiead: i
| #An explangtion on the reasons i the ssuer company has not declarsd dividend (cash or
118) | stock) for the wear; i : ik

168 |¢ ':I Board's stalement fo the effect thal no bonus share or stock dividend has been or shall be s
M | dectared as nterm diidend,

_”5! .......
115) {mﬂh} A report on the pattern of shareholding:
Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and ather related parlies (nams wise

,g.
—I
z
& |
E
2|
m |
£
a1
2 |°
& |
%
H
3|
-
d
=1
=f
B
g |
2|
8|
==
E
g |
2|
%

Pt '_ ‘(
B
15 1ii}§b} Dhreciors, Chief Execulive Officer, Company Sscralary, Chief Financial Officer, Haad of v

L | Intarmial Audit and their spouses and minor children {name wise datails):

1(5) |(wxli}|c) | Ewecutves; and v
i | | o | Shareholders holding ten percent (0%} or more voting nterest In the company (name Il
1(3) |(xxil) i) | e details); i
113} |{xxhv) | Disclosure on Appointment/Re-appointment of Director:
1(5) |{xxhv) ta) | A brief resume of the diractor, ¥
1(5) [fweh) (b) | Mature of tvs or her expertise in specific funclional areas; and o

<ol Names of companigs In which the n also hoids the dreciorship and [he

1(8) () ,E-‘:I membarship of committees of tha E|:|Elr1:|pm$':I ' v

1(5) | A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company's position and
operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on:

1(5) [(xev) 'a) | Accounting policies and estimation for preparafion of financial statements; ¥

||| Changes in acoouniing policies and esimaion,  any, cisary dsscribing ihe efed on

118) | {uev) "h} finarcial performance or resulis and financial position as well as cash fiows n absolute v

fioure for such changes;

Comparalive analysis (Including effects of mflation) of financial peformancs or resifls

108) |} (e} | and financlal posilion as welt as cash fiows for curren! financial year with immediate v

preceding five years explainmng reasona thereof;

Compara such financial parformance or results and financlal position as well as cash

ficrwvs with the peer industry scenario,

1(5) (oo '8} | Briefly explain the financial and economic scenano of the country and the giobe; ¥
i Misks and concems izsues related to the financial statements, explaining such nsk and
1(5) (o) [0 g

15) |oon) 1)

concems mitigaton plan of he company; and

| Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and financiat
1(5) |{xxv) Eg} posion, with justfication thereal, ie., actual posiion shall be explained to the ¥
shamsholders in the naxt AGM

| Declaration ar certfiication by the CED and the CFO 1o the Board as required under candition

1 i5} {”‘“‘f No. 3(3) shall be disclosad as per Annexure-A; and ¥
15 {m.rn] The raport 2= well as cedificate regarding compliance of condiions of this Coda as raquired v
under condition Mo 8 shall be dedosed & per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.
1 (6} | Meatings of the Board of Directors
Tha company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minufes of the meetings as well as
keep required books and records in fine with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretanal >

Slandards (BES) as adopled by the Imstilule of Chartered Secratanes of Bandgadesh (|CSE) in so far
s those standards ane not inconsistent with any condition of fhis Code,

HTTIEDN STREAETH
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1(7) | Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer
The Board shall lay down a code of conducl, based on the recommendaton of the |
1(7) &) Meomination and Remuneraicn Commiftes (MRC) al condiicn Ma, &, for [he Charmparsan of v
thi Board, ather Beard members and Chiefl Executive Gfficer of the comgpany,
The code of conduct as determined by the WRC shall be posted on the website of tha
17 |fo) comgany including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior, confidentiality; condlict of -
interest; compliancs with lEws, riles and regulslions: prohibition of insider trading relationship
with ervironment, employess, cuslomers and suppliers; and independency,
i Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company;
2 (a) Provigions relzting to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall be made v
applicatile 1o the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company,;
2 (o) A Iesst 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shafl be a director o
an the Board of the subsidiary comgany,
5 (@) The minutes of fhe Board meeting of the subssdary company shall be placed for review al the >
following Board meeting of the halding company,
7 (d) The minutzs of the respectve Boerd meeting of the holding company shall state that they v
have raviewad the affairs of (ha subsidiary company also:
2 (&) The Awdl Committes of the holding company shall alse review the financial statements, in v
particular the investrments made by the subsidiary company,
3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief Financial Officer [CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and
Company Sacretary (CS):
311} | Appointment
The Board shall appoint a Managing Cirector (M} or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a
AR Company Secrelary (C5), & Chigl Financal Officer (CFO) and 2 Head of Intermal Audit and v
Compliance (HIAC);
The pastions of the Managng Directer (MD) or Chisf Executive Officer (CEQ), Company
301 iy Secretary (C5), Chigl Financlal Officer (CFO) and Head of Intemal Apdt and Compliznca ¥
(HIAC) shall be filled by different indiduals;
' 2 @ | "The MD or CED, €S, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hoid any execullve s |
position in any cther company a1 the same time;
e The Board shall cleady define respectve roles, respoasibiliies and duties of the CFO, he e
HIAC and the C5;
The MO or CEO, €5, CFCrand HIAC shall not ba remaevad from thair position withou
501 (e approval of the boand a5 wall as immediste dissemination to the Commission and siock ¥
grchangeis).
3(2) | Requirement to attend Board of Directors' Meetings
The WD or CEQ, C5, CFO and HIAC of ihe company shali atiend the meefings of the Board:
Provided that the €5, CFO andlor the HIAC shall not attend such part of 8 meeting of the Board ¥
which Involves congideration of an agenda ltam ratating o thair personal mattars,
3(3) | Outies of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO}
303 ) The MD or GEQ and CFD shall cerify o the Board that they have reviswed financial
slatemants for the year and that 1o the best of their knowladge and belief,
3 |:3} :aﬁ fi} lhese sl;aterr_mts do not contain any materally unirue statement or omit any materal v
fact or contan stalemenits thal might be misleading, and
3 @ (i Inese statements together present a true and fair view of the compsmy's affairs and ae
in compliance wilk axisling accounting standards and apphicable [awe,
The MO or CEQ snd CFO shall also certify thal thers are, Lo the best of knowledgs and beliel,
3(3) |ty | notransactions entered into by the company during the year which ara fraudulent, lagal or in v
vinlation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board or its members;
3(3) |ick | The certfication of the MO or CEQ and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. ¥
4 Board of Directors’ Committes
For ensuring good govemance in the company, the Board shall ave a1 lzas! loliowing sub-commitiees:
i Audit Committes; and +

{ii Momination and Remuneration Commitles v
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5 | Audit Committee

5{1) | Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5 {?]- 1a) 1 The comparny shall have an Audit Commitien as a sub-committee of the Board; i v

The Audit Commitee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial staterments reflect

511) ik} true and fair view of the stsle of affairs of the company and in ensuring & good monitodng ¥

siatam within tha businass;

5(1] |1 The Audit Commiltes shall be responsible fo (he Beard, the dulizs of the Audil Commttzs
shall be clearty sa forth in writing.

5{2) | Constitution of tha Audit Committes

542 [ah The Audit Commites shall be composed of &1 lesst 3 (three) mamiers; s

Tha Board shall appoint memberz of the Audit Committes who shall be non-executive
5{2) [P} | diestors of the company excepting Chaiperson of the Board and shall mclude al least 1 v
[cre} indepandant director,

All members of the audit commitiee should be financially literate’ and at least 1 {jone} member
512) e) shall have accounting or refated financial management background and 10 {len) years of ¥
such exparienca;
| When' the term of service of any Commiftes member expirss or thare is any circumslance |
causing any committee mambers to unable to hold office before expiration of the term of
service, thus making the number of the Committes members to be lower than the prascribed v

52 |4 number of 3 {ihree) persons, the Board shall sppeint the new Commities mamber fo fill up the
vacancy immediately or ool later than 1 (one) manth from (he dste of vacancy in the
committes to ensure corfinuity of the perdormance of work of the Audit Committes;
5{2) e} The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Commilies, ¥
5(2) i Tha guorum of the Audit Committes meeting shall not constitge without at |east 1 (ong) g
{2) ngependent direclor,

51{3) | Ghairperson of the Audit Committee

The Board shall setect 1 {ons) member of the Audit Commitiee to be Chaiperson of the Audit v
Commitee, who shall ba an mdependant dinector;

e, s ta.

543} [1a)

5 (3) |1b) one of themselves as Chairperson for thet particular meeth'lg in that case there shall b2 no v
problem of conslituling a quorum as required under condition Mo, 5{44b} and the reasan of

absence of the reqular Chairperson shail be duly recorded in the minutes;

Chairparson of the Audit Committes shail remain prezent in the Annual General Meeting L

53] [ie)

{AGM).
5 (4) | Meeting of the Audit Committes
544} Hal | The Audit Commites shall conduct at least s four mestings in a financial vear: ¥

The quorum of the mesting of the Audil Committss shall be consliuted in presence of sither
5 (4] (o} fwo members ar two-thind of Ihe members of the Audit Comemilles, whichever is higher, wheee v
presence of an independent director is 3 must

51(5) | Role of Audit Committes

The Audit Commities shall

5(5) &) | Owerseethe financial reporing process, ¥

5{5) [{b} Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; ¥
Monitor internal Awdt znd Compiignce process 1o ensure that it is adequalely resowced,

5 {5) |1e) including approval of the Infernal Audil and Compliance Plan and review of fhe inteosal Audi v
and Compliance Repart;

§i5) [id) | Oversee hiring and pefformance of extemal auditors; v

5 &) |18} Hold mesting with the extemal or sfatidory auddors for review of the annual financial v
staternants before submission to the Board for approval or adaption;

'5 ‘.5]" [ﬂ | Review along with the managament, annual fingncial slatements before submission to the | 7
Board for aporoval,

5 5} |{g) Review along with the managemant, the quarterty and half yearly financial statemants before v
subimission to the Board for approval;

5(5) |y | Review the adequacy of intermnal audit functlon; ¥
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[55) [ | Review the Managament's Discussion and Analysis befors disciosing in the Annual Repert v
515 |0 Review statement of all related parly transactions submitted by the mansgement; v
Roviewy Managemant Letters or Letter of Intamal Control weakness issued by statulory
S0 | s v
Oversee the determinabion of audk fees besed on scope and magnifude. leval of experize
5(5) 1M deploved and fime required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external v
audilors; and
Cwversoa whether the procesds raised theough Initial Public Offering (1P} or Repeat Public
S(5) [im) | Offering (RPO) or Rights Shame Offer have besn wiilized a5 per the pumposes stated in P&
retgvant offer document or prospacius approved by the Commission,
5 (6) | Reporting of the Audit Committes
3 (6) @) Reporting fo the Board of Directors
5(6) [la) |G} | The AuditCommites shall repor on its activifias o the Board. ¥
5.6 @ | ;I':: Audit Commitiee shall immediately report 1o the Board an the {ollowing findings, if N Biich sl
S5(6) @) [(A) | &) | report on conflicts of interests WA
56 @ |G | o suspented o pms-l.nna.i fraud or imeguiadty materal defect identified in the A
internal awdt and compliance process of in the financid statemeants;
" suspected Infringement of laws, regulstory compliances Including secutties ;
S(6) @ (| @ ralated kaws, rules and requlations; and OBty et
any othier matter which tha Audit Committes deems necassary shail be disclosed
I I
S(6) (a0 [ . id) o the B i jately; Mo siich Incident
5(6) |e) | Reporting to the Authorifies
1 the Auwdit Commities has reporied to the Board #bout anything which has material impact on
the financial condiion and results of operation and has discussed with the Board and the
managemani that any reclfication is necessary and if the Audit Commitiee finds that such No siich [ncidant
rectfication has been unreasonably lgnored, the Audit Commitlee shall report such finding to
the Commission, upon reporting of such matiers to the Board for thres fimes or completion of
a perlod of 6 (sh) months from the date of Tisst reporling Lo (he Board, whichever is earlier.
5(T) | Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors
Report on achvilles carmied aul by he Audil Committes, intluding any fepon made 1o the Board undar
condition Mo Si6a)iil abowe during the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit ¥
Commattes and disclosed in the anmusd reporl of the issuer compeny,
[ Womination and Remuneration Committes (MRC)
G (1) | Responsibility to the Board of Directors
6 (1) |l The comgany shall have a MNomination end Remunerstion Commities (NRC) a5 sub- -
) committea of the Board,
The WRC shall assis! the Board In formulation of the nomination crileda or policy for
6 (1) ) determinmg qualifications, positive sttibules, expenences and independence of directors and @
¥ top level execulive as well ag a policy for formal process of considerng remunerstion of
directors, top level execiive;
6 (1) |ig The Terms of Keference {ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the o
M areas stated al the condion No. B51(R),
6 (2) | Constituion of the NRC
@12 13 The Committes shall comprise of at least three members including an ndegendent dirsctar; ¥
6(2) |18 | Al members of the Cormmiltise shall be non-exective directors; v
6 (2) | Mermbers of the Commites shall be nominated and appointsd by e Board; ¥
_ﬁ (2 |{d) The Board shail have authority 1o remayve and appnini;ny mambuer of the Cammitiee; v
In case of desth, resignaton, disqualiication, or removal of any member of the Commities o
6(2) |l in any odher cases of vacancies, the Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 jone hundred Peli
eighty} days ol occurring such vacancy in the Commilies,
The Charperson of the Commitiee may appoinl or co-opl any extemal expert andfor
G2 [ memberis} of staff 1o the Committes as advisor who shall be non-voting mamber, iF tha A
Chairpersen feels thal sdvice or suggestion fram such extemal expert andlor memberis) of
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etaff shall ba ragquired o waluable for the Commites,

(2] |(m) The company secratany shall act as the secretary of the Commities; ¥
6(2) i The quorem of the NRC mesting shall not constitste whout aftendance of af least an | "
@ S B i L R
No member of e NRC shall receive, aither directly or Indirectly, any remuneration for any |
B(2) 00 advizory or consufiancy role or ofherwise, other than Director's fees or honarasium from the WiA
company. |

6{3) Ghdrpmn of the NRC

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NEC to be Chaiperson of e Committes, who | 7
ghall be an muepandanl director, |
In the absence of fhe Chaipersan of the NRC, the remaning members may elecl ce of |
B {3 | themseles as Chaimperson for that parficular meeting, the reason of absence of the reouar Mo such Incident
Chairparson shall be duly recorded in the minubes, |
The Chasperson of he NRC shall altend the annual general meeting (AGM) Ie answer the v

B(3) @

B(3) |l queres of the Shareholders,
G (4) | Meeting of the NRC
B (4} |(a) The NRC shall conduct al lsast one meeling in a financisl year ¥

6 (4 | ) The Chairperson of fhe WRC may convene any emergency meeting upan requast by any
member of the NRG;

The guorum of the mee@ng of the NRC shall be constiuted in presence of either two |

B (4) [} | members o two third of the members of the Commilles, whichaver is higher, whara prasence v

of an independant director is must as required under condfion No. 8(2)(R); |

6 14) | The proceedings of ezch mesfing of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and such | 7
mirides shall be confirmead in the naxd maating of the NRC,

6 {5) | Raole of the NRC

MRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and fo the

shareholders:

6(5) | KR shall p-.rersae. among others, the following matlers and make repord with

recommendation fo-the Board;

formuiation the crteda for deftermining qualifications, posidive alinbules and |

B(5) |b) |{} | ncepandenca of a director and recommand a pelicy fo the Board, relating o the v

ramuneration of e directors top fevel executive, considening the following: 1

65 1) |6 | The level snd mpusi_lmn of remumeration is reasonable and sulficient to atiracl 2
radain and mobvate suitable drectors fo un the company succassfully;

65w [0 | ® the relationship of remuneration to performance & clear and meets appropriate
perdformance benchmarks; and |

remunerabon 1o direclons, top level executie involves & balance babween fied

B{5) () i) | le} | and imcentve pay reflacting shom and longderm pedormance ohjectives ¥

appropriate 1o the working of the company and its goals:

605 @) [ ﬁeu.-isipg 2 pohca.r on Board's diversity takir_'g inte: ponsideration &g, gender, expenence, "

ethnicity, educationasl background and nationaity;
dentifying persons who are qualified {o become direciors and who may be appointed in |

NiA

G () |(a)

B(5) i) |{iil) | lop level exscultive posilion in accordance with the criteria lsid down, and recormmend ¥
{heir appaintment and removal to the Board, 1
; formulating the criteria for evaluation of periormance of independent direciors and the
B8N B |V | goars B v
65 1) | wenlifying the company's needs lor employees al diferent fevels and determing their | v
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criferia; &nd
.. | d=veloping, recommending and reviewing annually the oo 5 human msources and |
6E|B |0 | e s e ¢
85 lic | The company shall disclose the nominabion and remuneration policy and the evaluation | v T
(5 16 criteria and aclivities of MRC during the vear &t a glance in #s annual rspod,

T{1) TM- is-suar :mpany shall nut engaqge is axternal or slamtnr]r auditars to perfnrm thu following Emaiceé nf the company, namely:-
() |;I:| apprms:d or valuation services or fairmess opinlons; v
T (1) iy finzncial information systems design and implementation; | ¥
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| T 1i|:iil:| book-+eeping o alher sanvices redated fo the sccounting records or fnancadl statements, ¥
i? (1) |(v) | broker-dealer services: e
7{1) 15[‘#? acluarial servces; v
T{1) (o) | intemeal audit services or special audit sarvices; v
{7 (1) |tv) | any service that the Audit Commitiee dstarmines; v
700 El:'.ni]f audit or certificsfion services on compliance of corporate govemance as required under v
| condition No. 9(1); and

{7 (1) (i) | any other service that creates confict of interest. v

Mo pariner or employees of the exemal audit firns shall possess any share of the company they

17 (2) | audt at least during ihe tenure of their swdt assignment of that company: his or her family members v

| also shall not hold any shares in the said company.

| Representative of ‘extemal or stalutory auditors shall remain present in the Shareholders™ Meeting

I7(3) | (Annual Gemaral Meefing or Extracedinary Genaral Meating) 1o arswer the quenes of fhe v
| sharaholdars.

|8 I Maintaining a website by the Company

B (1) | Thecompany shall have an official website linked with the website of tha stock exchanie.

=

x

i 8(2) The compszny shall keep the wabste funclional from the date of lisfing.
| The company shall make available the detsiled discloswmes on its website as required under the | v
| fisbing regutalions of the concemed stock exchangis),
g | Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Gowernance
The comgany shall obtain a cerfficete from a practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary |
{Chartered Accountant or cost and Management Accountant or Charterad Secredary) other than its
1) | stalutory auditors or audit firm on yeady biasis regarding compliance of conditicns of Corporate v
| Govarnanpe Coda of the Commission and shall such certificatis shall be disclosed in the Anngal
| Repor

80

9 [2} ! The profazsional who will providia tha cartficata on compliance of this Corporate Govemance Coda e
| | shall be appointed by the sharsholders in (ke annual general meeting |
| | The directors of the company shall state, in accordanca with the Annexure-C atiached, in the

| 903) 1 directors’ repor whethes the company has complied with Ihese conditons or rol.
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS
LIQUIDITY RATIO

Current Ratio

2.5
F
1.5
1
0.5
 Frazta0m2 FY2020-2001
B FY-202]1-3042 WFY 20202021
Particular FY Z021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula | Caleulation | | Result Calculation | | Result
Current Ratio | : | Current Assets | = | 10,613,487,252 | | 208 |=|7,114188445| | 2.53
Current Liability | | 5,10{],6!]1,{}65—1 2,813,683,026 | |

Interpretation’s: The current ratio is a liguidity ratio that measures a company's ability to pay off their
short-term liabilities with their current assets. If a company has a high ratio (anywhere above 1) then
they are capable of paying their short-term obligations. The higher the ratio, the more capable the
company. However, from the calculation we can see that, the current ratio of the Company has
increased comparing to the last year. It's a good ratio for our industry because good ratio for the
industry means the range of ratio from 1.50 to 2.00. So, the current ratio of 5, S, Steel Ltd. is quite
healthy and sound which is acceptable.
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Quick Ratio
z
1.5
1
0.5
FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
mFY 2021-7022 ®FY 2020-2021
Particular | FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula : Calculation Result Calculation Result
Quick Rado | : | Current Assets-Inventory | = | B,079,674,520 158 =| 5312675808 1.89
Current Liability | 5,100,601,068 2,813,683,026

Interpretation: The quick ratio is an indicator of a company's short-term liquidity, and measures a
company’s ability to meet its shart-term obligations with its most liquid assets. The most liquid assets
are current assets that can be converted to cash within 90 days or in the shart-term, The higher the
quick ratio, the hetter the company's liquidity position. However, too high a quick ratio may indicate
that the company has too much cash sitting in its reserves. It may also mean that the company has a
high accounts receivable, indicating that the company may be having problems collecting on its account
receivables. The Standard of quick ratio is 1:1. From the above calculation we can see that the quick
ratio of our company is higher comparing the last vear which means the company is doing well and has
the capacity to meet its short-term obligations through its liquid assets.
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Time Interest Earned Ratio

2.5
2
1
s
0
FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
WY 2021-2022  WFY 20202021
Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula Calculation Result | Calculation Result
Time Interest : | Operating Income | = | 1,197,765,800 251 | = 950,650,468 3.17
Earned Ratio Interest Expenses 478,108,269 | 299,996,825

Interpretations: The times interest earned ratio, sometimes called the interest coverage ratio, is a
coverage ratio that measures the proportionate amount of income that can be used to cover interest
expenses in the future. In some respects, the times interest ratio is considered a solvency ratio because
it measures a firm's ability to make interest and debt service payments. Since these interest payments
are usually made on a long-term basis, they are often treated as an ongoing, fixed expense. As with
most fixed expenses, if the company can’t make the payments, it could go bankrupt and cease to exist.
Thus, this ratio could be considered a solvency ratio. After analyzing of the two FY's data, we can
conclude that our company has appropriate amount of income to cover up the interest expense in the
future.
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Debt to Equity Ratio

0, 0%

0.81, 40%

Particular Fy 21]21-2_!‘.122 F"l" 2020-2 [I'? 1
Formula Calculation Result Eg!cul_atmn | Result
Debt to Total Liability 7.437573,553 4.458.755,260
Equity : , ) = 124 | = .81
Ratia Shareholders’ Equity 5,989,164.407 5475977365

Interpretations: Debt to Equity Ratio is a ratio which is used to measure a company's financial
leverage. The Debt-to-Equity ratio indicates how much debt a company is using to finance its assets
relative to the value of shareholders’ equity. A high debt/equity ratio generally means that a company
has been aggressive in financing its growth with debt. Aggressive leverage-ing practices are often
associated with high levels of risk. This may result in volatile earnings as a result of the additional
interest expense. From the above calculation we can see that the debt-to-equity ratio is lower than
previous year which is positive indication for the company and it means that the level of risk has been
reduced.
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Account Receivables Turnover

| Ratio (Times)

L

Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula Calculation Result Calculation Result
Account Turnover 5,040,798,732 4,196,859974
Heceivables g "
: = 2.01 = 242
Turnover Average Receivables 2,504,405,046 1,736,004,234
Ratio (Times)

Interpretations: Accounts receivables turnover is an efficiency ratio or activity ratio that measures
how many times a business can turn its accounts receivable into cash during a period. In other words,
the accounts receivable turnover ratio measures how many times a business can collect its average
accounts receivable during the year, This ratio shows how efficient a company is at collecting its credit
sales from customers.
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Inventory Turnover Ratio

(Times)
.85
18
175
1.7
.I FY 2021-20322 FY Z020-2021
EWFY 20212002 ®WFY 2070-2021
Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
_ Formula __ Caleulation | | Result _ Caleulation | | Result
Inventory Cost of goods sold | 3,659970,329 | | 3,059,916,953
Turnover Ratio | : = 1.69 | = 1.81
(Times) Average Inventory 2.167,662,685 1,695,026,221

Interpretations: This ratio shows how effectively inventory is managed by comparing cost of goods
sold with average inventory for a period. This measures how many times average inventory is “turned”
or sold during a period. High inventory turnover ratios may indicate a company is enjoying strong
sales. Low inventory turnover ratios indicate a company is carrying too much inventory, which could
suggest poor inventory management or low sales on the other hand. From the calculation we can
explain that inventory turnover for the previous period was 2 times that means, our company has been
taken 6 months to make sell and replace all inventories, whereas from current reporting period we can
see, that turn over has raised around 2 times more, which is 4times this year, which alse means our
company has taken 3 months to make sell and replace all Inventories, which also indicates that our
company has a strong inventory management and we are enjoying a strong sales.
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Asset Turnover Ratio

(Times)
1.6
1.5
: I
13
F¥ 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021

BFY 2021-2022 ®FY 2020-2021

_I_’articular [ FY 202 1-%(]?2 | FY zuzﬂ-g_qlz 1
| Formula Calculation Result Calculation Result
Asset , Turnover ! 5,040,798,732 4,196,859974
Turnover ! = 153 |I'= 1.33
Ratio | Average To tal Assets 3,287,197 445 3,158,893,241

Interpretations: This ratio deals with the measurement of a company's ability to generate sales from
its assets by comparing net sales with average total assets. In other words, this ratio shows how
efficiently a company can use its assets to generate sales,
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Gross Margin Ratio

0.3

075
0.2
015
0.1
0.05
i
FY 2021-2072 Fy 2020-2021
BFY 2041-2022 mFY 2020-2021
Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula | Calculation Result Calculation Result
[ Gross Profit 1,380,828,403 1,136,943,021
|G Margi ti = 027 | = 0.27
ross TR IO T [ Turnover | [ 5.040,798,732 4,196,859,974

Interpretations: The gross margin ratio is the ratio of gross margin expressed as a percentage of sales.
Gross margin, alone, indicates how much profit a company makes after paying off its Cost of Goods sold.
The Gross Margin ratio is compared with competitors, a lower margin could indicate a company is
underpricing, A higher gross profit margin indicates that a company can make a reasonable profit on
sales, as long as it keeps overhead costs in control. Investors tend to pay more for a company with
higher gross profit.
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Operating Income Ratio

0.245
034
0;235
D225
Y 2021-2022 FY.2018-2019
mFY 2021-2022  mFY 2018-2019
Particular FY 2021-2022 | FY 2020-2021
' Formula Calculation Result Calculation Result
| {]perﬂ‘[ing Income . Dpcrating Profit B 1,197,765,800 0.24 = 950,650,468 0.23
Ratio "|  Turnover | | 5,040,798,732 || 4,196,859,974 ‘

Interpretations: The operating income ratio measures what proportion of a company's revenue is left
over, after deducting direct costs and overhead and before taxes and other indirect costs such as
interest. High or increasing operating margin is preferred because if the operating margin is increasing,
the company is earning more, From the operating profit ratio calculation, we can say that our company
has used best pricing method for the product and the management is more conservative in controlling
the direct costs and other overhead expenses. It's really a good condition.
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Net Profit Ratio

0.15

2.1
.05
i}
FY 2021-2002 FY 28120-2021
WFY 2021-2022 ®WFY 2020-2021
Particular | FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula Calculation Result Caleulation Result
Met fit after tax 577,238,046 583,271,225
Net Peafit Ritig: | 3 b > 011 |= 0.14
Turnover 5,040,798,732 4,196,859,974

Interpretation: This ratio is a measure of the overall profitability arrived after taking into account both
the operating and non-operating items of incomes and expenses. The ratio indicates what portion of
the net sales is left for the owners after all expenses have been met. Net profit margin is one of the most
important indicators of a business's financial health. It can give a more accurate view of how profitable
4 business is than its cash flow, and by tracking increases and decreases in its net profit margin, a
business can assess whether or not current practices are working.
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Return on Assets Ratio

0,08
0.06
004
o.02
o

FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
W FY2021-2027  WFY 2020-201
Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula Calculation Result Calculation | Result
Return on . Net prﬂﬁ[ after tax " 5??,258,{}4ﬁ 0.04 _ 533,2?1,225 | .06
Assetsratio |'| TotalAssets | |13.964337,960| | | |10337.732626| |

Interpretations: The return on assets ratio, often called the return on total assets, that measures the
net income produced by total assets during a period by comparing net income to the average total
assets. In other words, the return on assets ratio or ROA measures how efficiently a company can
manage its assets to produce profits during a period. This ratio helps both management and investors
see how well the company can convert its investments in assets into profits,
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Return on Equity Ratio

W FY 2021-202F

0.10, 48%

= FY 2020-2081

Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Formula Calculation Result Calculation Result |
Return on . Met profit after tax ; 577,238,046 id6 | 583,271,225 i
Equity ratio | * | Shareholders’' Equity 5,989,164,407 ' 5,475,977,365 )

Interpretations: This ratic measures the ability of a firm to generate profits from its shareholders
investments in the company. In other words, the return on equity ratio shows how much profit each
BOT of common stockholders’ equity generates. This ratio is also an indicator of how effective
management is at using equity financing to fund operations and grow the company.
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Debt to Total Assets Ratio

0.6
0s
04
0.3
o
FY 2021-2021 FY 2020-2021
mFY 20212022 mFY 2020-2021
I Particular FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
I Formula Calculation Result Calculation Result
Debt to total | Total Liability _ | 7437,573,553 i | - 4,458,755,260 4
asset ratio |’ Total Asset " | 13,964,337,960 ' "1 10,337,732,626 '

Interpretation: This ratio helps to evaluate the overall risk of a company. Companies with a higher
figure are considered riskier to invest in and loan to because they are more leveraged. This means that
a company with a higher measurement will have to pay out a greater percentage of its profits in
principal and interest payments than a company of the same size with a lower ratio. Thus, lower is
always better, If debt to assets equals 1, it means the company has the same amount of liabilities as it
has assets, This company is highly leveraged. A company with a DTA of greater than 1 means the
company has more liabilities than assets. This company is extremely leveraged and highly risky to
invest in or lend to. A company with an OTA of less than 1 shows that it has more assets than liabilities
and could pay off its obligations by selling its assets if it needed to. From the above calculation we can
strongly and clearly state that our company has much more assets than liabilities and we are not
extremely levered according to the explanation of DTA and still we have that much ability to pay off our
leverage in the long run.
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Risks an integral part of a business and contributes to the loss of the company as well as for the
shareholders. The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of sound risk management
practices and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company's
assets. The main responsibility of risk management is to establish and oversee the Company's
risk management framework. Company risk management policy is established to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Company, set the appropriate risk limits and to control and
maonitor risks and adhere to limits. Risks management palicy and system is monitored regularly
to comply with the changing market conditions and company activities.

OBIECTIVE OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is certainly embeddead in the Company’s management system as the Company
firmly believe that risk management is critical for the company’s sustainability and the
enharicement of its shareholders’ value. The objective of the risk management of the company
may as follows:

Protect its assets and reputation.

Protect the interests of all other stakeholders.

Preserve the safety, security and health of its employees,

Ensure the community of its supply of products to consumers and customers at all times.
Promote an effective risk awareness culture where risk management is an integral aspect
of the Company’s management systems.

Ensure that the company's operations do not impact negatively on the community in
which it operates and the environment.

VY VYY

A

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITEE

Ms, Hasna Opgenhaffen Managing Director
Mr. Syed Muhammad Rezaul Hogue Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Engr. Md. Delwar Hossain Executive Director
Wir. Poritos Chandra Roy Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Md. Mestafizur Rahman Company Secretary
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk management process is a scientific, systematic and structured procedure which involves
activities of identifying, analyzing, evaluating, reperting, decision making and mitigation of the
different types of risks those are associated with the events. Risk management of 5. 5. 5teel Ltd.
invalves managing and controlling the risks and also defining numerous strategies to address
these risks successfully. This is a key part of our business and this concept is introduced to
manage, control, reduce and eliminate the risks.

KEY RISK FACTORS

Risks are defined as uncertainties resulting in adverse variations of profitability or in losses,
financial or otherwise. The core risk areas of the business are Industry risk, sourcing cost risk,
financial risk, technological risk and environmental risk. Some of these risks and the ways of
mitigation are discussed elabarately below:

INDIUSTRY RISK

The company is operating in a moderate competitive industry with low profit & highly sensitive
to the market. Moreover, the company faces competition from a small number of private sector
mills those are found to be steady in the market. Inability of offering competitive products will
hinder the company's growth potertial. This type of risk refers to increased competition from
foreign or domestic sources leading to lower prices, revenues, profit margins, market share etc.
These could have an adverse impact on the business condition. Major market players in the
Steels industry took initiative to expand their capacity and most of them will come into operation
within the next one year. If economic growth as well as deyelopment activities of the country are
not at expected level, market will be more competitive due to excess capacity in the industry.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

The company has successfully accessed the market till date and is working on offering new and
better-quality products at competitive terms. Moreover, the company’s track record for
operating profitability and highly market potential environment establishes its capability.
Implementation of similar project generally have 3 lead time of 5 (Five) manth and before the
earliest entrant the company will be able to consolidate its both financial as well as market
position. Further-mare, with the track record of S35L and its market reputation it will be very
difficult for new comers to make the quality Steels. Moreoyer, Steels Manufacturing is 2 high
capital-intensive and engineering industry and therefore, barriers to entry are high. Hence, first-
mover's advantage is big and SS5L, with its past experience and performance, will enjoy this
advantage.

A LT Thkwd 1Rl Tl
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ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL RISKS;

Bangladesh is prone to serious unrest in the political condition which produces Hartal, Road-
Block and many other barriers to the business. This could also propel the cost of the product
upwards.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

Although the country has passed a political turmoil of last few years, a sound political
atmosphere is prevailing from early this year which is expected to continue in future. Both the
ruling and cpposition parties are committed to the betterment of the country. Last democratic
national assembly election and local council polls are instances of peaceful political situation in
Bangladesh.

POTENTIAL OR EXISTING GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS;

The Company operates under local [aws like the Companies Act, 1594, Taxation Policies adopted
by MBR, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Ordinance and Rules and Rules
adopted by other Regulatory Authorities. Any abrupt changes of the paolicies form by those
bodies will impact the business of the Company adversely. Unless adverse policies are taken,
which may materially affect the industry as a whole; the business of the Company will not be
affected.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

Since, the company operates in Steels sector; the Government regulations are mostly
investment-friendly. However, unless any policy change that may negatively and materially affect
the industry as a whole, the business of the company is expected not to be affected. As it is an
emerging sector, it is highly expected that the Government will not frustrate the growth of the
industry with adverse policy measures.

MARKET AND TECHNOLOGY-RELATED RISKS

The Company has best-class infrastructure with recently imported Istest most sophisticated
machinery and equipment's. The production facilities are based on currently available
technology. But 555L% investment in plants and technology may becoms obsolete and the
product guality may be impaired due to malpractice or decayed technologica! enforcement.
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MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

Company owns modern technelogy with RE&ED infrastructure and shall be able to adapt to any
new inventions with moderate investments. The Company has access to
international/multinational companies for supplving appropriate technology and technical
management support for operation of new projects. The selected/installed plant and machinery
have been manufactured by reputed manufacturer with proper warranty to take care of any
defects or confirmation of supplying of adeguate spare parts. A significant portion of the entire
production process is accomplished through contract manufacturing. This arrangement provides
the company with greater leeway to adjust with any changed technological atmosphere,

POTENTIAL OR EXISTING CHANGES [N GLOBAL OR NATIONAL POLICIES

Changes in the existing glebal ar national policies can have either positive or negative impacts for
the company. Any scarcity or price hike of raw materials due to change in policy in the
international market might adversely affect the production and profitability.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

The management of 5551 is always concerned about the prevailing and upcoming future changes
in the global or national policy and shall response appropriately and timely to safeguard its
interest. The strong brand equity of the company in the local market and deep and profound
knowledge of the sponsors will always endeavor to withstand the unexpected changes or any
such potential threats. Mevertheless, political stability and a congenial business environment is
definitely the best situation in which S55L will achieve its maximum potential. Political turmail
and the disturbance are bad for the economy as a whole and also for the company. On the other
hand, Government has special sttention to the growth of the industry as it is relsted to
infrastructure development of the country.

CREDIT RISK

Cradit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the group if a customer or a counter party to a financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group's
receivables from distributors, institutions ete.

-y}
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MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e.
their legal status, financial conditions, ageing profile etc. Accounts receivable are related to sale
of Steels.

EXCHANGE RATE RISKS

In many cases the Company depends on imported raw materials. For this reason, 555L has to
face foreign currency risk, Unfavorable volatility or currency fluctuation may affect the
profitability of the Company.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

Company is fully aware of the risk related to currency fluctuation and as a prudent Company, we
always take precautionary measures to save the Company against exchange rate fluctuation.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

555L has outstanding long and short-term liabilities from bank. Hence, it is exposed to volatility
of interest rates on its outstanding bank liabilities. Due to several macroeconomic and market
driven factors, interest rates on short term and long-term bank loans may vary over time,
Inflationary pressure, increased dernand far bank loan, increased yolatility in money market,
restrictive monetary policy, etc. may compel SS5U's loan giving institutions to increase their
interest rates on its outstanding liabilities. If the interest rates on its existing bank loans are
increased from current levels, then its cash flow and profitability will be affected adversely. This
may also affect its value of shares.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION

While taking |loan, Company always carefully considers the balance to be maintained between
term loan, which carries fixed interest rate and short-term loan, which carries variable interest
rate so that any interest on inflation rate increase can be kept to the minimum. Additionally,
Company maintains very good reputation in the banking community and so far, being able to
attract very competitive rates from the Banks. Management of the Company is also emphasizing
on equity-based financing to reduce the dependency on bank borrowings, which is reflected in
the Financial Statements.
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INTEGRATED REPORT & RESPONSIBILITY
INTEGRATED REPORTING

Integrated Reporting is a process founded on integrated thinking that results in 3 periadic
integrated report by an organization about value creation over time and related communications
regarding aspects of value creation. An integrated report is & concise communication about how
an organization's strategy, governance, performance and prospects, in the context of its external
environment, lead to the creation of value in the short, medium and long term. IR is helping
businesses to think holistically about the strategy and plans, make informed decisions and
manage key risks to build investor and stakeholder confidence and improve future performance.
Dur 2021-2022 Annual Report has been presented as an ‘Integrated Report’ with the objective of
expressing how 5. 5. Steel Limited has effectively managed its business to deliver consistent
value to its stakeholders.

S5CQOPE OF THE REPORT

In 2013, the International Integrated Reporting Council (IRC) released a framework for
integrated reporting. The framework establishes principles and concepts that govern the overall
content of an integrated report. An integrated report sets out how the organization's strategy,
governance, performance and prospects, which lead to the creation of value. In presenting the
integrate Report, we have followed to the guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in the form of “Integrated Reporting Checklist" which is in
congruence with the integrated reporting frarnewoerk model issued by International Integrated
Reporting Council {IIRC). In explaining the company's cperations and financial performance,
financial information so disclosed has been extracted from the Audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 2021-2022 with relevant comparative information. The financial
statements consistently complying with the reguirements of-

International Accounting Standards (1AS)
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Companies Act 1994

Securities and Exchange Rules 1987

The Income Tax ordinance 1984

And other applicable laws and regulations of the land.

YU N Y YW

We have followed the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (B5EC) to report our corporate governance practices.
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RESPONSIBILITY

| acknowledge the responsibility to ensure the integrity of the disclosure contained in the
integrated Report presented herewith which comprise the discussion and analysis, disclosures
pertaining to stewardship, which should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statemnent. In the opinion, the integrated report, incorporated in this annual report has been
prepared in accordance with the IIRC's International Integrated Reporting framework and
addresses the material matter pertaining to the long-term sustainability of the group and
present fairly the integrated performance of 5. 5. Steel and impacts thereof.

Hasna Opgenhafen
Managing Director
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SHAREHOLDERS' AND STAKEHOLDERS

The Shareholders’ and Stakeholders shareholding position as on 30 June, 2022 are
given below:

Sponsors/Promoters and Directors

Government ' Nl
Institute 1.4
Foreign : Nil
General Public 57.07
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders
of
S. 8. Steel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of S. 8. Steel Limited and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group’) as well as the separate financial statements of 8. S, Steel Limited (the ‘Company’), which
comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 30® June. 2022. and the
consolidated and scparate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. consolidated and
separate statement of changes in equity and consolidated and separate statement of cash flows for the vear
then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, mcluding a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and scparate financial statements “except for” issues
presented in the basis for qualified opinion, give true and fair view of the consolidated lnancial position
of the Group and the separate financial position of the Company as at 30™ June, 2022, and of its
consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualificd Opinion

L We refer to note no 21 & 21A of the separate and consolidated financial statements regarding
Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF). As per the provisions made in section 234 of
Bangladesh Labour Act-2006 and guideline provided in Rules -2015 | the opening (Tk...
B83,277.994/- ) and closing balance (Tk... 128768433 /-...) of WWPF account is not
suppotted by separate bank account. The company does not have any trustee board in place for
the maintenance of the account. We failed to trace the opening balance amount as well as current
vear addition (Tk... 35.913.469/~.) in this year. That was a departure from section 234 of
Bangladesh Labour Act-2006,

Il We refer to note no: 15.00 of the financial statements regarding Share Money Deposit which is
Tk... 537.600,000/- (Tk..403,000.000/- in 2021). The Company is a Public Interest Entity (PIE)
as per 2(8) (KA) of Financial Reporting Act-2015 & Financial Reporting Council notification no:
179/ FRC/FRM/Proggapon/2020-01 dated 11 March, 2020. As a Public Interest Entity (PIE) the
Company  did  violate  Financial  Reporting  Council  (FRC)  notification  no:
146/FRC/Proshason/Proggapon/2020/01 dated 11 February, 2020 by not converting Share Money
Deposit into lawful Share Capital within 06 (six) month period from the date of deposit of the
amount, This event considered material in respect of departure from applicable regulation &
guideline (i.e. Financial Reporting Act-2015 & FRC notification) in preparation &presentation of
financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2020,

M.  We refer to note no; 07.00 regarding inventory and the opening balance is not free from material
misstatement. The previous auditor did not attain inventory count due to COVID-19 situation and
we find no alternative means to ensure the closing value and gquantity held. Absence of
appropriate supporting evidence, schedules & sequential documents to arive at Net Realizable
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Value (NRV) for the closing imventory amount restrict owr audit workings to decide whether there
is any adjustment was required to declare the closing inventory free from material misstatement,
The opening balances of inventory items also have impact on the estimated cost of poods
manufactured.

IV.  We were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the opening balances
regarding the capital Work in Progress (CWIP) note no: 6.00, Compliance with TDS & VDS
against expenses. The opening balances are not free lrom error because last year’s closing
balance s was misstated as per auditors’ report. In current year, the company did not deduct TDS
& VDS up to the mark under section 75(A), 108 & 108(A). There is no provision for these
expenses in the financial statements either.

V.  We refer to note no: 25,00 regarding revenue where the company presented VAT deduction from
sales is Tk, 28474 140/-. As per VAT return the company paid the said amount but as per current
applicable VAT rate and the quantity sold in current year, additional provision is required @ Tk.
2000/~ per Metric Ton. No provision has been made in respect of the additional amount which
results in material understatement of liability.

VL.  The amount of under provision in tax expense in preceding vear had not been adjusted in current
vear. As a result, the opening balance is still not free from error and the amount of under
provision is Tk.22,540,000/-.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We refer to note no: 1.04, 3.28 & 33.01 regarding the new acquisition of Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling
Mills Ltd.. financial proposal made, approval of acquisition in EGM and transfer of consideration for the
acquisition in current yeir,

We also refer to note no: 3.23(d) regarding company’s intention to introduce policy guideline for gratuity
fund as per Labour Act-2006.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment. were of most signiticance in our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whele. and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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1.Revenue Recognition
Ref: Note 25.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company in current vyear recognized
consolidated revenue of Tk 7,639,970, 498/~ for the
year,

Revenue  recognition  have  significant  and
widespread influence over the financial statements
and plays a vital role in calculating Corporate Tax.
Since, revenue recognition is one of the performance
indicators in almost all sector, there always exist risk
of revenue smoothing or window dressing.

As per [FRS 15 revenue is recognized when a
performance obligation is satisfied by transferring
control over a promised good or service.

-We clearly encoded the total procedure of process
starting  from receipt of customer order to
realization of revenue.

-We obtained understanding of revenue streams of
the company.

- We obtained general ledger for sales 1o trace all
sales transaction during the year and checked for
material journal entries at the end of the year.

-We choose sample from recorded transactions &
cross check as per invoice & delivery challan date
and number,

-We tested the key controls over approval of sales
order, signing off documents by appropriate
personnel and input sales data into system in a
complete & accurate manner,

-We collected sample work order, delivery
challan, GRN, invoice & payment dishursement
documents agamnst revenue.

-We collect delivery challan & invoice [0 days
before and after the vear end and check those
against sales ledger to ensure cut off,

-We also considered the bank account statement
used for realization of revenoe to make an
estimation of reported sales.

-We colleet monthly VAT return of the company
and compare sales as per Mushak-9.1 and general
ledger.

-We collect relevant delivery challan and sales
invoige as per last 10 days of current year along
with invoices of first 10 days of following year to
ensure cut off.

- We checked adequacy of appropriate disclosure
in accordance with IFRS 15 and other local
regulatory requirement.
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2.Inventory Valuation
Ref: Note 07.00

Key audit matters

How ouwr audit address the matter

The company discloses Tk 4.402,884.153/- a=

consolidated  closing  inventory in  tfinancial
statements which represents 23.52% of total assets
& 35.27 % of total current assets.

In its scparate financial statements, the value of

inventory is Tk, 2,533,812.731/-

Inventories are uwsually carried in  financial
statements at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Since frequent changes in customer demand
is unavoidable in manufacturing industry and a large
quantity of raw material is held. As a result, there is
risk that the carrying value of inventory exceeds net
realizable value.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We gained an understanding of recording and
valuation methods regarding Inventory.

-We made sure that closing balances care carried
forward correctly and current wear purchase
amounts are in agreement with ledger balances.

-We carried out analytical procedure to identify
unusual fluctuation.

-We went for physical inventory count at yearend
but found no stock counting formal process in
place by the company. We tested sample basis
store items and scrap in factory location. We
inspect linished goods store and checked guantity
as of date & other documentation on sample basis.
There were one inventory location for raw
imported scrap material which was in a separate
location and management did not set any program
for visiting that location,

-We obtained the yearend inventory count report
with segregated value prepared by management at
a later date.

- We retest the NRV caleulation made the
company and consider relevant assumptions made.

-We reviewed the company’s policy of accounting
for obsolete, damaged & slow moving items along
with procedure for disposal.

-We have checked the physical safeguard of
inventory held at warehouse of the campany.

- We checked for company’s workings on NRY
test in  waluation of ioventory and tried
recalculating NRV test.

~We collect relevant vouchers of inventory
purchase and invoice as per last 10 days of current
vear along with invoices of first 10 davs of
following year to ensure cut off.

-We have also considered the adequacy of the
company’s disclosures in respect of the levels of
provisions against mventory as per IAS-2.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment
Ref: Note 4.00

Key audit maiiers

In the year ended 30™ June, 2022 the company
accounted for Property Plant and Equipment WDV
in separate balance sheet of Tk. 2,800.380.312/- &
Tk 239,849,192 as current year addition to fixed
asset. The consolidated WDV of PPE is Tk
5,576,764,421/-,

The consolidated written down balance represents
around 29.79% of total assets, Large amount and
number of fixed assets and subsequent additions
subject to huge amount of depreciation charged
against profit. Error in addition to fixed asset &
depreciation caleulation could vesult in over or
understatement of profit / assets.

How our audit address the matter

-We obtained asset register and confirm the
opening balances that are carried forward from
last year.

-We obtained current year purchase / addition to
fixed asset documents and ensure their complete
recording in ledger.

-We obtain import documents of machineries (bill
of entry, AIT documents, C & F documents,
insurance coverage, carrying , installation costs) to
assess the relability of value recorded.

-We inspected the physical existence of the assets,
assets capitalized in current year along with the
verification of company’s legal rights on those
assets.

-We recaleulate the depreciation charged against
assets in current year,

~We carried out analytical procedure to detect any
unusual fluctuation in value in comparison with
last year,

-We collect relevant vouchers of PPE addition and
invoice as per last 10 days of current year along
with invoices of first 10 days of following vear to
ensure cut oft,

-We evaluate the appropriateness of disclosures in

financial statements in line with IAS-16.

4, Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)
Ref: Note 26.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the miatter

The company account for Tk 5,996,353,121/- as
consolidated cost of goods sold in current year in
separate  financial statements. The amount of
COGS plays vital role in arriving at the gross profit
margin of the company. There are chances of
over/understatement of COGS  either through
deliberate attempt or by error. Either Both event
could distort the fair view of the financial
performance of the company.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We obtained purchase ledger to identify all
transactions made current year for purchase of raw
material, chemicals & spare parts/store items.

-We checked the correciness of opening balances
carried forward for raw material, finished goods &

WIP in the calculation of COGS,.
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-We obtained and checked vouchers, challan & 3%
party invoices against ledger regarding salary &
wages, factory overheads. cammiage inward to ensure
oceurrence and accuracy ol events.

-—-We recalculate the figures to ensure mathematical
accuracy of the balances & transactions recorded.

-We use analytical procedure to detect any unusual
trend in COGS compared to revenue / last year
COGS,

-We collect relevant vouchers of material
purchase/overhead expenses and 3" party invoice
as per last 10 days of current vear along with

invoices of first 10 days of following year to ensure
cut off.

-We checked import LC, bill of entry, material
received note for serap & chemicals.

-We reviewed disclosures regarding quantity &
value of ttems mncluded in COGS,

5. Cash & Cash Equivalent
Ref: Note 10.00

Key aundit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company disclose for 40 Bank Accounts in it's
separate financial statements with total of Tk...
01,692,113.. closing balance as on 30 June, 2022. It
also disclose Tk, .. 4,144.757.... as cash in hand at
year end along with short term investment in FDR
Tk... 460945204 /-...

The total amount of cash & cash equivalent is Tk
556,782,074/~ . which is ...3.9%... of total asset of
the company and is considered material for the
purpose of audit,

The consolidated Cash & cash equivalent amount is
Tk, 637,931,666 represents ...3.41%... of total
assets in the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We obtained ledger balances of bank accounis to
confirm correct balances are carried forward in
financial statements.

-We sent & obtained 3" party confirmation (from
bank) regarding the closing balances of the bank
accounts,

-Where necessary, we obtained bank statements
along with reconciliation statements to check any
mismatch with ledger and bank statement balances.

—~We inspect documents to detect any new bank
account opening or old account closing in current
year.

-We checked the adequacy of disclosures regarding
the identity of bank, branch name, account type
and currency.
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6. Long Term & Short Term Loan
Ref: Note 17.00 & 20.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company disclose for 10 term loan Accounts in
its separate financial statements with different bank
& NBF1 amounting Tk, 2,515,209,440/-.. closing
balance as on 30 June, 2022, 1t also disclose Tk.
3.275071.226/- as short term loan finance.

The total amount of long & short term loan is Tk. ..
5,790,280,665/-.. which is ...41%.. of total asset of
the company and is considered material for the
purpose of audit.

The consolidated Long Term Loan is Tk
2.945,760,530/- & Shot Term Loan is Tk
5514321, 84)-. The sum is Tl 8460082 370/-
representing 45.20% of total consolidated equity &
liability.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:
-We obtained loan account ledger to identify all
transactions took place current year and closing
balances are carried forward correctly in financial
statements,

-We sent & obtained 3rd party confirmation (from
bank)} regarding the closing balances of the bank
gccounts.

-Where necessary, we obtaimed bank statements
along with reconciliation statements to check any
mismatch with ledger and bank statement balances.

—~We inspect documents to detect any new bank
account opening or old account closing in current
year.

-We collect sanction letters in respect of the loans
to identify tenure, limit, interest rate & covenants,

-We review the finance cost caleulation charged in
statement  of comprehensive income and  its
reasonableness as per loan documents obtained.

-We checked the adequacy of disclosures regarding
the type, bank/NBFI1 detail, branch, and limit and
covenanis relevant to loan finance.

7. Receivables
Ref: Note 08.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company account for Trade Receivables
closing balance as Tk, 2.504.405.045/-. Which is
23.93...% of current assets and...17.93...%
total assets of the company in the separate financial
statements.

Trade receivable closing balance might include
balances that are old enough to ensure complete
recoverability, There is possibility of fictitious
client nmame  with  nmusleading  balances.
Over/understated balances in receivable accounts
and the possibility of recoverability could lead to
material misstatement to the financial position of
the company.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We obtained receivable account ledger to identify
all transactions took place current year .

-We ensure that, all closing balances of parties
carried forward correctly as opening balance in
current year,

-We checked the transactions in current year in
terms of invoice & challan number and recalculate
the closing balance at yearend.

-We sent and obtained 3™ party confirmation on
sample basis to ensure reliability of the closing
balance. .
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--Where necessary, we obtained subsequent ledger
and bank statement/money receipt to confirm
recoverability of the year end closing balance.

-We collect relevant vouchers and invoice as per
last 10 days of current yvear along with invoices of
first 10 days of following vear to ensure cut off.

-We review company’s assessment regarding the
requirement for recording expected credit loss
against any aged receivable amount.

-We checked the adequacy of disclosures regarding
accounting standards and The Companies Act-
1994,

B. Investment
Ref: Note 11.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The invested Tk 2364773893/ In (12
subsidiary companies and Tk... 685065448/~ in
FDR as long term mvestment. The amount of total
investment represents .. 21.84.% total assets of the
company in the separate financial statements.

[nvestment in subsidiary could be with control or
without control. Basis of presentation of investment
of subsidiary will depend on control obtained by
investment, There are chances that the company
may not follow proper accounting standard for
presentation of investment in subsidiary. There is
also risk that, the investment balances are fictitious
or not free from error. There is also chances that,
the FDR balances are not free from material
misstatement or the amount is lean against some
cuarantee/margin where the company s not the
beneficiary.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We obtained BoD} minutes to assess the reason for
investment in subsidiary.

-We ensure that, nvestment amount correctly
transferred following legal channel.

-We calculate figures of investment in subsidiary to
ensure mathematical accuracy of the invested
amount.

-We reviewed last year audited financial statements
to ensure correct opening balances are carried
forward.

--Where necessary, we obtained subsequent ledger
and bank statement'money receipt to confirm
recoverability of the year end closing balance.

-We collect relevant vouchers and invoice as per
last 10 days of cwrrent yvear along with invoices of
first 10 days of following year o ensure cut off.

-We review company’s assessment regarding the
requirement for recording expected eredit loss
against any aged receivable amount.

-We checked the adequacy of disclosures regarding
accounting standards and The Companies Act-
1994,
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8. Business Acquisition & Consolidation

Key awdit matlers

How our andil address the matter

The company reported new acquisition of Al-Falh
Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited in current year as
a subsidiary company with 99% hooding. The
amount of consideration is 874 million during
acquisition and a  subsequent working  capital
investment of 200 million.

There is risk that, the company did not follow
proper acquisition method as per IFRS 3 Business
Combination. There is also risk that the
consolidation 18 not in line with [FRS-10
consolidated Financial Statements.

Our audit approach includes but not limited to the
followings:

-We obtained BoD  meecting minutes to gain
understanding of the purpose of acquisition.

-We obtain the financial proposal made for the
acquisition and the mode of payment of
consideration,

-We collect the fair valuation report and assess the
reasonableness of the value of the indefinable net
asset of the acquisition target,

-We confirm  the completion of performance
obligation due for both the acquirer and acquire.

-We checked transactions, Bold minutes & other
document to ensure if there is any contingent
consideration involved in the acquisition process.

-We checked the bank transaction to ensure transfer
of consideration by acquirer and RJSC form 117 to
ensure successful transfer of ownership rights by
the acquire,

-We reviewed the calculation for NCI, identified
net asset, Goodwill / Bargain Purchase benefit (if
any) from the acquisition,

-We checked EGM minutes to confirm  the
approval of sharcholders on the acquisition,

--We obtamed audited financial statements of the
subsidiary companies to ensure correciness of the
consolidated amount.

-We review adequacy of disclosures regarding date

of acquisition, parties involved, objective and other
disclosures as per IFRS-3 & [FR5-10,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon. The

directors are responsible for the other information,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Se¢parate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate
financial statements that are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements. management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable. matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
onc resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's and the Company’s internal control,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report o the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease 1o continue
as a going concer,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

s  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

Y
| o
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statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and sigmificant audit findings, ncluding any sigmficant deficiencies in internal
control that we 1dentify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relaied
safeguards,
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing s0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

In accordance with the Companics Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report
the following:

a) we have obtained all available information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the
Company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

¢} the consolidated and the separate statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and
returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Group’s and the Company’s business.

Jpsin b

Md.Mohiuddin Ahmed FCA, CFC
Enrollment no: 1046
Place: Dhaka Partner

Date: 31 January, 2023 Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2301311046AS8704893
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5. 5. STEEL LIMTTED

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

45 at 30 june 2022
Ampount in Taka Amount in Taka
Particulars Motes 30-Jun-22 30-Jum-21
Assels:
Moen current assets 6,235,191,955 4,381, 743,600
Froperty, plant & eguipments 44 5576, 764,421 3. 745,751,701
Ceposits 5.00 24,033,077 448,193
Goodwill - 100,363,837 160,263,837
Capital work-ln-progress i 534,030,620 533,199,850
Current assets 12483,127 984 131,174,641
Inventaries TA 4,402 884,153 2171458291
Trade and gther receivailes B.A 3,851,540,889 3269412518
Adyances, deposits end prapayments aA 2883537030 1,880.523.884
Cezh and cash equivalents 10.4 637,931,666 S04,225,139
Inyestmant 1100 707234245 305554804
Total Assets e 18,718,319,939  _____12,512,918,243
Shareholders' Equity & Liabilitdes:
Total shareholders’ Equity 7365444 416 6,773,431,048
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 7.265,258,514 6,761,507, 186
Share capital 12.00 3280332000 042,900,000
Retainad earnings 13.A 3,113,254,539 2916066992
Revaluation reserve 14A 855,871,575 802,540,193
Non controlling interest [ 10,165,902 | | 11.923.863 |
Share money deposit [ 537,600,000 | | 403,000,000 |
Non current liabilities 3,086,038.803 1,678.521,166
Deeferred tax lHabilitles 1654 251,170,940 272303764
Ivon current porton of term loan 17.4 £811,663396 1371207768
Flnance lepse abligation -nan current gortion 22.00 23,204,458 35,009,634
Current liabilities 7,729,236, 718 3,657,966,026
Currant portion of term Ioan 17.00 421,015,608 242,695,433
Trade end other payables 1B.A 897 431,262 618,338,608
Accrued expenses 12.4 206,067,431 120,705,533
Short term loan 20.4 522731236467 1946504 415
Finance leass oblipation - current postion 22.00 6,544, 847 9874512
Dividend Payable 23,00 13,034,919 8,068,674
Provizion for WEPPT and welfare fund 21A 141607473 G4 E62ERT
Frovision for income tax 24.A 16222812 617216260
Total Equity and Liabilities 16,718,319,939 12,512,918,243
Consolidated net assets value per share (NAVPS) without revaluation 2141 20.95
Consolidated net assets value per share (NAVPS) with revaluation 24.05 23.58

The annexed notes form an [ntegral part of these Financial Statements, These Financlal Statements wers authorized for issue by 'I‘J:Le Board of

Dlrectors on 21 [anuary 2023,

Independent Director

@i

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 31, 2023

Managing Director

Y

-
)

Company Secratary

ot

Md. Mohiuddin Ahmed, FCA CFC

Partner
Enrallment : 1046

Ashraf Uddin & Co,
Chartered Accountants

DG 2301211046A57048593
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5. 5. STEEL LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the period ended 30 June 2022

Amount in Talka Amount in Taka
Particulars Notes 01 Jul 2021 to 071 Jul 2020 to
30 Jun 2022 30 Jun 2021

Revenue{MNer of VAT) 254 7,639.970.498 6.385,707,338
Cost of goods seld 26.4 (5.992,863,233) (4.932.840.579)
Gross profit 1,647,107,265 1452,066,759
Administrative expenses 274 {159,546.714) (117,734,653}
Zelling and distribution expenses 28.A (97, 187,217) (113,273,111}
Operating profit hefore financial expenses 1.390,273,334 1,221,858,985
Financial expenses 294 (6163857,7147 (334 696,108)
Profit before other income 773,415,620 BA7,162,877
Other income ana | 35,328,358 | [ 40,112,667 |
FProfit before WPPF and provision for income tax 808,743,979 927,275,543
Contribution to WFPF and welfaie fund [37,467,915) [44,155378]
Profit before income tax TTL276,063 683,119,565
Provision for income tax {157,887 825) (178,698,349)

Current tax {175,316,285) [206,989,467)

Defarred tax 17 428,456 28,291,117
Profit after iIncome tax 613,388,234 704421210

Galn on property revaluation 370,149 569 -
Total comprehensive income 1,583,537,803 =
Net profit atiributable to:
Equity holders of the company A12,962.648 704,155,533
Non-controlling interest 4724 SHE 265 683
Consolidated profit/ (loss) 613,388,234 ?ﬂi.ﬂl,Zi
Total copmrehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity helders of the company 1.567,702425 -
MNon-controlling interest 15,835,378 -
Consolidated total copmrehensive profit/ (loss) 1,583,537,603 -
Consolidated Earning Per Share {(EPS) 1.87 2.31

—_— ——
The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financlal Statements, These Flnancial Statements were authorized for tssue

by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023, \ /'
/w&h« @W—‘ {l{

Independent Director Managing Director Chairman
—— AT LU
@J}- ol ‘%f /
Chief Financial Oificer Company Secretary

This is the consolidated Statement of Financial Position referred to in our separate report of even date.

Rlsbsbes

Flace: Dhaka md. Mohiuddin Ahmed, FCA,CFC
Date: January 31, 2023 Partner
Enrollment : 1045

Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Charterad Accountants
DWVC: 230131 1046A57048093
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5. 5. STEEL LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 30 June 2022
Amount in Taka

Share Revaluation

Particulars Capital Reserve Retained Earnings Total Equity
Balance at the beginning on 01 July 2021 3,042,200,000 802,540,153 2838418429 6,683,858,623
89 stork dividend 243,432,000 F {243,432,000) z
2% cash dividend - - [41,511,004) (41,511,004}
Revaluation Incurred in 2021-2022 - 72,918,321 - 72,918,321
Adjustment for tax FY 2020-2021 [22,540,000) [22,540,000)
Net profit (after tax) u':u'ls:ferfed from . 613,388,224 613,388,234
statement of comprehensive ineome
Non f:nfn_tmlllng interest (NCI) at i R 50,594,385 50,554,385
acquisition
HCE Share of post acquisition retained ) - 1740002 1,740,002
earnings
Exce_ss depreciation transfer to retained (9.786,538) 16,782,395 6,995,857
earnings
Balance as at 30 June 2022 3.286,332,000 865671976 3,213 440,441 7365444417

For the perfod ended 30 June 2021
Amounnt in Taka
Share Revaluation ; 9

Particulars Capital Re Retained Earnings Total Equity
Balance at the beginning on 01 July 2020 2,817,500,000 811,672,815 2473093149 6,102,265,964
8% stock dividend 225,400,000 - (225,400,0000 -
2% cash dividend - - (33,256,131) (33,256,131}
ek phfle (Ater 1o Cadiat e Mo : : 704,421,216 704,421,216
statement of comprehensive income
Exce_ss depreciation transfer to retained (9,132,622) 9,132,622
garnings
Balance as at 30 June 2021 3,042,900,000 802,540,193 2,927,990,855|  6,773,431,048

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements. These Financial Statements were authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023

o -

Independent Director Mamnaging Director Chairman
2 o
@B &
Chief Financial Officar Company Sacretary

This is the consolidated Statement of Financial Position referred to in our separate report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 31 January, 2023
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5. 5. STEEL LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended 30 June 20:22

Amountin Taka Amount in Taka

Particulars 01July2021to 31) [01July2020te 31

June 2022

June Z0Z1

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers & others 6,572,615375 4,8962,548,7495
Payment for Cost and Expenses (7B59,624,218) (4,321,062 961)
Income tax payment (39,340,934) (28,658,147}
Net cash inflow/[outflow) from operating activities (4) (1,326,349,776) 612,027,687
Cash flews from Investing actvities

Arquisidon of property, plant and equipnient (242,£52,B81) (24,128,757}
Advance, Deposit & Pre-Payments (546,155,834.54) (382,952,395 54
Capital work in progress (830,750) [275,685,208]
Investment (1476,279437) [1437,140,702]
Share money Deposit 376,100,043 1.586,310,057
Net cash inflow,/ [ outflow) from investing activities (B) (1,887.818,859) [533,597,008)
Cash flows from financing activities

Long term loan paid 1,220,918,525 (40,632,688
Shortterm loan 2,793,298,764 367,283,127
Lease Payments (15,134, EB41) (13,677,203)
Dividend Paymemts (36,544,764 {25,187 453}
Financial expenses (615,918,850) (349,497 220)
Net cash inflow/{outilow) from financing activities [C) 3,346,618,836 [41,711,436)
Met increase of cash and cash equivalents for the vear (A+B+C) 132,450,201 37,519,243
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 505481465 466,705,896
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 637,931,666 504,225,139
Net operating cash flow per share-NOCFPS [4.04) 2.01

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements. These Financial Statements wers authorized for

Issue by the Board of Directors on 31 Janvary 2023, |
/ﬂ»&l"rﬂr W )

Independent Director Managing Director Chairman
Gl &V
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Thizis the consclidated Statement of Financial Position referred to in our separate report of even date,

Flace: Dhaka
Date: January 31, 2023
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Az at 30 June 2022
Notes Amount in Taka
Particul
SRR 30-Jun-2022 || 30 Jun-z0Z1
Assets:
Non current assels 3,350,850,708 3,223,544,182
Property, plant & equipments 4.00 2800380312 2,695,50941%
Depasits 500 24,033,076 2428193
Capital wark-in-progress 5.00 525,437,319 525,606,569
Current assets 10,613,487,252 7,114,188 ,445
Inventories 7.00 2,533,812,732 1801512637
Trade and other receivables B.00 2,504,405,046 1,736,004,234
Advances, depasils and prepayments 9.00 1.968.644,059 1,497 571 485
(ash and cash equivalents 10.00 556,782,074 S02,780,603
Investment 11.00 3,049,839,341 1,575,319,485
Total Assels 13|'5'E4- 33 '?I'?ﬁl] 1‘-']"33 TI?EZIEZE
Sharcholders’ Equity & Liabilities:
Shareholders’ Equity 5,989,164.407 5.475,977.365
Share capital 12.02 3,286,332,000 3,042,900,000
Fetained earnings 13.00 2,013,892,783 1.735.604,577
Resvraluaton reseeve 14.00 HEB, 939,619 607 472 7R
Share money deposit 15.00 | 537,600,000 || 403,000,000 |
Non current liabilities 2,336,972,485 1,645,072,234
Deforrad tax labllities 16.00 219,574,196 236,854,832
Non current portion of term loan 17.00 2,094,193,331 1,371,207,768
Finance lease obligadon -non current partion 22.00 23,204,458 35,009,634
Current liabilities 5,100,601,068 2,813,683,026
Current portion of term loan 17.00 421,015,608 242895433
Trade and other payables 18.00 368,007,016 310,807,921
Accrued expenses 19.00 159,183,719 92,049,380
Short term loan 20.00 3,275,071,226 1,520.685,162
Provision for WPPF and welfare fund 21.00 128,768,433 83,277,994
Finance lease obligation - current partion 22,00 6,544,847 9,874,512
Dividend Payable 23.00 13,034,919 8,068,678
Provision for Income Lax 2400 728975301 R45,123 325
Total Eqguity and Liabilities 13,964,337 960 10,337,732,626
Net assets value per share (NAVPS) without revaluation 31.02 17.76 17.03
Net assets value per share (NAVPS) with revaluation 31.03 19.86 19.32

The annexed notes form an integral part of theze Financial Statements. These Financial Statements were :a.uthnrrzeri for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023,

wliglit — \
7 {
Independent Director Managing Director Chairman
@i 4
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrotary

These Statement of Financial Positlon are to be read In conjunction with notes 100 to 32.00 attached.

VANt

Md. Maohiluddin Ahmed,FCA,CFC
Partner

Enrollment : 1046

Ashraf Uddin & Co.

Chartered Accountants

DWC: 2301311046A5704893

-y

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 31, 2023
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5. 5. STEEL LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Particulars Notes ATInRE I Takn
2021-2022 2020-2021

Revenue 25.00 5.040,798,732 4,196,859,974
Cost of gpoods sold 26.00 {3,659,970,329) (3,059,916,953]
Gross profit 1,380,828,403 1,136,943,020
Administrative expenses 27.00 (106,407,601) (87,383 825)
Selling and distribution expenses 2H.00 [76,655,002) (98,908,728)
Operating profit before financial expenses 1,197, 765,800 950,650,467
Financial expenses 29.00 {478,108.269) (292,996 825)
Profit belfore other income 719,657,531 650,653,642
Other income 30.00 34525324 | | 39,645,450 |
Profit before WPPF and provision for income tax 754,182,856 690,299,092
Contribution to WPPF and welfare fund [35,913.469) (32,871,385)
Profit before income tax 718,269,386 657,427,707
Provision for income tax (141,031,340} (74,156,481)

Current tax (160,311,976) (135,896,530)

Deferred tax 19,280,634 61,740,050
Profit alfter income tax 577,238,046 583,271,225
Earning Per Share (EPS) 31.01 1.76 1.92

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements. These Financial Statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023,

s Gl 2

Independent Director Managing Director Chairman
@i B\
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

These Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income are to be read in conjunction with netes

1.00 ta 31.00 attached.

Md. Mohiuddin Ahmed,FCA,CFC
Partner

Enrollment : 1046

Ashraf Uddin & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Flace: Dhaka
Cate: January 31, 2023

AELUFNTTIRES STRFVETH,
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Amount in Taka
i Share Revaluation Retained

P Capital Reserve Earnings Thtel Bty
E;lza;m atthebeglnningon OLJuly | 405 900,000 | 697,472,788 | 1735604577 | 5475977365
Stock Dividend [8%) 243,432,000 C [243.432,000) -
Cash Dividend (2%) . (41,511,004) (41,511,004)
Adjusmment for tax FY 2020-2021 [22,540,000) [22,540,000]
Met profit (after tax] transferred
from statement of comprehensive - - 577,238,046 577,238,046
Income
Em:gss depra:.:iatmn transfer to ) (8,533,168) 8,533,168 i
retained carnings
Balance as at 30 June 2022 3,286,332,000 688,239,619 2,013,892,787 5,989,164,407

For the year ended 30 June 2021
Amount in Taka
) Share Revaluation Retained ; .

Pinticolirs Capital Heserve Earnings Total Byuity
EEE;‘“ atthebeglnning no Sl Jnly 2,817,500,000 | 706,500,525 1,401,961,746 |  4,925962,271
Stock Dividend [B%) 225,400,000 . (225,400,000) -
Cash Dividend (2%]) - [33.256,131) (33.256,131)
Met profit {after tax) transferred
from statement of comprehensive - - 583,271,225 583,271,225
income
Excess depreciation transfer to i (9,027.737) 9,027,737 i
retained earnings
Balance as at 30 June 2021 3.042,900,000 697,472,788 1,735,604,577 5,475,977 365

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements. These Financial Statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023,

/md;»&ft

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer

Managing DMrector

&

Company Secretary

These Statement of Changes in Equity are to be read in conjunction with notes 1.00 10 31.00 attached.

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 31, 2023




ANNUAL REPORT

5. 5 STEEL LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

. Amount in Taka
z021-2022 || 20z20-2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers & others 4,335,397,384 4,306,889,715
Payment for Cost and Expenses (4,779.448,485) [3,662,186,005)
Income tax payment [36,224,125) (28,658,147
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (A) (480,275,226) 616,045,563
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (239,849,192)

Deposits

Capital worlcin progress

Investment

Share money Deposit

Net cash inflow/[outflow) from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Long term loan pald

Short term loan

Lease Payments

Dividend Paymemts

Financial expenses

Net cash inflow /{outflow) from financing activities (C)

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents for the year (A+B+C)

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Net operating cash flow per share-NOCFPS (Note: 30.04)

(21,604,883

(6,573,514)

(830,750) (268,091,906)
(1,473,519,856) (1,417,731,487)
134,600,000 403,000,000
(1,601,204,680)  (1,289,396,907)
901,306,238 1,101,677,369
1,754,386,044 (58,536,106)
(15,134,841) (13,677.203)
(36,544,764) (25,187,453)
(468,531,299) (204,797,937)
2,135,481,378 709,478,671
54,001,471 36,127,328
502,780,603 466,653,276
556,782,074 502,780,603
(1.46) z.02

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements. These Financlal Statements were authorized

for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2023,

/,J,,a,.f

@?JJ,-«

Independent Director

@i

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 31, 2023

Managing Director

Chairman

T T P ST

Company Secretary
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5. 5. STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Stutements
As atand For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Company & It's Operations
Legal form of the Company

5. & Steel Limited (hersinafter referred to as "the Company” ] was [ncorporated as private company limited by shares on 22
December 2001 under the Companies Act, 1994, Subsequently, 5. 3. Steel Limited company was converted from private limited
company to public Iimited company on 15 December 2016. Also the company changed his name 5. 5. Stee] Limited from 5.5
Steel (Pvt) Limited dated on 10th May 2018. The Company iz listed with Dhake Stock Exchange on 9 October 2013 as a
publicly traded company. Trading of the shares of the company started from 17 January 2019,

Address of the Registered & Corporate Otfice

The registered office of the company 1s lecated at Pear] Trade Center, Cha - 90/3 Pragatl Sarani North Badda, Dhalka-1212,
Bangladesh and the factory is located 24 Plot-4, Block-B, Tongi Industrial Area, Tongi, Gazipur,

Nature of Business Activities

Thie principal actvities of the company are to manufacture and sales of M.S, Deformed Bar of various grades (300w,/40 Grade,
A0 0w /61 Grade and 500w,/ TMT] from M.5. Billet and Ingot The Company prodoce M5, Billets from serap.

Subsidiary Companies

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited (AFSEML), a subsidiary company of 3. 5, 5teel Limited was incorporated on 4th April
2005, (Incorporaton no. C-56521(3204)/05) by the Reglstrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms under the Companies Act,
1994, The registered office of the company 13 located at 84, Shahid Nazrul Islam Sarani, Zemal Iron Building. Dhaka-1100.

In an extracrdinary general meeting Leld on 20th February 2022 the board of directors deelded to make an equily investment
in AFSEML with a view to subscribe 99% of its existing equity shares omounting Tk 87.46 crore,

AFSRML was acquired by 5. 5. Steel Limited on S5th March 2022, Consequently the new management took the comtrol over the
comipaity on the same date. Objective of the aguisition was to accelerate consolidated production of the compnay. AFSRMLisa
reputed steel industry in Bangladesh, engaged in the production of and selling of steel by its brand name and has capacity of
zround f4,800 metric ton par annum

Saleh Stee] Industries Limited

Salel Steel Industries Lid. also subsidiary company of 5. 5 Steel Limited was incorperated asa private Umited company vide
certificate of incorperation no, C-5953(511)/1978 dated 11th March 1978, by the Registrar of [oint Stock Companies and
Firms under the Companies Act, 1994, The registered office of the company is located ot 85 /R and 86,/R, Nasirabad, Industrial
Area, Chittagong

Salzh Steal 1§ acquired by 5. 5. Steel in 2020 with an objecdve to enhance 1t total producton capacity. Saleh Stesl i= angaged (n
manufacture and sales of M.5. Deformed Bar of various grades (300w,/40 Grade, 400w ,/60 Grade and 500w,/ TMT) from M.5.
Billet, Ingar, Angles, Channels, Tees and all kinds of M.S, Souctures under are-rolling mills. The Company produce M.S. Billets
from scrap, The company has an annval production capacity of 86,000 metric toi

Summary of Significant Accounting & Valuation Principles
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financizl Reparting Standards [TFRS), the
Companies Act 1994, The Securities end Exchange Ordinance, 1969, The Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993, the
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicabie laws and regulatdons in Bangladesh. Cash Oows from operating
activities are prepared under direction method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchangs Rules 1947,

(n 14 December 2017, the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of Bongladesh (ICAE) has adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as IFRSs. As the ICAB previously adopted soch
standards 2 Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards without any modification, this recent adoption will oot have any impact
on the financial statements of the Company going forward.A number of new standards and amendments to standards are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and earlier application is permitted.
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Other Regulatory Compliances

The company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along with the Companies Act 19%4;
A The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984

E. The Income Tax Rules, 1984

C. The Value Added Tax and Supplementzry duty Act, 2012

[}, The Value Added Tax and supplementary duty Rule, 2016

E. The Sscurities and Exchange Ordinance, 1962

F. The Sacurities and Exchange Rules, 1987

G. Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

H. The Customs Act, 1969

[. Bangladesh Labour Law, 2006 .

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern concept, historical cost convention and on accrial basis in
aeeardance with International Accounting Standards (1A5s] and Internatinnal Financlal Reporting Standzrds [IFRSs]and in
compliance with the companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchanges Rules 1987 and lsting regulatons of Dhalka Stock
Exchange Lud (DSE].

Accounting Convention and Assumption:
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention .

Accounting Records
The entity has been maintaining all the required books of accounts are necessary for the accounts.

Reporting Period
The financial statements of the compaiy cover one year from 01 july 2021 1o 30 Jjune 2022

Principal Accounting Policies

The specific accounting pelicies have been selecied and applied by the company's management for significant transactions and
events that have a matarial effect within the Framework for preparation and presentation of finsmcial statzments. Financial
statement, have been prepared and precented in compliance with [A5-1 "Presentation of Financial Staterent ", The previeus
period's figures wers formulated accounting to the same accounting principles. Compared to the previous period, there were
na significant changes in the accounting and wvaluation policies affecting the financial position 2rd performance of the
Company. However, Changes made to the presentation are explained in the note for each respective {tem,

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are expiressed in Bangladeshi Taka which is both functional currency and reporting currency of the
Company. The figures of financial statements have heen rounded off to the nearest taka.

Use of estimates and judgments

The praparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that afect
the application of accountdng policies and the reported armounts of assets, llabllides, income and expenses. Actnal resulis may
differ from these estimates and underlying assumptions, which are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revision to accounting
estimates is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affectad,

Going concern

The Company has adequate resources to coptinue It operation for foreseeahle future, the financial statements have been
prepared on going concern basis. As per Management's assessment there are no materizl vacertainties which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

Comparative information

Cnmparative information has heen disclnsed in respect of the previous year for all numerical information in the financial
staternents and also the narvative and descriptive Information where it i3 relevant for understanding of the current year's
financial statements. Previons year's figurez have been resrvanged wherever considered mecessary, to ensure better
comparability with the current year's financial statements and to comply with relevant [45s,




2.12 Compliance with International Accounting Standards [IASs)

213

The following lASs and [FRSs are applicable and adopted by management for preparation of financlal statements for the vear

ended 30 June 2023;
]f:‘ Name of the 1ASs TAaSs no. Status
1 |Presentaton of Ainencial statemeants 1 Applied
2 |Inventories 2 Applied
% |Statement of cash flows 7 Appliad
4 |Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates & etrors | Mot Applicable
5 |Ewents after the reparting period 10 Mot Applicable
& |Income taxes 12 Applied
7 |Property, plant and equipment 16 Applied
d |Leases 17 Applied
9 |Emploves bepefits 19 Not Applicable
10 |Accounting of Government grants and disclosure of Government assistance 20 Kot Applicable
11 |The effects of changes in forgign exchange rates 21 Appliad
12 |BoiTowing costs 23 Mot Applicable
13 |Related party disclosures L3 Applied
14 |Accounting and reporting by retirement benefit plans 28 Mot Applicable
15 |Separate financial statements 27 Not Applicable
16 |Inwestment in asscciates and joint veniure 28 Mot Applicable
17 |Fimancial reporting in hyperinflationary economies Z9 Mot Applicable
18 |Financial instruments: presentation 32 Applied
19 |Earnings per share 33 Applied
20 |Interim financial reporting 34 Not Applicable
21 |Impairment of assets 36 Applisd
22 |Frovision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 37 Applied
23 |Intangible aggets 38 Not Applicable
24 |Financial Instruments: Becognition and Maasurement 39 Mot Applicable
25 |Investment property 40 Net Applicable
26 [Agriculture 41 Met Applicable
Sk, Name of the IFRE HRY's Status
N ik
01 |First-tigme adoption of International Finanelal Reporting Standards 1 Applied
02 |Share bazed payment 2 Mot Applicable
N3 |Business comhinations 3 Applisd
D4 |Insurance Somtracks 4 Not Applicsble
05 |Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations g Mot Applicable
06 |Explorstion for and evaluation of mineral resources 6 Mot Applicable
07 |Financlal instruments: dizclosures 7 Applied
08 [Dperating s=gments a Not Applicable
% |Financial instruments k] Applied
10 |Consolidated fimancial statements 10 Applied
11 |(leint arrangements i1 Mot Applicable
12 |Disclosura of interests in other entities 12 Wot Applicable
13 |Fairvalue measurement 13 Applied
14 |Regulatory Defferral Accounts 14 Not Applicable
15 |Rewvenue from Contracts with Customers 15 Applied
1o [Leases 16 Applied
17 |Insurance contracts 17 Mot Applicable

The financial statements are in compliance with the International Financial Repoiting Standards [IFRSs) which are adopted
from the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE).

Events After the Reporting Perlod
Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the Company's position at the reporting date are
reflected in the financal statements. Events after the veporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
when material
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Significant Accounting Policies

Application of Standards

The financial statements have besn prepared in compliance with requirement of [ASs (International Accounting Standards)
and requiremyent of [FRSs (International Financlal Reporting Standards)as adopted by The Institute of Charterad Accountants
of Bangladesh [ICAB) as applicable in Bangladesh.

Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and Measarament:

In compliance with 145-16 (Property, Flant & Equipment]) itéms of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE), excluding land are
inttially measured at cost less accomolated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land is measured at cost.
The cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes after deducting trade discount
rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the logation and condition necessary for it to be capahle of
operating in the intended manner.

ii) Capitalization of Borrowing Cost

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction of plants are included in the cost of those plants in compliance
with [A5-23: Borrowing Cost, allowed alternacive treatment.

iif) Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing part of an [tem of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amaont of the item if it is
probable that the future scoacmic benafits embadied within the part will few to the Company and (8 cast can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day to day maintaining cost on FPE are recognizad and Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

iv) Depreciation

Mo depreciation iz charged on fand and land dewelopment. Consistantly, depreciation is provided on reducing halance method
hased on written down value at which the assets is carried in the books of account, Depreciation continues to be provided until
such time as the written dowm value is reduced to Taka one. Each item of PPE {3 depreciated when it {s avallable for use Le.
when it is in the location and conditdon necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner lntended by management
Depreciation of an ascets ceases at the earliar of the date that the asset Iz classiffed as held for zale (or Included In a disposal
group that iz classified as held for gale] in accordance with IFRS 5 and the date that the asset is darecognized.

The depreciation/amortization rata(s] are as follows:

Category of Fixed Assets Rate®;
Land & Land Development -
Factory Bulldings 5%
Plant & Machinery (e
Electric Equipment 10%
Generator 604
Office Equipment 10%
Furniture & Fixtures 10%
Motor Vehicle 10%
Computer Software 5%
v} Revaluaton of fixed assels

The company revalued its Land, Flant & machineries, Office building and Factory building on 13 Qctober 2011 by Axis
Resources Limited following the resolution of the Board of Directors on 12 December 2011 to make a reflection of the present
value of those assets in the financial stotements. The Company did not revalue its other assets as because the difference of
present value and book walue of such asset is insignificant The company has again revalued its land & building by Ata Khan &
Co.on 29 June 2016 In accordance with 145 16.77. The detalls of Revalued asseis have been shown in Note # 401,

vi) Retirements and disposals

An asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and subsequent disposal.
(ains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the pssers and is recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under other income in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Compiehensive [ncome.

vil) Impairment of assets
A1l assets have been reviewsd according to 1AS-36 and it was confirmed that no such assets hawe been impaired during the
year and for this reason no provision has been made for impairment of assets,

R T TR NG TH
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Capital-Work-in-Progress

Property, Plant and equipment's under construction/acquisiton 15 accounted for as capital-work-In-progress untl
comstruction/acquisition is completed and measured ar cost.

Inventories and consuniables

Inventories are assets held for sale ik the ardinary course of business, In the process of productlon for such sale or In the form
of materials or supplies {0 be consumed in the production process. [nventories are stated at the lower of cost ot net realizable
wvalue in compliance to the requirements of Para 25 and 28 of [AS-2. Cest including an appropriate portion of fived and variable
overhead expenses is agsigned inventories by the method most appropriate to the particular class of inventory. Net reallzable
value represents the estimated selling price for the tnventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost niecessary to
make the sale. [tem wise valuatien is as follows:

i] Raw materials
ii] Finighed goods

ot weighted aversge cost
ot cost or net realizable value whichever is lower

iii} Work-in-progress Bt material cost plus conversion cost
iv] Stwres &Spares atweighted averege cost
Inventorics Quantity Amount in BDT
Stores & spares N/A 247,296,545
Raw materials-scrap 33,474,000 2029161996
Rew materials -chemicals A 142351828
Work- in -process 1189402 B2 655819
Finished goods 426,090 32,336,545
Taotal Amount 2,533.812,731

No write down of inventory is required for the financlal year 2021-2022,
Trade receivable

All recetvables have been recognized following [FRS 9 also carried by origlnal involce amount. This is considered good for
collection and therefore, no amoint was written off 322 bad debt and no debt waz conzidered doubtful to provides for.
Creditors & Accrued Expenses

Trade & Other payables
Liahilitizs are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services recelved by the company.

Provision

The preparation of Financial staterments in confiormity with Internanonal Accounting Standards [AS-37 Provisions, Contingent
Habilities and Contingent Asgets requires managsment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repotted amounts
revenues and expenditures, assets and labliities, and the disclosure requirements for contingent assets and Habilitles during
and at the date of financlal statements

Revenue recogniton

Revenug has been recognized as per IFRS 15: Revenus from comtract with customers under 05 (five] step approach of
recognizing revenus According to the core principal af [FRS 15, the entity has recognized revenue ta depict the transfer of
promise gands or S2rvice to custom in &n amount that reflects the consideration [payment] to which the entity expacts o he
entitled in exchanging for those goods or services.

{5 [five) step spproach applied are as follows :

I, ldentify the contract;

ii. identify the separate performance obligation;

ili, Determine the transacbon prics;

Iv. Aligcate the price to the performance obligedons;
V. Recognize revenue.

Interest Incorme

It is recognized on accrual basis.

Taxation
Proyision is made at the ruling rate, considering tax, applied on "estimated’ taxable profit as a "Public Limited Company".

i) Corrent mcome tax

Provision for texation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2020 and the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 on
profit made by the company. As per LAS-12 Income Tax Proyisicn has been made during the year as the company earnad
taxable income.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred Tax ls recognized on difference between the carrylng amount of asse1s and a Habilioy in the financlal stateraents and
the corresponding tax based used In the computation of taxable profit and Iz accounted for using balance sheet Habilicy
method, Defetred tax Uability are generally recognized for all taxable temporary difference and deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it 15 probable that the profit will be available agamst which deducdble temporary difference,
unused tax loses of unused tax credits can be can be utlized. Considering the practices generally followed in Bangladesh the
company has besn recognized deferred tax Habllity [n accordance with 1A5-12 "Income Taxes."
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Loans and borrowings

Principal amount of the leans and borrowings are stated at thelr outstanding amount. Borrowings repayable within twelve
months from the reportng date are classified as current Habilities whereas borrowings repayable after twelve months from
the Statement of Financial Position date are classified as non-carrent lizhilities. &ccrued interest and other charges are
clazsified as current Habllities.

Foreign currency transaction [ translation

Transactinns in foreign currencies are translated into Eangladesh Taka at the Exchenge rate prevailing on the date of
transactions in aceordance with 1AS - 21 "The Effects of Changes [n Foreign Exchange Rate" Monetary aszets and liahilities in
forelgn currencies at the Statement of Financlal Positdon date are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the Statement of Finanmcial Position date. All exchange differemces are recognized im the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent Habilides and assets are current or passible abligations or assets, arising from past events and whaose existence |s
due to the neourrence or non-ocourrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within the contral of the
compainy. In accordance with [A5-37 Provisions, Contingent Lizbilities and Contingent Assets are disclosed in the Notes to the
fnanclal statereents,

Statement of cash fows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with 145 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™ and the cash fow from the
operating activities have been presented under "Direct Method” as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and also
as per [AS-7: Statement of Cash flows.

Statement of Changes in Equity

The Statement of Changes in Equity reflects infarmation about the Inerease o decreaze in net aszets or wealth.

Events after the reporting year

Events after the Reporting year that provide addidonzl information about the Company's position &t the reporting year or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
staternent of Ananclal positlen date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the Notes when they are materlal,

Segment reporting

As there is a single business and geographic segment within which the company operates, as such, no ssgment reporting is felt

NECESSATY.
Borrowing cost

Borrawing costs are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its Intended use ar zale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset 411 other
borrowing cost are expensed in the perlod in which they ocear. Borrowing cost conslst of interest and other costs that an sntty
incurs in connection with the barrowing funds.

Advertisement and promotional expenses

All cost associated with advertising and promotional activities are charged out in the year incurred.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EFS) is caloulated in accordance with the nternational Accounting Standards [45-33 "Earnings Per Shara”.

Basic Earning

The presents earning for the period atributable to the ordinary shareholders. As there was no preference dividend, minority
interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the period has been considered as fully attributable to the ordinary
shareholders.

Basic Earnings Per Share
Baslc earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the

total number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted Earning per Share

Mo diluted EFS is required to be calculated for the period , as there was ne scope for dilution during the period under review.
Administratve expenses

All cost associated with administrative activities are charged oot in the year incurred.

Components of the Flnanclal Statements

According to the Intermational Accounting Standards ([A5)-1 "Presentation of Financizl Statement’ the complete set af
Financial Statements includes the following components:

Statement of Financial Positon as at 30 June 2022

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the perfod ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Changes in Equity for the perind ended 30 June 203232

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 30 June 2022

Metes to the Flnancial Satements
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Related party transactions

The objective of 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures” is to ensure that an entity's financial statements contain the disclosures
necessary to draw sttention to the possibility that it financial position and profit or loss may have been affected by the
existence of related parties and by tansactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the shifity w contral the other party or to exercige significant influence or
feint centrel over the other party in making financlal and cperating declsions.

A perty is releted to an entty If: [I45 24] directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls is controlled by or
iz under common control with the entity has an interest in the endoy that ghves it significant influence over the entity that has
jeint control aver the entlty, the party iz 'a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent, the party Is 2
cloge member of the family of any individual. the party is an entity that is conirolled jointly or significantly influenced by or [or
which significant veting power In such entlty resides with directly or indirectly, any individual and the party Is a post-
employrnent benefit plan for the beneflt of employees of the entity.

The Company trangacts with related parties and recognize as per [AS 24 ‘Related Party Dlsclosures’. Related party transactions
have been disclosed.

Leases
The company has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative Information has
not been restated and continues to be reparted under LAS 17 [FRIC 4.

A Significant accounting pelicy
Palicy applicable from 1 July 2019

At inceptan of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or containzg, aleaze. A contract is, or containg, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for & period of tme in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identifled agset, the company assesses whether:

The confract involves the uze of an identified asset. Represent substantially all of the capacity of an asset.
The company has the right to cbtain substantially all of the econeomic benefits from use of the asset the period

The corapany has the right to direct the use of the agset
The comppany has the right to operate the osset

The company designad the asset (n a way that predetarmines how and forr what purpasze it will be usad

This policy 15 applied to cantracts entered inta, or changed in ar after July 2019

At the inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the company allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Financial expenses

Financizl sxpensss comprise the interest on external borrowings and bank charges and z2re recognized as they accrus.
Operating Expenses

Uperating expenses refers to the expenses Incurred for the day-to-day operadan of the company.

Employee benefits

a. Pald Wages, Salaries and no Social Securiiy Contribuitions.

b. Festival Bonus

The Company gives 02 festival bonus to its permanent employees in a year.

. WPPF and welfare fund

This represents 5% of the net profiv after chargng such contribution but bafors tax contribution by the Company as per
provisions of Bangladesh Labour {Amendments), 2013 and is payvable to the worleers as define in the said Law.

d. Gratuity Fund

The employees ave entifled to gratulty fund benifit The preperation & introduction of 3 detailled comprehensgive policy
guideline for gramulty fund {5 under progress.

Financial instbuments

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and & Anancial Hability or egquity
ingtrument of ancther entity.

Financial Assets

The Company inltlally recognizes loans, recefvables end deposits on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets
are recognized initdally on the date at which the company becomes & party to the contractal right of the inscument The
Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset sapives, or it transfers the
rights to receive the confractwal cash flows on the f[nanclal asset in 2 wransaciion In which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the Ainancial assets are transferred. Financial assets include Trade Receivables, Advances, Deposits
and Prepayments, Short-term investments, as well as Cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and Receivables

Leoans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not gquoted in an acdve market Such
assets are recognized initdally at fair value plus any direcdy atributable transaction costs' Subsequent to initial recognidon,
inans and roceivables are measurad stamortized cost

Leans and receivables comprise cozsh and cash equivalents, loans, rade recelvables, and deposits.

a) Trade Receivahles

Trade recsivables are initally recognized at cost which 15 the falr value of the consideration given in return. After nttial
recognition, these are carried at costless impalrment loszes, if any, dus to un-collectability of any amount $o recognized.

b} Advances, Deposiis and Prepayments

Advances are initizlly measured at cost. After initial recopgnition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, adiustments or
charges to other account heads such as Property, Plant and Fquipment, inventory or Expenses, Deposits are measured at
payment value, Prepayments are initially measured at cost After imitial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less
charges to profit and loss,

RELH AT THEER STRESOOTH
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c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

According to [AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flows ° cash comprises cash in hand and bank deposit and cash eguivalents are short
term. highly liguid imvestments that are readily convertible to knovn amownts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. [45-1 “Presentation of Financial Satementz” provides that cash and cash equivalent are not restricted
In uze. Considering the provision of IAS 7 and IAS 1, cash in hand and bank balances have been consldered as cash and cash
equivalents.

Cash & Cash Equivalents include cash in hand , cash at bank , term deposits, FOR which are available for use by the company
without any restrictions. There is an inslgnificant risk of change in value of the same.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financlal assets are non-derivative financlal assets that are deslgnated as avallable for sale and are not
classified in any other categories of financial assets. Generally available-for-sale financial assets are recognized inftially art fair
value plus any directly attributzble transaction costs and subsequent to inital recognition at fair value and changes thersin
other than impalrment losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the falr valus reserve In equity.
Finegmcial assets which are not traded in the market have been valued at cost unless eny indication of impeirment in value of
such finanelal assets ewist. Cumulatlve pain/lesses recognlzed in the other comprehensive income are reclassified from aquity
to profit or loss upon derecognition or reciassification.

Financial Liabilities

The company initially recognizes all finoncial liabilities on the transaction date which is the date the company becomes o party
ta the contractual obligation of the instrument. The company derecognises a financial liahility when its contractual ohligations
are discharped, caticallad or explrad,

The company classifies non-derivative financial labilitles into the other financial lizbilities categoiy. Such financial labilites
are recogrized Initlatly at fair value less directly attributable transaction cost Subseguent to Initial recognition, these financial
ligbilities are measurad at amortized cost

Jther financial labilites comprise lcans and borrewings, bank overdrafis and trade and other payables,
a) Trade and Other Payablas

The company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations atising from past events are certain and the
sertlemnent of which is expected to result in an cutfiow from the company of resources embodying econcmic benefits.

b] interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings comprise loans and speratienal overdraft

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Aceounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, Tules and practices applied by an entity in preparing and
presenting financial statements

& change in accounting estimate 15 an adjustment of the carrving amount of an asset or Hability, or related expense, resulting
from reessessing the expected future benefits and obfligations assaciated with that asset or lisbility as per IAS-2.

The general principle b IAS 8 is that an entity must correct all material pricr period errors retrospectively in the first set of
financial statements authorized for issue after their discovery,

There is no events regarding LAS-8 In thls accounts.

Gemeral

Wherever considered necessary , previous perlod’s fipures have been rearranged for the purpose of comparison. Figures
sppearing in Financial Statement have becn rounded off to the nearest Taksa,

Authorization date for issuing
The Financial Statements wers autiorized by the Board of Directors on 31 Jamuary 2023 for issue after completion of review.

Group Stuctare:
Basis of Consolidation-
Percentage of Sharshnlding an subsidiary companiss are as follows as of 30 funs 2022
Subsidiary Company Holding of Share Percentage of Holding
Saleh Steel Industries Limited [SSIL] 12333101 9ol
Alfalah Steel & REwRﬂ]iinE Milis Limited 28572 990G

Subsidiary entity is controlled by 5 5. Steel Limited (555L1). Cantrol exists when 5551 has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity. [n assessing control potentlal voting rights that are presenty exerclsable are considered.

Consulidation of Accounts-
As per Conformity of [FRS-10, Consclidated Financial Statements consolidated of accounts have been made as follows:

Subsidiary Company Year Ending Remarks

Saleh Sreel ndustries Limited [55IL) 6,/30/2022 Financial Statements

Alfzlah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 6,/30/Z022 Fimancial Statements
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Property, plant & equipments

Cost

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Total Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balanca
Dieprecietion for the year
Total depreciatdon

Written down value [WDV)

*Detall of fixed assets and depreciation are shown in the "Annexure - A"

Consolidated Property, Plant & Equipments

Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited

Total

Revaluation

ANNUAL REPORT

Amount in Taka

30-Jun-2022 | | 30-Jun-2021
3.685,142,326 3,678,568,812
239,849,192 6,573,514
3,924.991,618 3,685,142,326
BF9,632,907 B4 269 367
134978298 145.363,540
1,124,611,206 989,632,907
2,800,380,312 2,695,509,419

Z.800,380,312 Z,695,505,415
1125426606 1,050,242,283
1,650,957,502 :

5,576.764,420 3,745,751.701

The company revalued itz Land, Plant & machineries, Office building and Factory building on 13 October 2011 by Axiz Resources
Limited following the resolution of the Board of Directors on 12 December 2011 to make a refllection of the present value of these
aszets in the financial statements, The Company did not revalus its other assets as because the difference of pressnt value and
book value of such asset is ingignificant. The company has revalued further of its land & building on 29 June 2016. Details af the
revaluarion of the assets are given below:

Amount in Tala
; Net Book Value as on 2
Particulars 20 June 2016 Revalued Amount [lmvpairment] Revaluation Surplus
Land & land development 454,361,954 T#2,500.000 288,138,046
Factory & civil constroction 145,824 528 261,466,595 - 115,642,067
600,18 1,003,966,595 - 403,780,113
Long term deposits
Bangladesh Oxygen Company Ltd 10451 10451
Dhaks Eleciric Supply Company Ltd 234755084 2411242
Haj) Fimanze R40.541
Gramesn Phone Ltd. &S00 6500
24,033,076 2,428,193
Capital work-in-progress
Openning balence 525,606,569 257 514663
Addition during the vear B30L.750 268,091 904
526437319

Adijustment during the year
Closing balance

Consolidated capital worl-in-progress
Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Total

Inventories

Stores & spares

Raw materials-scrap

Raw materfals -chemicals
Waork- in -process
Finished goods

Total

Conzolidated inventories

Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steef & Re-Rolling Mills Limitad
Total

525,606,563

526,437,319 525,606,569

526,437,319 525,606,569
7,593,300 7,593,300
534.030,619 533,199.869
247296545 160,635,524
2,029,161,996 996,332, 685
142,361,826 74961840
82,655,315 98,457,222
32,336,545 471,125,366
2,533.812,731 1,801,512 637
2533812731 1,B01,512,637
1.507,996,619 369,945,654
361074803 -

4,402,884,153 21714582591
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Trade and other receivables

Opening balance 1,736,004,234 1,761.600,9%6

Additiens during the yvear 5,076,5370,753 4,260,248.250
6,812,574,9488 6,011.849,191

Realized during the year (4,308,169,943) [4,275,844,958]

Closing balance 2 504,405,045 1,736,004,234

Consolidated trinde and other recelvables

Farent Company 2,504,405,045 1,736,004,254

Saleh Steel Tndustres Limited 1,106980,567 1,533 408285

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 240 155 277 =

Total 3,851 540 889 3269412510

Trade receivables have been stated at their nominal value. Trade receivables are accrued in the ordinary course of business. These
are carrled at involes amount. All recelvables have been considered as good and realizable, Therefore, no armount was written off
25 bad debt and no debt was considered as doubtful to provide for.

Disclosure as per scheduale-XI, Part-1. of The Companies Act, 1994

Debis below 3 Months 1,748,039, 481 1,152,186,654
Debts below & Months 176,365 564 7R H17 580
The classification of receivables az reguired by the schedule X1 of the Companies Act, 1994 sre given below:
Recaivable considerad good in respect of which the company is fully secured 2,504,405 045 1,736,004,234
Recelvable considered good in respect of which the company holds no security other
thian the debtor personal secunty -
Recelvables consldered doubtful bad B
Recaivable ta Directors
Raceivables due by comman managament
The maximum amount of receivable due by any director or other officer of tha -
COMPany.
2,504, 405,045 1,736,004,234
Amount in Taka
30-Jun-2022 | | 20-Jun-2021
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Addvances [Mote ®.01] 1942489 965 1475581852
Drepaosits [Note 3.02] 26,158,093 23,989,633
1,968,648,059 1,497,571,485
Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments
Parent Company 1.968,648,05% 1497571485
Saleh Stee! Industries Limited 836,013,651 JBZ.95Z2,400
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 78,875,320 -
Totul 2, HH3, 537030 LBE0.523 B4
Advances
L/C margin 530,500,650 164 483,792
Advance Income ax [Mnt29.01.1] 206,317,107 170,592,582
Advyance ageinst salary 4,311,680 745,296
Advance against purchase 1,200,860,528 1,134,759,782
1,942.489,966 1,473,581,852
Advance income tax
Opening Balance 170,592,982 141,534,835
Addition during the year 36,224,126 28,658,147
206,817,107 170,592,982
Adjustnent during the year -
Closing balance 206,817.107 170,592,982
Deposits
Titas Gas Transmission & Distribution Led 26,158,093 | | 23,999,633 |
26,158,093 23,989,633
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash In hand 4,144,757 212739
Cash athank [Mote 10.01) 91,692,113 46000422
Short term investment [FDR) [Moee 10.02] 460,945,204 456,567 447
556,782.074 502,780,603

Cash bulance was physically verifled by the management and Bank balances are reconciled and found in order.
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Farent Company 556,782074 502,780,603
Ealeh Steel Industries Limited L179467 1,444,535
Al-Falah Stee] & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 749,570,125 -
Total 637,931,666 504,225,138
10.01 Cash at hank
Bank Name Branch ASC No. Amount in Taka
Mercantile Bank Lid. Matijeel 011513L00000158 2530677 29,834
Southeast Bank Ltd, Ranani 0011100005538 23,902 23,902
Southeast Bank Ltd, New Elephant Road DO1110001 1068 1,563 538 264,550
Eastern Banl Lid, Gulshan 1041070005302 38,066 817,197
amuna Bank Ltd. Gulshan 01002 LO0YE94E 34.255 33,557
Bank Asia Ltd. Principal Office 0080333047355 5,766,022 1,935,895
Bank Asia Ltd. Principal Office 0000333008145 4,952,581 5,147,593
Brac Bank Ltd. Graphics Building 1513203842315001 616,120 7,295,422
Brac Bank Lid. Gulshan 1501203342315001 5,336,196 6,226,287
Brac Bank Ltd, Auik Tower Tejgaon 1501203942315000 39,092 40,000
Exim Bank Ltd. Lttara 0151110808217 420,670 473 136
[slaml bank Bangladesh Ltd Badda 20503108104131703 1,524,540 436,176
Dhaka Bank Lid, Uttara 041000013173 302,053 1692153
|One bank Ltd. Principal 001001E43 2008 22,501 1,074,440
Clty Banlc Ltd, Golehan Avenoe 1101795924001 1,265,768 1.622997
City Bank Lud. Gulshan 110 103AZ#E00 L 7287 7,287
Dutch Bangla Bank Lid Tangi 1791100011457 80,695 45 4480
Pubali Banl Led. Tongi 0080931056170 225,660 2424237
Shahajalal [slami Bank Ltd, Gulshan South Avenus | 403011100000952 50,453 27,395
Social Islami Banbe Ltd. TunEi 741330001863 14 868 28776
AR Bank Ltd, Uttara 4020763216000 346,955 Q48,020
AR Bank Ltd, Frincipal AO197TRZSE000 21,287 243
Agrani Bank Ltd. Banani Corporate 02p00i2ae5a1E 2420,721 84 857
Al Arafa [slami Bank Litd, Tongl 1311020041728 1495 194,974
Al Arafa Islami Bank Lid. Pragati Sarani U453 220001354 F2.857 3,524 489
MNCC Banl Ltd. Mot eel 0020210023818 1,216,754 3046819
MNCC Bank Lbd. Tongi DEG0Z L00D006S 16,870 16,870
Mational Bank Led. Lttara 1UER0E 1835950 491,696 878,662
Mational Bank Led. Banani 1106001971487 - -
Mational Bank Lid. Banani 1106004008177 17,083 100,039
Watinnal Bank Lzd. DE_Idi_uSha 1099048 a%:R 112372
NEE Commercial Banl Lid. Gulshan Q10238000200052 2437534 3,623,686
NRE Commercial Bank Ltd. Utiora QL0836000000037 27760 29,025
United Commercial Bank Lid. Uttara (8321 01000005504 12,890 3382131
United Commercial Bank Limited (UCErapgatt Sarani 113110100004803%0 3,034 280
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. Uttara Mode! Town N070320000532 433,266 44,177
Southeast Bank Lid, Banani O0131000013%8 249573 24494973
Trust Bank Lid, Millendum Corporate 70220212001135 1.480,5%6 2,223,404
Trust Bank Lad. Tongi 004202 1000 LB17 4599 5,688
Prime Bank Ltd. Garib-e-Mewaz Ave. 2170119033010 92431 11,700
Dutch Bangla Bank Lid. Pragat Sarani 1931 100019057 838576 2,991,584
Total '}E 1595‘113 -Ii-ﬁi{lﬂl]dzi

Consolidated cash and cash equivalents
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Arnount in Taka
30un-2022 ||  30-Jun-2021
Shiort terw investment (FDR)

Eank Kams Branch Name Maturity | Interest Rate FDR A/C Araount in Taka
Bank Asiz Lrd, Principla 3 Momiths a% 3EG0187IR 38,585,557 37,450,285
Hank Asiz Ltd. F]‘im:ip]E 3 Months Al ER(197EY: 25447 5B5 24703861
Bank &sla Lud. Principle 3 Months 7% 355019931 622858086 60,671,633
Bank Aslz Led. Principle 3 Months A% 355021075 20.806,233 26,070,357
Banix Asjz Ltd. Principle 3 Manths a% 255021076 26,856.233 26070,557
Banlk Asia Lid. Princigle 3 Months &% 355021077 26,856,233 28 070,557
Bank Asis Led. Principle 3 Months [ A5E02107% 26856233 26,070,557
Wational Bank Lid, Eananl 3 Momths 6% 5004307133 26,326,023 25,076,881
Trust Bank Limizad. Gulshan Corporate | 3 Months 5% 330669659 150,000,000 150,200,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshanﬂl:lrpnﬁbe 3 Months 5% 320670370 25437611 27,151,277
Trust Bank Limitad Gulshan Corporat2 | 3 Months St 330670380 25437611 27,191,277
Total 460,945,204 452,849,334
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Investment (FIE)
Banlt Name Brauch ¥ame Maturity | Interest Rate FDRA/C Amount fn Taka

AB Bank Limited Principle 1 Year 4 13761719 4. 445,000
AB Bank Limited Principle 1 Year 1% 13761720 & 445,008
AB Bank Limited Principle | Yaar 4% 13761721 40445000
AB Bank Limited Principle L Year £ 23761703 50,000,008
AB Bank Limited Principle 1 ¥Year 49 23761704 50,000,004
AB Bank Limived Principle 1 Year 44 23761705 510,00, D00
Bank Asia Ltd, Principle 1 Year Bl 355020434 33297220 32,145,000
Bank Asia Lod, Principle 1 ¥ear B 355020436 11,075,280 10,705,008
Hank Asiz Ltd, Principle 1 Year B% 355020437 16,628,240 16,085,000
Bank Asla Ltd. Principle 1 Year Ay 355020438 11,075,280 10,705,000
Bank Asia Lid, Principie 1 Year B 335020435 11,075,380 10,703,000
Hamnk Asia Lud, Principle 1 Year B% 355020440 11,075,380 10,705,000
Bank Asia Lid, Principle 1 Year B% 355020445 22,181,309 21,425,000
Bank Asiz Ltd, Prinelple 1 ¥ear Alh 355020477 57923461 56,439,502
Halj Flnance Dhanmond 1 Year ] 2421007309 39,985,000
Hajj Finznca Dhaamondi 1 Yaar 4% 2421007545 10,785,004
Trust Bankx Limited. Gulzhan Corporate 1 ¥ear o] J31006681 T.347.597 FA1L00G
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 4 331003019 1,672,320 1,620,008
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate L Year 484 331003028 5,174,000 SL0000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate | Year % 321003037 LEB17.Z60 1,764,000
Trust Bank Limited. Culshan Corporate | Year % 331003044 2,084,648 2,018,008
Trust Bank Limited. Gulzhan Corporate L Year L 321003055 - 2450,000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 Yeur 4 331003064 2,084 645 2,018,004
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporats 1 Year 4% 331003108 1L953.076 1,891,000
Trust Bank Limited. Culshen Corporate 1 Year £% 331003117 - 4,800,000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 Yaar o) F21d03126 2,062,892 1,997,000
| Trust Bank Limited. Grulshan Corporate 1 Year 44 33103135 6,963,172 £, 727000
Trost Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 4% 331003144 069,732 Q37,000
Trust Banlk Limited. Gulshan Corporate 1 ¥ear 4% 331003153 1,335,620 1,295,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporats 1 Year 1% 331003162 445,374 434,000
Trist Bank Limited. (ilghan Corporate 1 Year 4 31003171 2304280 2,230,008
Trust Bank Limited, (rulshan Corporate 1 Year 4 331003180 1873376 1816004
Trust Bank Limited. Gulzhan Corporste | 1 Year 414 331003224 2,061 500 2,000,000
Trust Bani Limited. Gulzhan Corporats 1 ¥ear i 331003233 2243440 2176000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 ¥ear 444 331003242 2,159,707 2,095,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulzhan arate 1 ¥ear 4% 33103260 979,037 RAT, 001
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshen Corporate | 1 Yaar 445 321003279 2,892 635 2.B04.000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporate 1 ¥ear %0 331003288 1,258,277 1,223,008
Trust Banic Limited. Gulshan Corporate L Year 4% 33100637H 1,755,544 1,705,000
Trust Bank Limitad, Gulshan Corporats L Year 4% 33106 3E7 3,255,380 3,052,004
| Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporate L Year 4% 321006396 44960914 4,353,000
Trust Bank Limited, Culshean Corporate 1 Year £% 331006403 2,895,635 2,804,000
Trust Bank Limited, Gelshan Corporate 1 ¥Yaar kL) 331006421 4,915,582 4,758,008
Trust Bonk Limited. Culshan Corporate 1 Year 4 331006430 2237 A3 2,158,000
Trust Bank Limfted, Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 4% 331008467 879,707 B58,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporats 1 ¥ear 4% 33 10064Ta 445,397 431,000
Trust Benk Limited. Gulshan Corporats 1 ¥ear i) 331006485 329,617 319,000
Trast Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 44 33160a404 4,88, 705 4,732,000
Trust Bank Limited, (rulshan Corporate 1 Year 4 33106501 443645 408,000
Trust Banlk Limited. Gulzhan Corporate 1 ¥Yaar 44 331006510 2375794 2,305,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulzhan Corporats 1 ¥ear 4% 331006547 4,015,582 4,753,000
Trust Bank Limlted, Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 44 331574 4761564 4,609,004
Trust Bank Limted, Gulshan Corparate 1 ¥ear 4 331006583 1922877 1,853,00 |
Trust Bank Limitod. Gulzhan Corporats 1 Yaar 415 331006592 1,318,167 1,278,000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corporate 1 Year £ 331006509 7,143,314 6,913,000
Tritst Bank Limited, Gilehan Corporate L Year 4 31006636 L275,74% 1,237,004
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Cerporate 1 Year 4 3310pa545 4,103,055 3872000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Corparate 1 Year 45 321006554 922877 1,853,000
Trust Bank Limitad. Gulshan Corporate 1 Year 4% 331006563 74,117 755,000
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Cerporate L Yoar 4p FI10066T2 2,315,702 2,243,000
Trust Bank Limited, Gulshan Cerporate 1 Year 4 A06TIOO00 LET2320 L&20, 004
Trast Banlk Limited, Gulshan Corporars 1 Year %0 330672850 3,115,500 3,004,008
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporate 1 ¥ear ] B410 30L000,004
Trust Bank Limited. Gulshan Corporate 1 Year o) B42% 30,000,000
Trust Bank Limiied. frulshan Corporare 1 Year 4% B43B 15,004,004

Total &H5065,448 286,145,592
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Comsolidated Investment

Pareat Company

Saleh Steel [ndustries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Raolling Mills Limitad

685,165,448
£2,168,797

7,234,245 205,554,680

286,145,532
19,409,217

Inwestnient in Saleh Steel Industries Limited

1,2%0,173,893 | 1,290,17385%3 |

1.290,173,893 1,290,173,893
Investment in Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited [ tordso0g00 ] | =]
1,074, 6O0.000 -

During the period change in management wook place on 5 March 2022:
Al-Falah Stee] & Re-Relling Mills Limited was-acquired by £ 5. Stee] Limdted on Sth March 2022 Congequently the new management took
the cantrol aver the company oo the same date. Before the date of acquisition/transfer of control, operation of the factory was temporarcily

paused, Hence, the Anancial report presetiing iformation incurred after acquisition.

Share capital
Authorized capital
SU0000,000 Grdinary Shares of TR 10 each 5, 0400, 00, 00 3,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and pabd-up capiial
245,000,000 Ordimary Shares of Tir 10 each 30429000060 2,450,000,040
L5% Stock Dividend in 2019-2020 Respectively 367,500,000
89 Stock Dividend in 2020-2021 Respectively 225,400,000
8% Srock Dividend in 2021-2022 Respectivaly 243,432,000
EIZEEE [Er] 3,042 900,000
Details of Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Amount in Taka
5. Mo, Particulars | Date Ng. of Share 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2021
Subscription o the Memorandum
1 & Articles of Association at the| 22123001 000,000 20,400,000 20,040,000
time of incorporaticn
2 Share tesuad 29.09.2013 4700, 000 47,000,000 47,000,000
3 Bonuse share issued T4.0£2014 3,250,000 32,500,000 32,500,000
1 Share tssoed 23.02.2016 1,000 10,040 L0000
3 Share isspad 2B.062016 210,049,700 2,100,450,000 2,100,430,000
B [P0 allotment 25113018 25,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,080
? Bonusa shars issued 31122019 36,750,000 367,500,000 | 367,500,000
B Baonuse share issued JL12.Z2020 22,540,000 225,400,000 225,400,000
9 Bonuse share issued J112.2021 24,343,200 243,832,000 .
Total 328,633,200 | 3266332000 3,042.900,000
Position of shares holding as at 30 June 2022
Group Name S]N"mlhﬁ dfm Ownership (%) H;::;; o Taka
All Investors A/C 5 0.188% 616,770 6,167,700
Company 345 1F931% 36,987,500 359,875,000
General Puhlic 25634 SE.Ta70; 186,653,212 1,880532120
HWomn resident bangladest 327 0.274% 301,943 9,019,430
Sponsor /Director 4 317900 104473775 1,044,737 750
26,315.00 1005 328,633,200 326,332,000
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Distribution schedule of the shares as at 30 June 2022 is given below:
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Siahs by number of shares 5]3‘:}'::"::::‘ NoofShares || Ownership (%)
1-500 7005 1,255,727 0.382%
501 -5000 13623 23417963 7.126%
5001 - 10,000 2453 17,089,836 £.200%
10,001 - 20,000 1652 22,213,110 65.759%
20,001 - 30,000 611 14,684,211 44680,
30,001 - 40,000 260 B,970,987 2. 7300
40,001 - 50,000 178 7,981,590 2.429%
50,001 - 100,000 230 19,936,058 &.066%
100001 - 1000000 228 49,205,557 14.973%
1000001 - 1000000000 15 153,878,161 £5.867%
Tutal 26315 328,633,200 100%
Amount in Taka
A0-Jun-2022 || 30-Jun-2021
Hetained earnings
Opening balance 1,735,604577 1,401.961,746
Transferred from revalustion surplus through sse of assets (depreciation] 8,533,158 9,027,737
Met profit during the vear 577238046 5H3.271.225
Previous year's adjustment for tax (22,540,000 .
Less: 8% Stock Dividend 2020-2021 . (225,400,000)
Liess; 204 Cash Dividend 2020-2021 . {33,256,131)
Less: B% Stock Dividend 2021-2022 [243.432,000) .
Less; 2% Cash Dividend 2021-2022 (#1,511,004] -
Closing balance 2,013,892,788 1735604577
Consulidated retained earnings
Parent Company 2,013,892,738 1,735,604,577
Saleh Steel Industries Limited 1.164,140,250 1180482415
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Ralling Mills Limited [64.778,499) 3
3,113,254,539 2,916,066,992
Mon controlling interest (MCI) at acquisition 58425861 11,923,863
MCI Share of post acquisition retained earnings 41,760,041
Total 3,213 ,440,441 2,927,990,855
Revaluation reserve
Opening balance 697,472,788 706,500,525
Depreciation charged during the year (8,533,168} 19,027.737]
Closing balance 688,939,619 697,472,768
Conzolidated revaluation reserve
Parent Company B88.939619 97 472, 7RE
Saleh Steel Industries Limited 103,814,035 105,067 406
#&l-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 74,918,321 -
865,671,975 B02,540,193

This transfer of revaluation was made In accordance with paragraph 39 of [AS 16 a5 the sald amount of revaluation surplus has
been acermulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Calevlation of the amount Is given In Annexure-A.

Share money deposit
Share money depostt

537,600,000

403,000,000

Mote: Conversion of Share money depesit into Share Capital requires approval of regulatory bodies. The company has already

appied for conversion of Share Money Deposlt inte Share Capital to be under process.
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16.00 Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tex is recognized in accordanca with the provision of 1AS <12 "Income Tex2s" is arrived as follows:
Opening balanca 238,854,832 300,594,882
Add: Amount provided for the year (19,280,638)] (61,740,050}
Closing balance 219 57419 Z38,854832
Accounting Base Tax Base Temparary
Differences
Froperty plant & eguipments
Carrying Value as at 30 June 2022 1,978,545,585 1029374514 349,271,071
Bevaluation surplus (excluding land) 148,599 908 - 148,599,908
Total 2,127,245,493 1,029,374,514 1,097,870,979
Applicabls tax rate 20.0%%
Deferred tax liability / {assets) 219,574,195
Carrying Value as af 30 June 2021 1,B65,241,524 950,797,669 904,442,955
Revaluation surplus [excluding land] 157133076 - 157,133,076
Total 2022374600 960,797,569 1,061,577,031
Applicable tax rate 22.5%
Deferred tax liabilites 238,854,832
Az per [A5-16 " Property, Plant and Equipment” defeived tax has been calculated for revaluation surplus. Deferred tax has besn
arranged an the basis of balance sheet lablligy method.
16.4 Consolidated Deferrd Tax
Farent Company 219,574,196 238,854,831.80
Saleh Stee] Industries Limited 31,596,753 35,448,932.30
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited - -
251,170,949 272,303,754
Amount in Tala
20-Jun-2022 || 40-Jun-2021
17.00 Term loan
Bank Asla Ltd, A/C-00335017418 (Note- 17,01} 147,968,125 212,651,264
Eank Asia Lid, A/C 18310 (Note- 17.04] 30,569,536 35,429,188
1DLC Finance Limited {Note - 17.05] 51,364,525 54,865,169
Hajfj Finance, 4/C 0698 [Note- 17.08) 25,691,513 440,762,406
Hafj Finance, A/C 1708 (Note- 17.02] 52313523
Trust Bank Ltd, A/C 2414 [Note- 17.08) 100,121,906 97,651,060
Trust Bank Led, A/C 2423 [(Note- 17.09) 306,146,692 263,090,250
Trust Bank Ltd, A/C 4439 [Nowe- 17.07) 950,275,150
Brac Bank Limited {Mote- 17.10) 437 348,537 470,853,417
Clty Bank Limited {Note- 17.11) 408409934 438,600,447
Total 2515209440 1,613,903,202
Current portion of torrn loan 421,015,608 242 p95 433
Non-current portion of term loan 2,094,193,851 1,371,207,768
17.4 Conselidated Non-current portion of term loan
Parent Company 2.094,193.831 1,271,207.768
Szaleh Steel Industries Limited - .
Al-Falah Sreel & Re-Ralling Mills Limited 717.469,565 -
2,811, 663396 1371.207,768
17.01 PBank Asia Ltd, A/C-00335017418
Opening balance 212,651,264 213719611
Interest charged during the year 20,940,277 19,203,318
233,591,541 232,922 929
Payment during the year [BL,623,4168] (20,271,685)
Closing balance 147,968,125 212,651,264
Curvent portion of term loen 41,431,075 58,873,570
Mon-current portion of term loan 106,537,050 153,777,604
Limit amount Th 420,000,000
Purpose Far Bestructuring of Plant & Machinery.
Sanction date 25-May-201e Extended up-to 2023 due to cotona pandemic
Interest rate .04
Hypothection of machineries & eguipments. Insurance policy covering the risk
Security of MBD covering the book value, One post dated chegues covering the monthly
installment to be suhmitted.
Tenure B years




17.02 Halj Finance, A/C 1708

17.03

17.04

Opening balance
Loan receivad during the yaar
Interest charged during the year

Fayinent during the year
Closing Balance

Current portion of term loan
Man current pardon af term loan

Lirnit amaunt
Purpose
Sancton date

Intersst rate
Security

Tenures

Th 60,000,000
Wehicle Loan for offictal usa,

140972021
12%
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60,600,000
5.ben4la

65,660,418
[13,346,895)

52,313,523

5,231,352
47,082,171

Personal guaramtees of [aved Opgenhaffen (Chairrman) & Mrs. Hazgna

Opgenhaffen {Managing Director)
3 years

Industrial and Infrastructure Development Finance Compnay Ltd.

Opening Balance
Interest charged during the year

Fayment during the year
Closing Balance

Current portics of term loan
Won current portion of term loan

Lirnit amonat
Purpnze

Sanction date
Interest rate

Security

Tenure
Bank Asia Ltd, A/C-18310
(Opening balence
Loan recelved doring the year
[nterest charged during the year

Payment during the year
Closing Balance

Current portion of term loan
Mon current partion of term loan

Loan Account
Limit amount

Purpoze
Sanction date
[nterest rate
Security

Tenure

Tk 3,000,000

(0) 498,765
. 73,723
0 972,489
5 {972,489)
(0} ()
(o (2}
{0) )]

Toyata Axio, Chassls No: NZE141-6179614 NZE141-3018%75, Engine No:1NZ-
DE27596,1NZ-E027766, Color: Silver,White, Model: 2011,2012

12/jun/2016
9.0%

Personal guarantee of all the directars of the company. 1 Szourity cheque for
advance of BDT 69,805/ -(equivalent to I lease rental). Registratinn and
insurance of vehicles in the name of [IDFC.Fromissory note with contlnuaton,

o years

AFCNo- 71200000059
T 50,000,000

35,429,188 33,338,830
3,641,498 3,120,151
39,070,686 36,458,981
(B,501,150) [1.029,793)
30,569,536 35,429,188
4,891,126 5,728,609
25,678,410 29,700,580

For nstall Sub-Station, plant, steal fabrication, elactrical worlk, and setup
charge of induction furnace, installation charge #tc.

27-Jul-17
9.0%

Extended up-to 2023 due o corona pandemic

Counter guarantee, indemnity of the costomer, 01 (one) post dated cheque
covering the laan amauntand 06 [31k) hos. post dated chegaes eovering the

monthly installment.

5 yezrs

SEPLEKT Tk S THEETH,




17.05

17.06

17.07

IDLC Finance Limited

Qpening halance

Loan received during the vear
Interest charged during the year

Payment during the vear
Cloging Balance

Current portion of term loan
Nan curcent portion of tetm loan

Limit amount
Purpoge
Sanction date
Interest rate

Security

Tenure

Hajj Finance, A/C 0698
Opening balance

Loan received during the year
Interest charged during the year

Payment during the vear
Cosing Balance

Current portion of term loan
Non current portion of term loan

Limit amount
Purposs
Eanckion date

[nterest rate

Security

Tenure

Trust Bank Ltd, A/C 4439
Opening halance

Lozn received during the year
Interest charged during the year

Payment during the year
Clesing balance

Current portion of term loan
Mon-current portion of term loan
Limit atnount
Purpose
Sanction date
Interest rate
Security

Tenure

Tk 94,700,000

ANNUAL REPORT

Amount in Taka
30-Jun-2022 || 30-Jun-2021

54,865,159 50,431,974

5,388,022 6,760,126
61,253,191 67,192,099

[3,86B,666) (12,326,930)
51,364,525 54,865,169

7,748,421 8,276,499
43,616,104 46,588,670

Car loan and Civil construction cost of ongoing project expansion,

24 November 2015, 06 December 2015, 12 April 2015, (4 January 2017
12.75%, 12.75%, 14.500%, 12.00%

Personal guarantee of all the directors of the company. 1 Security cheque for
advance of equivalent to 1 lease rental. Registration and fnsurance of vehicles
in the name of [DLC Promizsory nots with coptinuation.

b Years Extended up-to 2023 due to corona pandemic
40,762,406 41,846,247
4725301 £516.107
45,491,707 47 362,354
[19,800,194) [6,59%,948]
25,691,513 40,762,406
4329037 5,868,493
21,362,475 33893913

Tk 50,000,000

Procurement of different types of capital machineries

15 May, 2018
149

Primaty Secarttes: The ownership of the propesed machinerles will ba in tha
name of HFCL as leased asset and a Letter of Repossession will be provided by
the client to repossess the gsset by HFCL in case of default Other Security:
Personal Guarantes of all directors of 5.5, Stes] Limited.

8 Years

Amount in Taka
30-Jun-2022 || 30-Jun-2021

940,000,000
20,375,150
960,275,150
(100.000)
961,275,150

192,055,030
768,220,120

Tk. 96,000,0000

Arquisition of Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
30 March, 2022
9.0%

(1 Bigha {33.00) decimal | land along with building and sheds constructad and
to be constructed thereon located st Plot #1974 and 19/C block-B, Tongt
industrial area Gazipur
& Years

= B




17.08  Trost Bank Ltd, A/C 2414

Cpening balance
Loan received daring the year
Interest charged during the year

Payvment during the year
Closing balance

Current portion of term Lloan
Now-current portion of term loan

Lirmnit amount

Purpose
Sznctbon date
Interest rate

Security

Tenure

17.09 TrustBank Lid, A/C 2423

17.10

1711

Opening balance
Loan received during the year
Interest chorged during the year

Payment during the year
Closing balance

Current portion of tetmi loan
Mon-current porticn of term loan
Limit amount
Purpose
Sanction date
Interest rate

SeCurity

Tenure
Brac Bank Ltd.
Ojpening balance
Loan received during the year
Interest charged duving the year

Payment during the year
Closing balance

Current portion of term loan
Mon-current portion of term lean

Limir amount
Turpose
Sanction date
Interest rate
Security

Tenure

City Banlc Ltd
Opening balancs

Loan received during the year
Interest charged during the year

Payment during the year
Closing balance

Current portion of terma Lloan
MNon-current pertion of term loan

Limit amount
Purpose
Sancton date
Intevest rate

Security

Tenure

TE. 46,000,000
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97,651,060 92,097,850
18,731,404 9,757,311
116,382,464 101,855,151
(16,260,558) [4204,101)
100,121,904 97,651,060
20,024,381 19,384,826
B0.097,524 78.266,234

Procurement of different types of capital machineries

17 September, 2015

9.0%

01 Bigha (32.00 decimal | fand along with building and sheds constructed and
4o be constructed therecn located at Plot #19 /4 and 19,/C bleck-B, Tongi

indusztrial erea Gazipur

5 Years

TH. 46,000,000

263,090,250 66,979,593
. 189,755,600
83,348,857 10,436,205
346,439,107 267,171,398
{40,292,415] (4,081,142
306, 146,692 263,090,250
61,229,338 5Z,61E,U50
244,917,353 210,472,200

Procurement of different types of capital machineries

5 September, 2019

9.0%

011 Bigha (33.00 decimal | land along with building and sheds constructed and
to ke congtructed thereon lacated at Plot #2194 and 19/Chiock-B, Tangl

industrial area Gazipur

5 Years

THE. 46,000,000

470,853,417 Z
: 453,729,626
42,496,547 39,300,382
513,350,063 53,030,
(81,001,528 [22.176591)
432,348,537

270,853,417

399,113,683 I #53:?53:¢?5|

For acquisition of 5aleh Steel [ndustries Limdced

23 fune, 2020
9.0%

Registered Hypothecation [1st charge on Pari Passu Basis) on all Present and
Future Fixed apd Floating Azzets of the Cotapany with R[3C, alongwith
Notarized 1GPA ta sell the Hypothecated Assets.

7 Years

TE. 43,000,000

Purchase of Steel manufacturing factoy at Nasirabad, Chittagong

23 June, 2020
9.0%

438,600,447 -
: 420,580,316
40,052,073 37,170,656
478,652,520 465,750,972
[70,242,586) [27,150,525)
408,409,934 438,600,447

367.568.040) I 304,740,402 |

Registared Hypathecation (18t charge on Parf Passu Basig) on all Pregent and
Future Fived and Figating Assets of the Company with R[SC, alongwith
MNotarized IGPA to sell the Hypothecated Assets.

7 Years
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Amonnt in Taka
a0Jun-2022 || 30-Jum-2021
18.00 Trade and other payables
Opening balahce 310,907,921 342,102,612
Addidon during the year 3.628472 867 2,562,598403
3,939,380,788 2,905,000,915
Payment during the year [3,571,373.772) [2.594,092,993)
Other peyable {Maota 1201}
Closing balance 368,007,016 310,907,921
18.A Conselidated trade and other payables
Parent Company 368,007,016 310,907,921
Saleh Steel Industiies Limited 238,050,229 A07.430.687
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 291374017 -
Total HOT 43 1,262 18,338,608
Disclosure as per schedule-X1, Part-1, of The Companies Act,
BEBE balow 3 Months 224,484,260 177,106,319
Debis below & Months 143,622,736 133,801,602
*Detail of Trade payable are shown in the "Annexure - D"
18.01 Other payable
Opening balance 379,152 379,182
Addirlon during the vear - -
Payment during the year 379,182 379,182
Closing balance - -
379,182 279,182
19.00 Accrued expenses
Salary &wages 11,370,382 14,355,582
Elsctricity bill 73,246,010 12,731,485
Gas bill 73,553,327 64,282,912
Professional fees payable 1,014,000 | 680,000
159,183,719 92,049,980
19.4 Consolidated Accrued expenses
Parent Company 159,183,719 92,040,980
Saleh Steel Industries Limited 41,015 749 2B,555,553
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 5867963 .
Total 206,067,431 120,705 533
20,00 Short term loan
Bank Overdraft [Mote-20.01}) 2,862,14R8,692 1,108,295, 968
Demand Loan |Bank Asla Limited} [(Mote-20.02) 378,671,002 361996492
Short Term Loan [Bank dsia Led, A/C 19065] (More-20.03) 37,251,532 50,391,723
3,275,071.226 1,520,685,182
204 Consslidated short term loan
Farent Company 3275.071.226 1.520,685,162
Saleh Steel Industries Limited 1,654,017, 148 425,819,223
Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited 298,223 995 -
Total 5.227,312,367 1,946,504,415
20,01 Bank Overdrafc
Banle Asia Limited, Principal Office Branch -Overdraft 450,350,869 460,418,424
MNational Bank Ltd-Owverdraft 2,005,496,389 260,404,000
Bank Asia Ltd.-50D 163403754 156.935.404
Mational Bank Lid CC Hype-Cov 78455240 75,000,000
Trust Bank Ltd.-50D 153434 440 155,539,061
2,862,148,692 1,108,296,968
20.02 Demand Loan (Bank Asia Limited)
Opening balance 361,996,492 506,535,489
Loan received during the year 1959273134 1.598.240.0832
Interest charged during the year 75,245 949 73,538.323
2,396,515,575 2,178,313,894
Payment during the year 2,020,844 573} [1,816,317.403]
Closing balance 375,67 ;!DDZ 461,996,492
Z0.03 Short Term Loan
Banlk Asia Ltd, A/C 19065 [Mote-19.03.01) 37,251,532 50,391,722
37,251,532 50,391,723
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20.03.01 Bank Asia Ltd, A/C 19065

(pening halance 50,391,723 47,197,533
Loan recelved during the year - :
Interest charged during the year 4 802,402 4,450,731
55,194,124 51,648,264

Payment during the year (17 942 592) [1,256,642)
Closing balance 37,251,532 50,391,723

Limit amount : Tk 58,000,000

Purpose : To retire L/C related shipping documents mentioned i 51 No.'F,

Sanction date s i-jan-2017

Interestrate : 2.00%

Security Lease agreement, 5nle awnership of the leased hold machine. Insurance policy

covering the risk of fire and RSD.
Tenure : 1 Year
Amount in Talka
30-jun-2022 || 30-Jun-2021
21.00 Provision for WPPF and welfare fund

Opening balance B3,277504 48.207,721
Contribution t WFFF and Welfare Fund 35,913,469 32,871,385
Interest applied @ 11.5% 9,576,969 5,198,388
Payment during the year - -
Recsived during year = =
Closing balance 128,768,433 83,277,994

interest has been charged at 2.5% higher than the bank rate for atilizing the balance of Fund by the company as per section 240
of The Labour Act, 2006 as amended in 2013,

21A Consolidated WPPF & Weltare fund

Parent Company 128,763,433 83,277 ,5%
Saleh Steel Industries Limited 12,239,040 11,284,593
Al-Falah Stesl & Re-Rolling Mills Limtted - -
Total 141,607,473 94,562,587
2200 Leases
i. Right-of-use assets
Name of —— - : Cost - Depreclation Carrylng amount
assets Ason Ul July | Addition during | Disposal during
2031 Eaar s yar Ag o 30 Tune 2022 Depreciation Carring amnount
Warshouse 23,530,187 - - 23,530,187 20,740,148 2,750,038
ii. Lease liability maturity analysis
Lesse liahility non current 23,204,458 35,009,634
Leasa liability current 6,544,847 9874512
29,745,305 44 BB4. 146
iii. Amount recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liahility 4,753,715 4,753,715
v. Allocation of depreciaition of ROU Asset
Factory Overhead Mets 26.04 18,666,133 21967410
Administrative Expenses Mote 27.00 2074015 2440,823

20,740,148 24408233

23.0 Dividend Payable

Opening Balance 8,068,678 -
Dividend Declared 35,849,752 29930518
43,918,430 29930,518
Dividend Paid (36,044,764) [25,187,453]
(llosing Balance TBTI666 4,743,065
TD5 on Dividend Payable Mote 23.1 2,161,252 3.325.613
Total dividend payahle 13il}34!919 BEHEBIETB




3.1

Z24.0

Z4.A

25.0

25.A

26.00

26.4

26.01

26.02

TDS on Dividend Payahle
Opening Balance
During the year

Payment during the year
Closing Balance

Provision for income tax
Opening balance

Provision made during the year
Adjustrnent for FY 2020-2021

Payment/adjustment during the year
Closing balance

*Details ealenlatons are shovwn in the "Annexure - B

Consolidated income tax

Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Total

Revenue
Sales
Less: VAT

Consolidated revenue(Net of VAT)
Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

&]-Falah Stezl & Re-Rolling Mills Limitad
Total

Cost of goods sold

Raw materials consurmed
Carriage inwards

Salary, wages and allowances
Factory overhezd [Mote 26.04)
Cost of Produoction

Opening work-in-process
Clasing work-in-process

Cost of goods manufactured
Opening finished goods

Cost of goods available for sale
Closing finished goods

Consolidated cost of gpods sold
Parent Company

Saleh Stzel Industries Limited

&]-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Total

Raw materials (scrap) consumed
Opening inventory

Purchase during the year

Towml mzterials available

Closing Inventory

Raw materials (billet) consumed
Purchase during the year
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3,325,613 =

5,651,252 3,325,613

8,986,865 3,325,613
{500,000

8486,865

3325613

546,123,325 410,226,793
160,311,976 135,896,531
22,540,000
728,975,301 546,123,325
728.975,301 546,123.325
728,975,301 545,123,325
B0,0&9,862 71,092,935
7,177,644 -
B16,222 812 617,216,260
Amount in Qty. (Kgs) Amount in Taka
2021-2022 | 2020-2021 20212022 ||  2020-2021
67,045,008 70,860,793 5069272872 4251647 564
- - 2B,474,140 54,757,590
67,045,006 70,860,793 5,040,798,732 4,196,059,974
51040,798,732 4,196,859,974
2.221,443,395 2,1848,847,364
377,728,371 -
—L639.970.498 _ 6.385,707.338
E0.308,662 b6,241.027F 2542499945 2,391,209,664
- - 3,228,795 31,580,704
- * 112,770,394 104,976,592
- : 546,380,968 499,009,372
53,303,662 66,241,927 3,205,380,105 3.027,576,322
1,758,035 3872162 0B437.222 167471004
(1,189,402} {1,758,039] (B2,655819) [98.,457,222)
59,872,299 68,356,050  3,221,181,508  3,096,590,104
7,598,706 10,103,540 471,125 360 434 452 215
67 471,096 78,459,590 3,692,306,874 3,531,042,319
[426,090] {7.598,796] [32,336545] {471,125,366]
67,045,006 70,860,794  3,650,970,329 1,059,916,953
3,650,970,329 3,059,916,953
2,079,496,852 1,872,923,626
253,395,042 s
— 50993 /63033 _ 4.932 R40.579
Amount in Qty. (Kgs) Amoumt in Taka
2021-2022 |  2020-2021 20212022 || 2020-2021
17,698,387 26,857 540 0%6,332.685 832,583,749
7E079,275 E7.082.773 3.517,695,701 2511,642,031
52,777,662 83,940,314 4,514,032,386 3,344,225,780
(33,474,000 {17,098.387}) [2.029,161.994) (994,332.665)
50,303,662 66,241,027 2,484,870,390 2,347,893,005
- | 12,453,602 | | 547956467 |
- 12,453,602 - 547,958,467

135




26.03

26.04

20.05

27.00

7.4

28.00

Raw materials [chemicals) consumed
Opening inventory
Purchase durfng the vear

Total materials available
Closing Inventary

Factory overheads

Depreciation

Insurance premnium

Gas Bill

Electricity

Fuel & lubricants

Repair & maintenance

Stares & spare parts consumed (Mote 26.05]

Cylinder gas & ouygen
Labour charges

Stores & spare parts consumed
Opening inventory

Purchase during the vear

Total spare parts available
Closing inventary

Administrative expenses

Salaries & wages

Car maintenance

Conyeyance & allowances

Poztage & couriers

Renewal & registration

Rent, Rates & Taxes

Legal fees & other professional charges

Printing & stationery
Andit fee

Entartainment

Telephone & communication
Traveling & conveyance
Business promotion

Office malntenance

Bank Charges

Deprecistion - Annexure-4

Consolidated Administrative expenses
Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Sreel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Total

Selling and distribution expenses
Advertizsement

Travelling & conveyrance

Discount & commissiog

Salary & allowances

Entertainment

Labaur Fees

Truck maintenance & delivery expenses
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74,961,840 31,868,585
125,029,543 86,409,814
199,991,383 118,278,399

[142,361,826] [74,961,840)
57,629,556 43,316,559
121 380466 | 130,827,166

1,428,000 6,466,859
194,938,828 110,227 465
135,058.537 57.430.179
14,168,886 5957 BBY
16,726,620 14250993
43.805.044 56,255,407
3.777.950 3,598,980
15 406,634 14794 414

516,880,968 199,809,372
160,635,524 122164252
130,466,065 94,726,679
291,101,589 716,590,931

[247,296,545] 1160,635,524)
43,805,044 56,255,407

Amountin Tala

zoz1-z02z ||  zozo-zozi
50,145,960 29802867
2,331,965 925,714
1,006,049 1,354,406
8 445 160,842
727,128 4647520
4,284 487 9,000,000
4.280.254 3,103,498
616,195 501,086
700,000 500,000
2,150.804 2.394,217
1,715.490 1,573,360
562.072 677,042
12674566 14,270 664
6,632,297 3,936,255

4793262 -
13,497,830 14 536,354

106,407,601 87,383,825
106,407,601 |[ ©7.383,.825.12

50,653,369||  30,350.838.00
2,585,744 -
159,646,714 117,734,663
4,764,540 1604451
1923217 103,018
975,569 10,002,693
37,212,029 34,259,470
1,011,847 504,185
11,756,837 12,599 608
19,060,963 39 745,303

76,655,002

38,908 728




28A

29.00

20.A

30.00

InA

3100
31.01

31.02

F1LO0ZA

Consolidated selling and distribution expenses
Parent Company

Saleh Steel Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & He-Rolling Mills Limited

Total

Financial expenses
Bank and other Interest
Bank charge

Consolidated financial expenses
Perent Company

Saleh Stee] Industries Limited

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Total

Other income
Income from wastage sales

Interest on short netice deposit
Interest on Fixed Deposit Receipt

Consolideted Other Income

Parent Company

Saleh Stael Industries Litnitad

Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited

Total

Information based on per share

a) Basle Earning Per Share (EPS)

The camputation of EPS iz given balaw:

Earning attributable to the ordinary sharsholders
Number af ordinary sharez outstanding as on 30 June 2022
Earning Per Share (EF3)

b} Earning Pir Share (EPS)-Adjusted

Earning attributable to the ordinary shareholders

Number of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2022
Earning Per Share (EP5)-Adustad

EPS decreased due to decrease in of Sales (10,93%), profit after income tax and increase of Anancial expense fram last year,

Nat asset value per share [NAV) without valuation
a) Net assels value per share

Total asseis

Liabilities

Net Asset Value (NAV)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding as an 30 June 2022
MNet assets value per share before revaluation

Consolidated Net asset value per share (NAV) without valuation
a) Net assets value per share

Torzl assets

Liabilities

Net Asset Value (NAV)

Number of ordinary shares cutstanding as on 30 Junes 2022

MNet assets value per share before revaluation

b} Net assets value per share before revaluation-Adjosted
Total assets

Liakilites

MNet Asset Value (NAV)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 Juna 2022

AV decreased due to increase in lability
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76,655 002 G, 908,721
20,532,215 14,364,383
97,187.217 113,273,111
478,108,269 298,214,016
1,782,809

478,108,269

" 299,995,825

478,108 269 299,996,825
38,749,720 34,099,283
55,999,725 -

616,857,714 334,696,108

B.428,041 49563238
622,179 1942211
25275104 32,740,001
34,525,324 39,645,450
34525524 39,645,450
532,140 467 217
170,894 -

45828 458 40,112,667

577,238,046 5H3,271,225
328,632,200 04,290,000
L.76 1.92
377,238,046 583,271,225
32B.633.200 304,250,000
176 1.92

13,275.398.240 &.5640,259.839
[7,437573.553)||  (4,458,755.260)
5,837 8247657 5,181,504,579
228,533,200 304,290,000
17.76 17.03
17,852,647,963 11,710,378,049
[10,815275521))|  (5.336,487,193)
7,037,372 447 £,373,890,857
32E,633,200 304,290,000
2141 20.95
Amnount in Taka
30Jun-2022 ||  30-Jun-2021
13,275,338,240 9,640,259,839
[7437.573.553) (4458, 755,260
5.537,824,787 5,181.504,579
328,633,200 304,230,000
17.76 17.03




1103

31.03 A

3104

31.05

32.00
izo

3202

Net gsset value per share (NAV) with valuation

a) Net assets value per shars

Total azzets

Liabilities

Net Asset Value [NAY)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2021
Net assets value per share after revaluation

b)) Met assets value per share after revaluation-Adjusted
Totzl assets

Liabilities

Net Asset Value [NAV)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2021
Net assets value per share alfter revaluation

Net asset value per share [NAV) with valuation

a) Net assets value per share

Total assets

Liabilities

Net Asset Value [NAV)

Mumber of ordinary shares vutstanding as on 30 June 2022
Net assets value per share after revaluation

b} Met assets value per share after revaluation-Adjusted
Total asgets

Liabilities

Net Asset Value [NAV)

Wumber of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2022
Net assets value per share after revaluation

a) Net operating cash flow per share [NOCFPS)

Net operating cash News [from statement of cash flows)
Wumber of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 june 2022
Net operating cash flows per share

b} Net operating cash flows per share-Adjusted

Met operadng cash Qows (from statement of cash fiows)
Mumber of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 Jure 2022
Netoperating cash flows per share

WOCPS Increased due to increase in collection and decrease of payment in the year

Cash flow reconciliation

Profit befure income tax

Depreciation - Annefure-4

Inerease in [nventory

Increase in Trade and other receivable
Increase in Advance, deposits and prepayment
Cecrease in Trade and othar payabls

Decrease in Accrusd expansas

[mcome tax paid

Finance expenses
Contribution to WEPF and welfars fund

Bayment of WPPF and welfare fund
Recive from WPPF and Welfare fund
Net cash Inflow )/ {outllow) from operating activities

Other commitments, contingencies and relevant information

Contingencies

There i5 no contingent event that may require racognition of contingent Habifities for the year of 30 June 2022

Capital expenditure commitment
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13,964,337 960 10,337,732 626
(7437 573653) (4458 755 260
6,526,764407 5.878,977,367

378633200 304,290,000
19.86 19.32
13,964,337,960 10,337,732,626
{7437, 573,653) [£458,755,260)
5,526, 764,407 5,878.977,367
328,633,200 304,290,000
19.86 19,32
S el
18,718,319,939 12,512,918,243
[10.815,275,521] (5.335.487.193)
7503044417 7176431050
328,633,200 304,290,000
24,05 23.58
18,718,319,939 12,512,%218,243
{10.815275,521] (5.336,487,193]
7903044417 7,176.431,050
328,633,200 304,290,000
24.05 23,58
] ]
[480,275,226) 616,045,563
328,655,200 304,290,000
(1.46] 202
[480,275,226) 616,045,563
328,633.200 304,290,000
[1.46) .02
718,269,384 657 427,707
134,978,254 145 363,540
{732,200,095] (212.5972,832)
{768,400,812) 15,596,707
[434.852.449] (217.021,608)
57.099.095 (31.194,590)
67,133,739 [45,363,421]
[36.224,126) [28,056,147)
478,108,269 299,996,824
38913459 32,871,285
(480,275,227) 016,045,561

There was nn capital expenditure commitment or contract a5 gt 30 June Z0ZZ. There was nn material capital expenditure

authorized by the Board but not contracted for as at 30 June 2022,
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32.03 Directors’ interest in contracts with the company
There was no transaction resuling in Directors’ interest with the company and no leasing faciiities have been made avallable to
the Directors.

32.04 Credit Facility Not Availed
There was no credit facility available to the company under any contract, but not ayailed as on 30 June 2022 other than trade

credit available in the ordinary course of business.

32.05 Artendance Status of Board Meeting of Directors
During the year ended 30 Tune 2022, tHiere were seven board meetings were held The attendance status of all the mestings is as

follows:
; M Meeting
i Name of the Directo
51 No ame of the rs Position Meeting held . Atbendad
1 Imved Opgenhaffen Chairman 11 11
z Hazna Opgen Haffen Managing Directar 11 11
W | Holdings Ltd Represented ; "
3 Sayeed Rezara] Ahmmad MNominee Director 11 11
Independent
Md. Abu Zaf
4 u ater Director 1 H
Independent
5 hr. 5adad Rahman Fieaitis 11 11

The directors of the Company wers not paid any fze for artending bodrd meeting during the year.

3Z.06 Related party disclosures

i) Related party transactions

The Company has carrled no ransactlons with related parties in durlng the year.
ii) Particulars of directors of 5.5, Steel Limited as at 30 June 2022,

Name of BOD of 5. 5. Stewl | Thtities Where
Sl Directors Limited they have.
interests
1 Javed
Opgenhafien Chairman None
2 Hagna Opgen
Haffen Managing Director None
3 M | Holdings Ltd
R;pmw;;d Nominee Director None
4 WJ ]ndependent
Director None
5 Mr. Sadad Independent Nons
Rahman Directar

32.07 Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part IT of The Companies Act 1994
32.07.1 Quantity wise schedule as required under Para 3, Scheduale X1, Part 11 of The Companies Act, 1994

Quantity wise schedules of sales, raw material consumed and closing stock of finished gnads ralating to the financial stataments far the
year ended 30 June 2019 as required under Fara 3, Part 11 of The Companies Act 1994 given below:

a. Sales:
2021-2022 2020-2021
Partculars Quantity Amount in (Quantity Amount in
(kgs) Taka (kgs) Taka
Domestic sales 67 045,006 5069272872 70,860,793 4,251,647 554
Expoit sales = = - N
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b, Raw Materials conswmed in Qoantides:

2021-2022 2020-2021
Quantity Amount in Quantity Amount in
ikgs) Taka (kgs) Taka
Opening Stock 17,608,387 096,331.685 26,857,540 32,503,749
Purchase TEU79.275 35176599701 57,082,773 2:511,642,031
Raw material availabls for consumption 92777662  4,514,032,386 83,940,314 3,344.295,780
Closing Stock [33,474,000) (2.029,161,998] [17698,387) [996,332,685)
Raw material consumed 50,303,662 2484870320 66,241,927 2,347 893,095

. Particuiars in respect of opening stock. sales and closing stock of Anished goods:

2021-2022 2020-2021
Detalls
B Amounut in Amaount in
Quy (kes) e Qty (kes) wihea
Openlng stocl 7,598,796 471,125,386 10,103,540 434,452,215
Closing stock 426,090 32,336,545 7 598,796 471,125,366
Sales &7,045,006 G,069,272.872 70,860,793 4,251,647 554

32.07.2 Employee Positlon of 5. 5. Steel Limited as per requirement of schedule X1, part [T, Para 3

Salary Range (Monthiy) Total Officer & Stafl Worker & Employee
Employes Head Office Factory Head Office Factory

For the yvear ended 30 June 2022 540 55 GE 2 369

Below 3,000 . - . .

Abgye 3,000 SE6 49 96 i 421

For the year ended 30 june 2021 537 43 67 : 427

During the year 2022, all the employess were In the permansat payroll of the Company

32.07.3 Payment information bo Direclors as per requirensent of schedule X1, partI1, Para 4

Remuneration Armeunt in
Name Designation 20212432 2020-2021
Javed Dpgenhafen Chalriman .
Hasna Opgen Halffen Managing Directar =
Sayeed Reraraj Ahmmad Director -
Md. Abu Zafer Independent Director -
Mr. Sadad Rahman Independent Director -

The cornpany has no payment to the directors during the peried

32.07 4 Quantitative information of production capacity for the year from 01 July 2021 to 30 Jume 2022 as per requirement of schedule XI,

part I, Para 7
Installed Actual Capacity
Fmrtiontars Ligese Capacity Capacity (Kgs) | Production (Kgs) | Utilization in %
annual Production Capacity of .
Mot Ayailzbl 108,000,000 59872299 55.44"
5.5, Steel Led. in Kgs. ot Avatiabie ' “ %
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Disclosure as per requirement of schedule X1, part 11, Para 8
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a CIF value of import of raw muoterciols, spare parts and capitil goods and percentage of compoments in consumpiion as per (g) and

(c] of Porm i
For the year from 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
. ) Purchase Raw muterials . %h ol
Particulars | Oponing Balonce daring the available forvse Closing Balance Consuwmed Consumplion
Raw matarials LO7F1,2494 525 3642729 244 4714023 789 2,171,523 822 2542499048 53930
Spare parts 160,635,524 130468085 291,101,589 247,295,545 43,805,044 150585
Total 1,231,930,049 | 3,773,195.309 5,005,125,358 ZA418,820,367 2.586,304,990
Raw material includes scrap and chemicals
For the year from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
Purchase Raw materials % of
Partculars Opening Balence i the year | available for use Closing Balance Consumed Cons jon
Raw matertals Bo4 452,534 2,598,051,845 3462504,179 1,071.294,525 2,391,209,654 £9.06%
Spate parts 122,164,252 94,726,673 £16890,931 LE0,635,524 56,255407 25.94%
Total 86,616,586 | 2,692,778,6524 | 3,679,395,110 1,231,930,049 2447 465,061

b Expenditure for royalty, know-how, professionsl consultancy, intervest in foreign currency ag per (b) of Para 8

) The company did not spend any foreign currency on account of tachnical know-how, royaity, professional consultation fees, interest and
other matters during the year eaded 30 June 2022,

© Amount remitted in foreign corrency on account of Dividends to non-resident shareholders as per {d} of Fara 8

) He amount was remittad as dividend to the non-resident shareholders during the year under audic
d Earmings in foreign corrency under the following heads as per (2] of Parn 8

He forelgh carrency earnings durlng the perled from 01 July 2021 to 50 jupe 2022;

32076 Financial Risk Management
The manegemeant of company has averall for the establishrnent and aversight af the company’s risk management framework Risk management
palicies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularky to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities. The company has

axposure to the following risk for ity vie of financial ingtruments.

Credit Aisk
Liguidity Risk
Blarket Risk

32.07.7 Events after the reporting year

i} The Beard of Directors of the Cornpany in it's meeting held on 31 |anuary 2023 approved the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 Tune 2022 and authorized the same for issue. The Board of Directors also recommended 02% cash (Except Sponsor
Directors and Shareholders-caly for peneral shareholders] and 8% Bonus Share dividend for all shareholders only for the year ended 30
luna 2022 subject to approval in the next Annual General Meeting.

1] There is no other significent event that has eccurred between the balance sheet date and the dete when the financlal staterments were
authorized for lssue by the Board of Director,

Amount in Talka
20-Jun-2022 || 30Jun-2021
330 Goodwill
The goodwill for the vear ended 30 June 2022 are as fullows
Saleh Steel Indostries Limited 100,363,837 100,363,837
Al-Falah Sreel & Re-Rolling Mills Limited [33.01] - -
100,363 837 100,363 B3 7
3201 Goodwill arises from seguisition of Al-Falah Steel & Re-Rolling Mills Limdted
Consideration transfer 874,600,000 -
Non controlling interest B,B34,343 -
Fair value of previous equity interests :
Fair value of identflable net agnats 883 £34,543 -
Goodwill 0.00 -

Acquirer = 5. 5. 5teel Limited

Acgquiree ; Al-Falah Steel & Eniling #Mills Limited
Date of acquisition : 5th March 2022
Percentape of rights : 9% voting rights

Type of consideraton : Cash

Non controlling interest : 1%

AELET TIoES STRERDTH,
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RESILIENT TIGER STRENGTH 4
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The Pearl Trade Center, (11" Floor), _
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